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Vision Statement

We are dedicated to adding value for customers,
employees, shareholders and the community through

the delivery of total quality financial services.

Mission Statement

We aim to be a global player in the financial services

industry, and a leader in the Greater China region.

To achieve this, we will:

e+ always place the interests of our customers first;

e maintain the trust of our customers through our
integrity, quality and professionalism;

e+ provide innovative solutions, using advanced
technology, without losing sight of our traditional
values; and

ee develop a culture which fosters innovation,
knowledge, communication and continuous

improvement.
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The sea admits hundreds of rivers for
its capacity to hold and drops of water
outwear the stone.

With over 40 years of experience, Haitong
International Securities Group continues
to strive for excellence, innovation and
professionalism.
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Announcement of the audited final results
5 March 2013

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting

Book close dates

17 April to 19 April 2013
(both dates inclusive)

Latest time to lodge transfers

4:30 p.m. on 16 April 2013

Record date

19 April 2013

Annual general meeting

19 April 2013

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend

Book close dates

25 April to 29 April 2013
(both dates inclusive)

Latest time to lodge transfers

4:30 p.m. on 24 April 2013

Record date

29 April 2013

Final dividend payment date

on orabout 21 May 2013
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EES Board of Directors

PITESE Executive Directors

FEE BIEE LI Jianguo Deputy Chairman
MO BIFEFREFLATE LIN Yong Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EREE POON Mo Yiu

AHE HUI Yee, Wilson

HBITEE Non-executive Directors

HFK E JIYuguang Chairman
AR CHENG Chi Ming, Brian

FE18 WANG Meijuan

BUHBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors
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NEME Company Secretary

EE LO Wai Ho
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SRERESEEERAR P Fif2012

Clarendon House
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business
22nd Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers
189 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Website

www.htisec.com
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Corporate Information

External Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Legal Adviser in Hong Kong

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

Legal Adviser on Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Principal Share Registrars and Transfer Office
HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited

6 Front Street, Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Bank of Communications Co,, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

LIN Ching Yee, Daniel Chairman
WANG Meijuan

TSUI' Hing Chuen, William

LAU Wai Piu

Executive Committee

LIN Yong Chairman
POON Mo Yiu

HUI Yee, Wilson

ZHANG Xinjun

SUN Jianfeng

SUN Tong

WU Kwok Leung

LO Wai Ho

ZHANG Yibin

Nomination Committee
JI'Yuguang Chairman
TSUI' Hing Chuen, William

LAU Wai Piu
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FMZEES Remuneration Committee
®wED EY TSUI Hing Chuen, William  Chairman
iy JI'Yuguang

B A CHENG Chi Ming, Brian

2z % LAU Wai Piu

BRE 58 WEI Kuo-chiang

BHREREES Strategic Development Committee
Bl E JIYuguang Chairman
FEE LI Jianguo

MO LIN Yong

Bl EA CHENG Chi Ming, Brian
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For the year ended 31 December 310 (i#4>)
Percentage
change
20124 20114 Increase/
2012 2011 (Decrease)
BEFR For the year end
WA (F73&7T) Revenue (HK$'000) 1,177,055 1,003,945 17
AR (F87T) Net Profit (HK$'000) 293,450 153,204 92
RER At the year end
RRES (F787T) Shareholders' Funds (HK$'000) 3,254,034 3,054,588 7
BEE (TAT) Total Assets (HK$'000) 14,628,101 10,962,126 33
BRI EE Number of Shares in Issue 915,342,706 915,342,706 -
sR Per share
BREARMN (B Basic Farnings Per Share (HK Cents) 32.06 19.37 66
SREEERF) OB1L) Diluted Earnings Per Share (HK Cents) 32.06 19.35 66
SRREEZE (BT) NAV Per Share (HKS) 3.55 334 6
[ Share Price
— &= (BIT) ~ Highest (HKS) 3.37 6.04 (44)
— =18 (Br) — Lowest (HK$) 2.35 1.90 24
[y s S Financial ratios
BARBER Gearing Ratio
— BEHEEE — Borrowing to Total Assets 0.30 0.15 100
— (EEHEEFE — Borrowing to NAV 1.34 0.55 144
18 & E BFR (%) Return on Total Assets (%) 2.01 140 44
A& E & Bl (%) Return on Shareholders’ Fund (%) 9.02 502 80
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Major Subsidiaries

SEZRE
Corporate Structure

BEERMEER
Asset and Wealth
Management

RS

Corporate Finance

SRR

Financial Services

B K AR R
Management and
Consultancy Services

ERUREMERE

Strategic and Other

Investments

Immigration
L Consultants Limited W

- ) D
HREFRELERR AR
Haitong International
Investment Managers Limited

)

4 R
SEERAIEERERAR)

Haitong International

Wealth Management Limited

)

Haitong International
Investment Services Limited

(L&) BRAT]

HERBBERAT
Haitong International
On-line Services Limited

BB AR AR
Haitong International
Research Limited

BREEEESERAR
Haitong International
Securities Company Limited

HRERE S
RIEABGRAF]
Haitong International
Securities Nominees Limited

Wizt - AER—EEEELEERE - LEET L ERA]

Note:

This chart is a simplified corporate structure chart, some intermediate companies are not shown.
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Maximizing Future Opportunities
with Visionary Foresight
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review

In 2012, the global financial markets and economic activities experienced
a major recession due to the simmering European sovereign debt
crisis and the fiscal cliff threat in the United States. This, along with
the state leader or council elections in 58 countries, including major
global economies, added more uncertainties to the global economic
outlook. Against this backdrop, enterprises either cancelled or deferred
their fund raising plans amid low appetite of investors. This in turn put
unprecedented strain on both the primary and secondary markets in
Hong Kong, resulting in the decrease of fund raising size and turnover
by 65% and 23%, respectively. Our broking business suffered inevitably
to some extent. Nonetheless, with the efforts made to business and
operational structure reorganization over the year, the Group is pleased
to announce that the net profit attributable to shareholders for the
year ended 31 December 2012 grew remarkably as compared with the
corresponding period last year.

As of 31 December 2012, the Group recorded revenue of HKS$1,177.06
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 17% from HK$1,003.95
million for the last year. In 2012, with the revenue growth primarily
contributed by the corporate finance, fixed income and proprietary
investment businesses, as well as the effective controls over operating
cost, net profit attributable to shareholders for the year was HK$293.45
million, representing an increase of 92% from HK$153.20 million in
2011, while earnings per share was HK32.06 cents. At the end of 2012,
shareholders’equity amounted to HK$3,254.03 million.

At the end of 2012, the Hong Kong stock market regained its
growth momentum. The Hang Seng Index ("HSI") surged nearly 23%,
outperforming most of the other major markets. In early 2012, Greece's
successful debt restructuring once dissipated market concerns over the
European sovereign debt crisis and supported a short-lived boom in the
stock market. However, the worsening financial crisis of Spanish’s banking
sector which severely weighed on stock market performance and the
persistent economic slowdown in the Mainland market had offset the
gains of the Hong Kong stock market during the first half of the year, and
dragged the HSI down from 21,300 points to 18,400 points within a single
month in May. In the second half of 2012, the United States launched a
new round of quantitative easing measures while the European Central
Bank promulgated its bond purchase program, allowing the stock market
to regain its vigour. Alongside the market's positive expectations on the

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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future economic policies of China’s new leaders, the HSI jumped to its
16-month high at 22,656 points at year end. Despite the gradual pick-
up of the HSI, investors’ confidence remained weak. As of 31 December
2012, the average daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock market was
HKS$53.8 billion, representing a decrease of 23% as compared with the
figure recorded for 2011. In 2012, there were altogether 64 new public
offerings raising a total of HK$89.8 billion, representing a significant
decrease of 65% as compared with 2011, in which total funds raised from
the 101 new public offerings amounted to HK$259.8 billion, indicating a
persistently worsening operating environment.

By contrast, the bond market sustained the rally in 2011 during the year.
As illustrated by the figures released from the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, total funds raised from the 109 new debt securities
listed in 2012 amounted to HKS$341.2 billion, representing an increase of
over 120% over last year. Figures from the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
illustrated that unlisted debt instruments also grew remarkably. In 2012,
newly issued HKD-denominated debt instruments other than Exchange
Fund Bills and Notes aggregated HK$278.8 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 21%, while average monthly turnover of the secondary
market in 2012 was HK$32.7 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 62%, indicating investors' strong demand for fixed income products

amid uncertainty on returns in the securities market.

Prospects

Looking forward to 2013, it is expected that both Europe and the United
States will continue to implement monetary easing policies, while
Japan will strive to resuscitate the nation's economy through ultra loose
monetary policy and significant depreciation of Japanese yen in the
short term. The continuous note issues by central banks in these nations
may arouse market concerns over a new round of monetary easing
policy competition in the globe. And the low-interest-rate policy will
continue to increase capital flow around the world, causing turbulences
in liquidity flow across the Asia Pacific region. As for the Mainland market,
it is expected that the China Securities Regulatory Commission will
successively announce further easing policies on expanding the scale
of QFIl and RQFII, launching RQFII pilot schemes in Taiwan to enhance
investment convenience, continuously supporting the development of
cross-border ETF products and cross-border bond markets, facilitating the
launch of pilot programs for overseas futures broking business of futures
companies, and continuously supporting the overseas listings of domestic
enterprises. All of these policies will present golden opportunities to
Hong Kong's securities market and capital market.
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Chairman’s Statement

Against this background, the Group is cautiously optimistic on the
recovery of the Hong Kong market in 2013. Since the adjustment of
its development strategy in 2011, the Group has proactively diversified
its businesses to ensure its healthy and stable growth under various
economic conditions. During the period, the Group set up the Fixed
Income Department to support the debt services of the Group's corporate
finance segment, and to cater to market demands for debt financing and
expand its sources of revenue on top of transaction commissions and
service fees. The initiative brought lucrative interest income to the Group
whilst enhancing its capital efficiency, enabling the Group to achieve
steady income growth against the securities market doldrums in 2012.

In January 2012, the Group took the lead to launch the first RQFIl fund
— the "Haitong China RMB Income Fund” By virtue of its pioneering
position and strong sales channels, the fund filled up 90% of its quota
in 3 months and recorded outstanding sales results. In September 2012,
the Group became the first Mainland-funded broking firm in Hong Kong
qualified for the QFIl business, and was granted a QFIl quota of US$100
million. Recently, the Group also became the first company that had been
granted the approval for RQFLP fund offerings, and was awarded a quota
of approximately US$100 million. The Group expects to successively
launch new cross-border RMB products in 2013 to further secure its
leading position in RMB businesses in the Hong Kong market.

During 2012, the Group participated in the H-share IPO project of its
parent company, Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. ("Haitong Securities”). In
collaboration with other underwriters, the Group had made tremendous
efforts to ensure the successful completion of the project. This not only
enhanced the capabilities of the Group to undertake large-scale projects,
but also offered chances for the Group to promote the brand name of
"Haitong International” and yield considerable income. During the period,
the corporate finance business of the Group recorded growth against a
market downturn, registering historical breakthroughs and outstanding
results. In the coming year, with the gradual relaxation of overseas listing
restrictions imposed on enterprises by the Mainland regulators and riding
on established reputation and customer base of Haitong Securities in
China, the Group expects to further develop its business in the Hong
Kong capital market.

As the sole overseas business platform of Haitong Securities, the Group
has successfully adjusted and optimized its business structure to focus
mainly on traditional broking and investment banking businesses, which
are flanked by the flow-based business and investment business and
driven by innovation and internationalization, with safeguards provided
by its four major pillars, namely talent, risk control, IT and research.

Despite the persistent turbulences in the global economics in 2013,
the Group will continuously strive for further business development,
optimized income structure, as well as continuous innovation of its
products and services. | am confident that the Group will achieve its
strategic goal of becoming a modern and comprehensive international
investment bank with leading position in the Greater China region.

JI'Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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BlEXFEREFELE
LIN Yong

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Review of Operations

With the joint efforts of the management and all our fellow colleagues
during the period under review, the Group leveraged its established
advantages in retail broking business to proactively develop its corporate
finance, asset management, fixed income, structured finance and sector
fund businesses, whilst expanding flow-based businesses such as
margin financing and lending to investment banking clients. Currently,
the Group has maintained balanced development among its business
lines, including broking, corporate finance, asset management, fixed
income, structured finance and sector fund businesses, and has raised
the Group's capital return level through business interaction and
innovative operations. Following its successful transformation, the Group
has been fully geared towards the pursuit of its strategic objective of
transforming into a modern comprehensive investment bank in the

Greater China region.
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Managing Director’s Review

Broking

During the period, the comeback of the European sovereign debt crisis,
concerns over China's economic transformation and the bleak corporate
earnings prospects led to persistent thin trading in Hong Kong stocks,
with accumulative trading volume of the Hong Kong stock market
posting a year-on-year decrease of over 20%. Moreover, as the broking
market in Hong Kong had become saturated, banks and certain broking
firms successively rolled out prolonged commission-free concessions
or extra-low fixed commissions as incentives to attract customers, thus
further intensifying the competition in the sector. This caused commission
income from the Group's broking activities decreased to HK$327.53
million in 2012, but the year-on-year decrease of the Group's securities
trading volume was relatively moderate as compared with the decrease
in total market turnover.

In light of the extended market downturn during the period, the Group
developed flexible sales strategies, proactively launched online U.S. stock
trading and US. stock financing services, and continuously expanded
the market coverage of margin financing, with the focus put on securing
high-end retail clients and expanding the trading size with institutional
clients. The modified online U.S. stock trading platform successfully
launched in the first half of the year has extended the scope of US.
stock financing and was designed to better accommodate the trading
practices of local and mainland customers, satisfy the various investment
and margin financing demands of customers in relation to Hong Kong
stocks, and drive up the Group's online US. stock trading volume. The
margin financing business of the Group covers overseas markets such
as Japan, Germany, Canada, the UK, Australia and Singapore. During the
period, the accumulative trading volume institutional clients recorded a
significant year-on-year increase, representing 20% of the Group's trading
volume by period end. In addition, the Group gained retail trading
volume by participating in large-scale public offerings, and the historical
breakthrough in business scale of our corporate finance segment also
facilitated the increase in broking transactions.

By increasing the proportion of institutional clients and providing high-
end retail clients with refined services, the Group distinguished itself
from those low-price-oriented competitors with its diversified products
and premium services and successfully developed a market image of “a
comprehensive finance expert” As a result, our broking business scale
grew against a market downturn and its ranking in terms of market share
rose significantly.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012



BB ORE

Managing Director’s Review

R - TR B % P 8 AR AL & B A a ALAR TS
WFFERR  SEERHARZ TR ZE
5o BRTREAEEXESZMS  Z2RE - ZE
MEETFEEBMTRBFE  LHETZER
SR - ERAERAER -

EMEXE

BREMESRERAGNELCFZE THACE LT
SEBR  EARBREMEREZXTENRET
ELHRIESIEE LTS - EEREMRE
RIBEERE RESBEERMEBIT AL
TP#38% r X EMIEB64ME - B EMEIER
%8 /389818 B T+ R LE T P&65% - AMPEE R E
B ER A E B WS E o8 A H SR AYIg
o 20FEHMIHEL - RANHEZERELE
=R EE - PREARTIZETER R A -
LARABEMEMIERHEFOORA - IREHES
EIAETERR o

TREEITTFOERT  SE{FLAEEHESR
B AR TEEK CEREEBYTRE -
BlIEEm  SEBECELSTEMSNENE
o EEINMEHUARBEREFPNEE - ZXE
BARBIPOIEE M ARBEBIRBRERE - L&
T EHRELE - UG TRABIKE < EERE
BEMARBEEWESKY - AEBETERE AR
IPOTE B WUBEF I E| 7 2RI 2 B8 - S E R
FEMEXRNESE  £E0ENESRETE
TEBAR - BREBEZHEEF - BZE20129124 -
SEBRIPOZITE M S PR FB20 - BRIPOK
HEMTHBEER BN - HPIEFREEEAL
REABENALEWIPOIEE 10E - LEIRFE ™
BIOKIPOIEEF - SEAEEBES PEIAR
REBREBERNDBRARSHEEEFREETRE
ASEREEEA  WHEETZEBKMEEE -
ZREERERR - WEA MV BERIEE - &

SRERESEEERAR P Fif2012

Meanwhile, to keep satisfying customers’ continuous demands for
innovative financial products and services, the Group also set up an
algorithmic trading team, built the first fully-automated ETF market-
making trading platform of the Group supporting multi-market, multi-
currency and multi-product transactions, and developed a variety of
trading strategies, which have been brought into use recently.

Corporate Finance

During the period, the lukewarm trading in the stock market also
weighed on new listings of enterprises. Corporations either cancelled or
put off their listing plans in light of the undersubscribed public offering
market. The Hong Kong financing market remained sluggish in general
and the total amount of financing stood merely at HK$304.2 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 38%. The funds raised through
the 64 IPO projects completed during the period aggregated HK$89.8
billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 65%. In contrast, the
bond market prospered in 2012 thanks to investors' stronger demands
for defensive assets and fixed income products. In the meantime, with
the rapid economic growth of China, the continuous development and
opening-up of China’s capital market and the enhanced competitiveness
of China’s enterprises and projects, investment as well as merger and
acquisition activities increased as well.

Facing the economy filled with both challenges and opportunities, the
Group made corresponding strategic adjustments and set up a brand-
new team, thereby allowing the corporate finance business to buck the
market downturn and hit an all-time high. Leveraging its advantages in
terms of sales network, leadership and experience in the Hong Kong retail
market as well as its expanding institutional client base, the Group has
assisted many large scale IPO projects in achieving oversubscription in
public offer and in successful completion of global placing, with brilliant
results attained. The participation in and successful completion of large
scale IPO projects offered the Group an edge to compete in the market.
Meanwhile, the Group also seized the opportunities arising from the
bond market boom to develop its corporate finance business. According
to Bloomberg, as of December 2012, the Group ranked second in the
market in terms of the number of Hong Kong IPO projects undertaken,
and seventh in terms of the underwriting amount in Hong Kong IPO
projects, and served the role of bookrunner, sponsor or above in 10 IPO
projects. Of the top 10 IPO projects in the Hong Kong market during
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the period, the Group served as sponsor or bookrunner in 4 projects,
including that of Haitong Securities and The People’s Insurance Company
(Group) of China Limited. It also undertook a number of debt financing
projects, 2 equity refinancing projects, financial consultancy projects on
acquisitions and mergers, and a great deal of other financial consultancy
projects. The Group's corporate finance business showed its solid strength
in terms of the number, type and scale of projects undertaken. During
the period, total revenue from the corporate finance business amounted
to HK$466.03 million, nearly doubling the figure of last year.

Asset Management

Being an offshore RMB business centre, Hong Kong owns abundant
RMB deposits and has developed a number of RMB financial products
in recent years, including currency, foreign exchange, derivatives, bonds,
funds and insurance products, and has been playing an important role
in promoting the development of cross-border RMB business and RMB
internationalization. Facing such an unprecedented opportunity, the
Group has optimized its Mainland-funded background to enhance the
brand and scale of its asset management business through innovative
RMB products and cross-regional interaction.

The Group is devoted in product innovation, especially in RMB products.
We launched the first public offering of RQFIl product in Hong Kong in
early 2012. In September 2012, the Group became the first Mainland-
funded broking firm in Hong Kong to be awarded the QFIl qualification. It
was also granted a QFIl quota of US$100 million by State Administration
of Foreign Exchange, which paved the way for RMB and US Dollar to
be channeled into the secondary market in the Mainland. In addition,
the Group was granted approval to issue the first RQFLP fund in China,
the establishment of which opened the door for foreign capital inflows
into the PRC primary market. As such, the Group became the world’s
only Mainland-funded institution to own all of the RQFIl, QFIl and
RQFLP qualifications during the period, laying a solid foundation for the
establishment of RMB/USD bilateral business channels in domestic and
overseas markets for overseas investors. Currently, the Group is actively
participating in studies of policies on the development of cross-border
RMB businesses with the Mainland regulators. This provides the Group
with a bigger platform for development of its cross-border business.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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As for the sales of RMB products, the Group distributed its fund products
via its existing sales platforms and banking networks. It also actively
developed the sales channels of Hong Kong insurance companies and
strengthened the cooperation with overseas strategic partners. The Group
has signed cooperative agreements with some overseas institutions,
with an aim of developing new products and exploring new channels by
capitalizing on the parties' respective competitive edges and benefits on
global asset management business. In addition, the Group made efforts
in marketing products to high-net-worth investors and institutional
investors, in order to establish a global sales network covering Europe,
North America and South East Asia to expand its asset scale. We
also carried out a review over existing products and put the focus of
development on RMB-related funds, such as ETFs, index funds, FOFs and

mezzanine funds.

Fixed Income Business

Fixed income business has become a significant business component
of top international investment banks nowadays. The development of
fixed income business has served a key role in supporting and balancing
the stock broking business of the Group. In 2012, to adopt changes in
business environment, the Group rationalized its business structured and
established Fixed Income department to develop fixed income products,
thus enhance the Group's overall operating capacities and create
synergy to the Group's other streams of business. In less than a year of
operation, our fixed income business grasped the opportunity arising
from the bond market turbulences to actively explore private equity debt
financing projects and establish investment pools. Besides, businesses
such as proprietary bond trading and agency trading also contributed
significantly to the Group's revenue.

Structured Finance and Sector Fund Business

As an innovative business of the Group, structured investment and
finance business has become an important and stable source of revenue
to the Company in recent years and in the future. In 2012, the Group
achieved remarkable results in expansion of its pledged finance and
structured finance businesses. During the period, interest income from
provision of financing to corporate clients by the Group increased by
57% over the corresponding period of the previous year. After obtaining
the first RQFLP qualification, the Group has made great strides in its
development in the sector fund business. During the period, the Group
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established a business team focused on sector fund investment in the
Mainland China. The gradual opening-up of cross-border businesses
in China also enabled the Group to seize timely the opportunities for
development of sector funds with overseas fund-raising and domestic
investment business model. It is expected that the business will become
an important source of revenue to the Group in the future.

Operation Summary

Whilst the Group was balancing its revenue and seeking for new profit
sources through business innovation, it also stepped up restructurings
of supporting departments in the middle and back office, integrating
operating teams, appointing the Chief Risk Officer, restructuring the legal
and compliance departments, recruiting prestigious economists in the
sector and implementing stringent cost control, thereby making the
Group’s overall structure more refined and efficient.

In the course of integrating business structure and developing innovative
businesses, the Group applied significant effort to strengthen risk control
accordingly. This was done by appointing the Chief Risk Officer and by
optimizing and updating the approval procedures and management
system on risk control for each business line according to different
characteristics of businesses. Furthermore, it also stepped up the
integration and manpower composition of the legal and compliance
departments. Such measures provided effective safeguards for the
management to make efficient and accurate decisions.

Besides, in order to provide better services to high-net-worth clients
and institutional clients, the Group's Research Department recruited
prestigious economists in the sector during the period to consolidate its
research capability in macroeconomics and strategies, whilst expanding
its coverage to 9 industry segments (namely real estate, machinery,
consumer, automotive, non-bank financial, gaming and hospitality, media,
food and comprehensive) and 132 listed companies. The division also
published various market information, macroeconomic analysis reports,
strategy analysis reports and industry research reports regularly and
frequently, which were widely recognized by the industry in terms of
research coverage and depth.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Internally, the Group implemented stringent cost control during the year.
As a result, the cost to income ratio improved remarkably from nearly
82% in 2011 to 71% in 2012. Nevertheless, the Group did not greatly
reduce its staff cost; instead, it adhered to its people-oriented principle.
During the period, the Group introduced a fresh round of strategic
manpower deployment for each of the business departments and further
rationalized the incentive mechanism for frontline staff. Meanwhile, the
Group devoted more efforts to attract outstanding talents to optimize
the manpower structure of each business and operating department,
thereby laying a solid talent foundation for the Group to realize its
strategic objective of transforming into a modern comprehensive
investment bank.

Future Outlook

After the structural reorganization and strategic transformation of various
business and operating departments during the period, the Group has
preliminarily set up a business framework of a modern comprehensive
investment bank. In 2013, economies worldwide are set to witness a
mild rebound. Market liquidity is abundant and is expected to flow into
Asia and in particular China. The PRC economy will likely bottom out
and the stock market may gradually recover, developing along with the
bond market. In light of the new changes in economic situations and
the capital market, the Group will strive to expand its capital scale and
improve its securities trading volume. Moreover, it will optimize the use
of various debt financing channels to increase leverage moderately and
strive to enhance the scale and profitability of its flow-based businesses
like margin financing, lending to investment banking clients and fixed
income currencies and commodities on the basis of controllable and
predictable risks. By optimizing its existing advantages in retail business,
the Group will further optimize its client base, enhance the capability
of undertaking large projects and strive for diversified development
of investment banking business. In respect of asset management, the
Group will make great efforts in developing the RQFII, QFIl and RQFLP
business driven by RMB products and innovative businesses, in order to
rapidly expand the scale of its asset management business. The Group
will also accelerate its expansion into the overseas markets, and it plans to
expand its market coverage from Singapore to the rest of South East Asia,
continuously promote the rapid development of institutional business,
and improve its servicing capacity to drive up the number and trading
volume of its clients.
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Adhering to our client-oriented principle, | am determined and confident
of leading the management team to focus on the development of
institutional business and capital-driven innovative business, with
traditional sell side businesses being the principal area of operation,
which are flanked by the flow-based and capital-investment businesses.
To achieve this objective, we will integrate our structured finance and
sector fund businesses into our investment banking business, expand
our Fixed Income Department into the Fixed Income, Currency and
Commodities (FICC) Department and steadily forge the Group into a
modern comprehensive investment bank with leading position in the
Greater China region.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincerest gratitude
to all the Board members and staff of the Group for their dedication,
service and contribution. On behalf of the Board and management of the
Group, | would also like to extend my appreciation to all of our investors
and business partners for their support and trust. With the joint efforts of
our fellow colleagues, the Group will soon achieve its strategic objective
of transforming into a modern comprehensive investment bank with
leading position in the Greater China region.

LIN Yong
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Financial Performance

Revenue

BZ12A31ALEE

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HKS$1,177.1 million (2011: HK$1,003.9 million). A summary of the revenue
from different operations of the Group is set out below:

20124 20114F
2012 2011
FET FHET
HKS$’000 % HK$'000 %
BEEE RO ERS Securities dealing and broking 221,094 18.8 292,826 29.2
HE - REREREE Futures, options and commodities
PEERE S dealing and broking 99,858 8.4 140,478 14.0
FMEWA Interest income 174,009 14.8 205,234 204
ERE N RAER Corporate finance and advisory 466,026 39.5 234,710 234
ESEBENETER Bullion contracts dealing 6,574 0.6 9,826 09
RIERIE A K Income earned from the provision of
RERBFUA nominee and custodian services 19,943 1.7 22,985 23
HeER Fund management 28,357 2.4 32,008 32
B &R E W Income from proprietary investment 100,687 8.6 18,331 18
TERINEEBEWA - Income from leveraged foreign
HRE exchange trading, net 12,744 1.1 3,520 04
IRHEERE R Commission income from the
7B RIS A 2 A provision of financial planning
and advisory services 47,763 4.1 44,027 44
1,177,055 100.0 1,003,945 100.0
20125 LA D #T 2011 WA D HT
(EZE2012512A31 B ILFE) EZE2011F12A318LFE)
Analysis of 2012 Revenue Analysis of 2011 Revenue
(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (For the year ended 31 December 2011)
®1.1% 4.1% ®04% 44%
B6% ———— g | 18%
®24% ®188% ®32%
®1.7% ®23% ®292%
©06% K 84% ©09%
39.5% 234%
®148%
— 140%
®204%

@ EFEENELEY
Securities dealing and broking
HE  MErEREERELES

Futures, options and commaodities dealing and

broking custodian services
® FISHA @ EeEIR
Interest income Fund management
RERE KA AEL BERE WS

Corporate finance and advisory

@ ESEANEEREY

Bullion contracts dealing

Income earned from the provision of nominee and

@ ERINEEFWA - FHE
Income from leveraged foreign exchange trading,

@ RHMAEARRERBEA net

REMBRE LA ARG YA

Commission income from the provision of financial

planning and advisory services

Income from proprietary investment
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Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HKS$841.4 million (2011: HK$836.7 million). An analysis of these expenses

is as follows:

HZE12A31BLLEE

For the year ended 31 December

20124 20114F

2012 2011

FET FAT
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

He e  EAR Salaries and allowances, bonuses and

BN ETEER pension scheme contributions 342,435 40.7 339,265 405
REEEHAE Commission to accounts executives 125,956 15.0 141,587 17.0
B TSR AN Finance costs 24,761 2.9 34,126 4.1
E Depreciation 47,534 5.6 43,558 52
Hh & &R Other operating expenses 300,753 35.8 278,152 33.2

841,439 100.0 836,688 100.0

2012 REMIT oM
EZE20129E12 4318 ILEE)

Analysis of 2012 Operating Expenses
(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

@®358% ®40.7%

@®5.6%
®29%

150%

@ HEkAe « AR KRSFBIHK
Salaries and allowances, bonuses and pension scheme contributions
SR elika
Commission to accounts executives

® YERA

Finance costs

SRERESEEERAR P Fif2012

20N EFERERMET O
EZ2011F 12831 B ILFE)

Analysis of 2011 Operating Expenses
(For the year ended 31 December 2011)

@®40.5%
®332%
®52%
9
®41% 170%

@ e
Depreciation
@ EfbEERx

Other operating expenses
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Salaries and allowances increased only 0.9% during the year, mainly
attributable to the Group's continued effort on the rationalization of

headcount.

Commission to accounts executives decreased due to decrease in

turnover of securities and futures businesses.

Finance costs decreased mainly due to decrease in average borrowings
as a result of the capitalization of a sum of HK$850 million shareholder’s
loan owed by the Group to Haitong International Holdings Limited, a
controlling shareholder of the Group, in August 2011.

Depreciation increased by 9.1%. The higher depreciation charge was due
to capitalization of the development cost of the new front and back office

system.

Other operating expenses rose moderately by 8.1% as the Group has
employed stringent measures to control the costs.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders
Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders for the year ended 31 December

2012 was HK$293.5 million, as compared to HK$153.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow, bank borrowings and unsecured term loans from independent
third parties. Moreover, on 22 June 2011, the Company entered into a
3-year facilities agreement (the “Facilities”) with a syndicate of 6 banks
whereby the Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate
amount of HK$552 million and a revolving loan facility in an aggregate
amount of HK$828 million. Part of the Facilities was applied towards
repayment of the syndicated loan of HK$500 million expired in June 2011
and the rest towards the general working capital requirements of the
Group. Except for the above-mentioned Facilities, the Group’s banking
facilities are mainly renewable on a yearly basis and are subject to floating
interest rates.

It is the policy of the Group to maintain adequate liquidity at all times
to meet its obligations and commitments as and when they fall due.
The Group's financial risk management strategies include obtaining
substantial long term and other standby banking facilities, diversifying
the funding sources, spacing out the maturity dates to reduce interest
volatility exposure and reviewing capital adequacy ratio from time to
time.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong
Kong dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure on non-Hong
Kong dollar assets and liabilities is relatively low as compared with its total
asset value or outstanding liabilities. Hence, the Group considers that it
has no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy during
the review period. As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash balance
totalled HK$467.8 million, compared with HK$1,001.2 million at the
beginning of the year. Cash held on behalf of customers increased to
HK$5,092.5 million, compared with HK$4,992.0 million as at 31 December

2011.The current ratio of the Group was healthy at 1.18 times.
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Financial Review

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's gearing ratio, measured on the
basis of total borrowings as a percentage of total shareholders’ equity,
was 134%, compared with 55% as at 31 December 2011. Higher gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2012 was mainly due to increase in bank
borrowings to finance the expanding margin and other loans. Apart
from the afore-mentioned 3-year term and revolving loan facilities, all
borrowings were of short-term maturities. Bank and other borrowings
totalled HK$4,362.2 million (31 December 2011: HK$1,694.5 million),
against total margin and other loans of HK$5,779.4 million (31 December
2011: HKS$3,438.3 million). The ratio of interest income to interest expense
was 7.03 times, compared with 6 times for the year ended 31 December
2011. The increase was mainly attributable to increase in bank and other
borrowings.

Our operating cash flow remains adequate for financing our recurrent
working capital requirements as well as any investment opportunities that
may arise. Besides, the Group has unutilized banking facilities of HK$2,868
million, while our capital commitments are minimal. The Group'’s assets
and liabilities are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollars, so
our foreign exchange exposure is immaterial. Except for the guarantees
provided to the banks for securing normal banking facilities for our

subsidiaries, the Company has no other significant contingent liabilities.
Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2012, the total issued share capital of the Company
stood at HK$91.5 million, comprising 915,342,706 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Group for the year.

Employees

The Group's total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2012,
excluding commissions paid to commission-based staff, amounted to
HKS$342.4 million, representing a moderate increase of 0.9% from the year
ended 31 December 2011. This was mainly due to the Group's continued
effort on the rationalization of headcount. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group employed a total of 770 (31 December 2011: 969) permanent staff
of which 216 (31 December 2011: 293) were commission-based staff.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within the
Group. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices effective until 31 March 2012 (the “Old CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Code effective from 1 April 2012 (the “New
CG Code") (collectively, the “Code") as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except that the chairman of the Board
(the "Chairman”), a deputy chairman of the Board (‘Deputy Chairman”),
4 non-executive directors and an independent non-executive director of
the Company, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 April 2012 and the Chairman, 2 executive directors
and a non-executive director were unable to attend the special general
meeting of the Company held on 20 December 2012 as stipulated for in
code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the New CG Code as they had other
important business engagements at that relevant time.

EFRTHETERHE i KBTI - RS RERKREFEE I -

The Board hosts regular meetings to discuss direction, strategy, performance and control of the Group.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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The followings summarise how the Company has applied the principles

of the Code in its corporate governance practices:

Corporate Governance Structure

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure
will enable the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby
ensure the Company is run in the best interests of its shareholders and
other stakeholders. The following diagram depicts the overall corporate
governance structure of the Company. The Board is primarily responsible
for setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it is also charged with the
duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices
of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently 5 board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Strategic Development Committee (the
"Board Committees”). All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the Board

in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

EEE The Board

I I

Y i
[ I I

BZEES HTZEE®
Audit Executive
Committee Committee

REEEE gHzae  BHEREAS

Nomination Remuneration 5 Strrtegm
Committee Committee el
Committee
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The following table shows the attendance of each individual member

R 2207 2512)51 31H 1k EF NETT E’] 58 of the Board and the respective Board Committees at the Board and the
CF REFLLZECRRMRERENERFE respective Board Committees meetings and general meeting held during
EPI the year ended 31 December 2012
HERE, SRETRY
Attendance/number of meetings held
BHRER
B BT RE M Z22€3
EEZERENS ZESSE ZE993 ZE993 ZE9%; Strategic
FESEREENRENE A Audit  Executive Nomination Remuneration Development — REAE
Name of members of the Board/ Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
the respective Board Committees meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Bz
The Board
IERFUTEE
Chairman and Non-executive Director
AT (M) 4/4 22 /a 22 1 22 072
Ji Yuguang (Note 1)
FTERATEE
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
FiH 4/4 n/a n/a n/a n/a 22 1/2
Li Jianguo
HZE  EFEEERYTEE
Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and Executive Director
VG 4/4 n/a 14/16 n/a n/a 22 22
Lin Yong
BEEFHAEERHTEE
Joint Managing Director and
Executive Director
Fis (M) 33 /a 13/15 n/a n/a 22 1/1
Lee Yiu Wing (Note 2)
HiTEE
Executive Directors
Hz (MEE3) 4/4 n/a 11/16 n/a n/a n/a 22
Chan Chi On (Note 3)
BRE 4/4 n/a 16/16 n/a n/a n/a 12
Poon Mo Yiu
FE 4/4 n/a 16/16 n/a n/a n/a 12
Hui Yee, Wilson

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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HERY, EEETRR

Attendance/number of meetings held

BREE

B 817 bt M ZEE8E
ExeRans/ ZEGSE ZE983 ZE983 Z2983 Strategic
FEZTEREERENS EES 45 Audit  Executive Nomination Remuneration Development BRAE
Name of members of the Board/ Board Committee = Committee  Committee  Committee =~ Committee General
the respective Board Committees meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
HHITEE
Non-executive Directors
R, (Fizka) 3/3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0/1
Wu Bin (Note 4)
&R (fiF4) 23 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0
Chen Chungian (Note 4)
= BEE (BisEs) 13 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0
Hiroki Miyazato (Note 4)
B5H 3/4 n/a n/a n/a 0/1 12 072
Cheng Chi Ming, Brian
T8 (fsEs) 11 0/0 n/a n/a n/a n/a 01
Wang Meijuan (Note 5)
BUKHTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
XER (ffiz6) 3/4 22 n/a 2”2 11 n/a 12
Man Mo Leung (Note 6)
"E2 4/4 22 n/a 2”2 11 n/a 22
Tsui Hing Chuen, William
2ER 4/4 22 n/a 112 1/1 n/a 2”2
Lau Wai Piu
iz (FizE7) 0/0 0/0 n/a n/a n/a n/a 0/0
Lin Ching Yee, Daniel (Note 7)
ZRE1% (fizEs) 0/0 n/a n/a n/a 0/0 n/a 0/0
Wei Kuo-chiang (Note 8)
BRERTHAR
Senior Management Executives
KEE n/a n/a 15/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Zhang Xinjun
Fale n/a n/a 13/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Sun Jianfeng
7Y n/a n/a 13/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Sun Tong
HER n/a n/a 16/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Wu Kwok Leung
ERE n/a n/a 16/16 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Lo Wai Ho
2025 (FrsEo) n/a n/a 0/3 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Lau Yiu Wai (Note 9)
ZERE (FiE10) n/a n/a 8/11 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Zhang Yibin (Note 10)
FHHEE 91% 100% 87% 88% 80% 90% 52%
Average attendance:

SRERESEEERAR 12012



5T

1. BEEREAE0NFIOAIARBRERRTNERE
BEKE -

2. FRELEER0NFIAIBERTARRNITE
T HEESHCERBREEZEERE -~ It
AN B A 201212 A1 HEEBHEAR R TIHITE
BEKE -

3. BREREER0BFIAEREBRIRAARINTE
ENRMTLZEEKE -

4. RELE  REELENE EREELEH012F
IATRBBERRRIIENITESE -

5. EEB\BLTHE012F9A1BREZTARARE
PITEERERLZEEKE -

6. NERLAM012F12A3HERIARREL
HQITEE BERZESEF  RELESAY

7. MEIEEAR2012F 1283 BRRESEAERAT
BN TEERERZESER -

8. BB AEM2012FI2AINHEERTAARA
BUIENTEERTMEEEKE -

9. BIRBEEER2012F3IA1BEIARARARNITEE
gKE -
10, BEMBLAER2012F4 1 BEZTAKRQRIHRIT

1%

2
&

EEFHAS AN ESFER - EP AL
TEE  FEELL (BIEFE)  WRxE (8
TREREFALE)  BRERERFEEE
MMIFEMITES - AIET AL (EF) - BEH
EERTRELR L ARMIBIIFRTES -
BRERELE - BIBREL  MHMELRELIE
BEL c BEARSAHNESTHBINAFRE
63Z70E [EFENEGRERE | —HNKE -

TEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

Notes:

Mr. Ji Yuguang retired as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
with effect from 1 September 2012.

Mr. Lee Yiu Wing resigned as an executive director, the joint managing
director and a member of the Strategic Development Committee of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2012. Mr. Lee also resigned as a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company with effect from
1 December 2012.

Mr. Chan Chi On resigned as an executive director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company with effect from 1 January 2013.

Messrs. Wu Bin, Chen Chungian and Hiroki Miyazato resigned as
non-executive directors of the Company with effect from 1 September 2012.

Ms. Wang Meijuan was appointed as a non-executive director and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company with effect from 1 September 2012.

Mr. Man Mo Leung resigned as an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from
31 December 2012.

Mr. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel was appointed as an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company with
effect from 31 December 2012.

Mr. Wei Kuo-chiang was appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 31 December 2012.

Mr. Lau Yiu Wai resigned as a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company on 1 March 2012.

Mr. Zhang Yibin was appointed as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company on 1 April 2012.

The Board

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 11 directors, with 4 executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Jianguo (Deputy Chairman), Mr. Lin Yong (Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Poon Mo Yiu and Mr. Hui Yee,

Wilson; 3 non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ji Yuguang (Chairman),

Mr. Cheng Chi Ming, Brian and Ms. Wang Meijuan; and 4 independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tsui Hing Chuen, William, Mr. Lau
Wai Piu, Mr. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel and Mr. Wei Kuo-chiang. Details of the
directors as of the date of this report are set out in the “Board of Directors

and Senior Management” section in pages 63 to 70 of this Annual Report.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Meetings

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year at quarterly intervals and
will meet at other times when the Board thinks appropriate. In general,
notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular board meeting so as to give
all directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda and meeting materials for
each meeting are circulated to all directors normally with at least 7 days
in advance of the date of the meeting. Senior management executives
may, from time to time, be invited to attend the board meetings for
making presentation and/or answering any queries that may be raised by
the Board. During the year, 4 board meetings were held with an average
turnout of 91%.

Proceedings of the Board and the Respective Board
Committees Meetings

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and the
respective Board Committees in setting agenda for meetings, and each
director of the Company is given an opportunity to include any matters
to be transacted in the agenda. Where any director of the Company is
considered to be having a conflict of interest in any transactions, the
director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant
meeting. All draft minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective
Board Committees are circulated to all those present at the meetings
for comment before submission to the chairman of the meetings for
approval. To further enhance better communication with the directors
of the Company as to the business transacted at the Board and the
respective Board Committees meetings, an exclusive Intranet site is
maintained to enable all directors of the Company to gain access
to minutes of the meetings of the Board and the respective Board
Committees. Minutes of the Board and the respective Board Committees
meetings will be posted on this exclusive site within reasonable time for
the information of all directors.

In addition, the Company has established a procedure for its directors to
seek independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company. In
order to safeguard the interest of individual director, the Company has
also arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for the directors of
the Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear segregation of roles between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ"). This segregation ensures a clear
distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board
and the CEO’s responsibility to manage the Company and its subsidiaries’
businesses. The duties of the Chairman and the CEO are currently carried
out respectively by Mr. Ji Yuguang and Mr. Lin Yong. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEQ.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) have served a significant role in the Board by bringing
independent judgement on the performance, development and risk
management of the Group. All non-executive directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to the retirement
and re-election provisions in the New bye-laws of the Company (the
"Bye-laws”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least one-third independent non-executive directors and at least one
of which have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received a written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors
were independent in accordance with the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Appointment and Re-election

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of 3 years
subject to the retirement and re-election provisions in the Bye-laws.
One-third of the directors of the Company are required to retire from
office by rotation and being eligible for re-election at each annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws. New director appointed by
the Board will be subject to re-election by the shareholders at the first
general meeting after his/her appointment. The names of directors who
are eligible for re-election at general meetings will be disclosed in the
notice of the relevant general meetings and their biographical details will
be provided in the accompanying circulars. The election of each director
will be subject to vote of shareholders by separate resolutions.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

An induction kit is provided to newly appointed director immediately
upon his/her appointment from the Company which contains a package
of orientation materials on the operations and businesses of the Group,
together with information relating to the duties and responsibilities of
directors under statutory regulations and the Listing Rules. The Company
Secretary updates directors on the latest developments and changes to
the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
regarding subjects necessary in the discharge of their duties. Same as
before, the Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. They
are required to submit to the Company annually details of training
sessions undertaken by them in each financial year for the Company
to maintain a training record for its directors. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, the training received by each of the
directors during the period from 1 April 2012 (being the date the New CG
Code became effective) to 31 December 2012 is summarized as follows:

BFRESEX

BRLXERTAN &/ BBER
EHRAEHFAR H i ERALE I
Updates on Training relevant to

Listing Rules directors’ profession

regarding Code of and/or duties and

Corporate Governance other relevant topics

TERIBITEE

Chairman and Non-executive Director
HFNR

Ji Yuguang

FIZERHBTEE
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
FEE

Li Jianguo

EFIEE  EBREERHITESE

Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and Executive Director

MR
Lin Yong

SRERESEEERAR 12012



TEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

FHESEEX

BRALXERTAN &/ SEER
LHRAEHRAR H i ERALE I
Updates on Training relevant to

Listing Rules directors’ profession
regarding Code of and/or duties and

Corporate Governance other relevant topics

BEEFESERIITEE

Joint Managing Director and Executive Director
Free (FaEn)

Lee Yiu Wing (Note 1)

HITEE

Executive Directors
BRER (Piiar2)
Chan Chi On (Note 2)
EREE

Poon Mo Yiu

A&

Hui Yee, Wilson

HHITEE
Non-executive Directors
R (BtEE3)

Wu Bin (Note 3)

BREE (KMiEE3)

Chen Chungian (Note 3)
= REE (fHFE3)
Hiroki Miyazato (Note 3)
Zh 7SR

Cheng Chi Ming, Brian
Ex18 (KicE4)

Wang Meijuan (Note 4)

BUHHTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
MER (KEES)

Man Mo Leung (Note 5)
REZ

Tsui Hing Chuen, William
2125

Lau Wai Piu

Mz (Fiste)

Lin Ching Yee, Daniel (Note 6)
oA (f5E7)

Wei Kuo-chiang (Note 7)

Vv v
Vv v
Vv vV
Vv vV
Vv vV
Vv v
Vv v
Vv vV
Vv v
Vv v
Vv v
Vv vV
Vv v
Vv v
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Notes:

Mr. Lee Yiu Wing resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 September 2012,

Mr. Chan Chi On resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 January 2013.

Messrs. Wu Bin, Chen Chungian and Hiroki Miyazato resigned as
non-executive directors of the Company with effect from 1 September 2012.

Ms. Wang Meijuan was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2012.

Mr. Man Mo Leung resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 31 December 2012.

Mr. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 December 2012.

Mr. Wei Kuo-chiang was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 31 December 2012.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties including:

()

to develop, review and update the Company’s policy and practices
on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the New CG Code and
disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report”; and

to perform such other corporate governance duties and functions
set out in the New CG Code (as amended from time to time) for

which the Board is responsible.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code") as its code of conduct for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.
Securities interests in the Company and its associated corporations held
by each of the directors of the Company are set out in the “Report of the
Board of Directors” section in pages 71 to 89 of this Annual Report.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Lau Wai Piu and
a non-executive director of the Company, namely Ms. Wang Meijuan.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee has the appropriate professional
qualification and experience in financial matters. The Audit Committee
will meet no less than twice a year to review all business affairs managed
by the executive directors in particular on connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions, if any, to review the interim and final
financial statements of the Group before their submission to the Board for
approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management system of the Group. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are aligned with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
the recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and any updates thereof. A copy of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been posted on the Company's website.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee met
on 2 occasions with the presence of external auditors and discharged
its responsibilities in its review of the interim and final results and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system of the
Group. The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended
31 December 2012 included reviews of the following:

- thedirectors'report and the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011 of the Group, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

- the consolidated financial statements for the 6 months ended
30 June 2012 of the Group, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

- the audit fees for the year ended 31 December 2012 proposed
by the external auditors, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

- the new accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group;

- the continuing connected transaction, undertaken by the Group;

- theinternal control and risk management system of the Group;

- the findings and the recommendations of the Group’s Internal
Auditor on the Group's operations and of the regulatory review

carried out by the regulators;

- the compliance status of the Group with the applicable regulatory
and other legal requirements;

- the Group’s investment policy and the adequacy of provision made
for diminution in value for the Group’s investments;

- the litigation cases of the Group;

- the adequacy of the provision for bad debts; and

- the error trades occurred during the 6 months ended 30 June 2012.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is currently composed of 3 executive directors
of the Company, namely Messrs. Lin Yong (Chairman of the Executive
Committee), Poon Mo Yiu and Hui Yee, Wilson as well as heads of certain
major business divisions of the Group. The Committee is duly authorized
by the Board to manage the day-to-day business of the Group.
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Executive Committee members of the Group (from left to right): Mr. Zhang Yibin, Mr. Wu Kwok Leung, Mr. Sun Jianfeng, Mr. Hui Yee, Wilson, Mr. Lin Yong,

Mr. Poon Mo Yiu, Mr. Zhang Xinjun, Mr. Sun Tong and Mr. Lo Wai Ho.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 with
terms of reference in accordance with the New CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is currently composed of 1 non-executive director of
the Company, namely Mr. Ji Yuguang (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and 2 independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Messrs. Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Lau Wai Piu. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board including the skills, knowledge, experience
of directors and the time devoted by the directors in fulfilling their
responsibilities, making recommendations on any changes to the Board

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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made in accordance with the Company's corporate strategy; to making
recommendations in respect of the appointment or re-appointment
and the succession plan of directors including but not limited to, the
chairman and the chief executive officer to the Board for its approval and
implementation and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge
its responsibilities in accordance with its term of reference. Before its
establishment, the role and function of the Nomination Committee
was taken up by the Board. During the year, 2 Nomination Committee
meetings were held.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the work performed by the
Nomination Committee included review of the following:

- the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; and

- the proposals regarding the changes of members of the Board/
Board Committees of the Company, inter alias, the resignation
of Messrs. Lee Yiu Wing and Chan Chi On as executive directors,
Messrs. Wu Bin, Chen Chungian and Hiroki Miyazato as non-
executive directors and appointment of Ms. Wang Meijuan as a non-
executive director, Messrs. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel and Wei Kuo-chiang
as independent non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of 3 independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Tsui Hing Chuen,
William (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Lau Wai Piu and
Wei Kuo-chiang and 2 non-executive directors of the Company, namely
Messrs. Ji Yuguang and Cheng Chi Ming, Brian. The responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include setting remuneration policy of the
Group and fixing remuneration packages of the directors of the Company
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. Details of the
remuneration paid to the respective directors are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements. No directors of the Company can determine their
own remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.
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The chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report their findings
and recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included review of the following:

- the proposal for 2012 remuneration adjustment and 2011 bonus
distribution;

- the new service agreements/contracts of Messrs. Ji Yuguang, Li
Jianguo, Lin Yong, Chan Chi On, Poon Mo Yiu, Cheng Chi Ming, Brian,
Man Mo Leung, Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Lau Wai Piu; and

- the service agreements/contracts in respect of the appointment of
Ms. Wang Meijuan, Mr. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel and Mr. Wei Kuo-chiang.

Strategic Development Committee

The Strategic Development Committee is currently composed of
2 non-executive directors, namely Messrs. Ji Yuguang (Chairman of the
Strategic Development Committee) and Cheng Chi Ming, Brian and
2 executive directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Li Jianguo and Lin
Yong. The main responsibility of the Committee is to assist the Board to
formulate medium to long term business development strategies and
directions for the Group.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
namely Mr. Lo Wai Ho is a full time employee of the Company and has
date-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and Managing Director and is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The details
of the Company Secretary is set out in the “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” section on page 70 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control and Risk Management

It is acknowledged that the Board has the ultimate responsibility for the
Group's internal control system and compliance status. Through the Audit

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Committee, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system. To maintain a sound system of internal control
and safeguard our shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets
at all times, the Company has an independent and objective internal
audit team which reviews and monitors all critical aspects of the Group’s

activities and its internal controls.

In addition, the Group has maintained a set of up-to-date operation
manuals with 1SO certification on its major operations. Periodic
assessments are conducted every year to ensure that we are complying
with the standards. As regards the code of conduct of licensed persons,
a set of compliance policies has been published and updated from time
to time to provide guidance on matters such as employee dealings,
ethics code, Chinese wall policy and etc. On a regular basis, audit and
compliance surveillance checks on procedures of the Group's core
operations are conducted.

The Group also adopts very stringent risk management policies and
monitoring systems to contain exposure associated with credit, liquidity,
market and IT systems in all its major operations.

Credit Risk

The Credit Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons who
are charged with the responsibility of approving credit limit for individual
customers. The Committee is responsible for the approval of individual
stocks acceptable for margin lending at a specified ratio. The approved
stock list is updated quarterly, and will be revised as and when deemed
necessary by the Committee. The Committee will prescribe from time to
time lending limits on individual stocks or on any individual customers
and his/her associates.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for monitoring and
making margin calls or repayment demands to customers in a timely
manner. Failure to meet margin calls will result in the liquidation of
the customers’ position. It will also adhere to the Group’s policies and
procedures to conduct periodic credit assessment and manage any
concentration in the following exposures and perform regular reporting
to the Credit Committee:

(i) exposures to a particular client/counterparty or group of related
clients/counterparties

(i) exposures to a particular investment product
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Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity
requirements as prescribed by the authorities. The Group has put in place
monitoring system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to
fund its business commitments and to comply with the relevant Financial

Resources Rules.

As a safeguard, the Group has maintained very substantial long-term
and other stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in its
operations. Even in periods of high market volatility, the management
believes the Group's working capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.

Market Risk

For margin financing business, if the marginable value of a margin
customer’s portfolio falls below his margin loan and the customer fails to
meet margin calls, the Group will be exposed to the defaulter’s liabilities.

For proprietary trading business, the movement of market prices of @

securities (i.e. move up or down) may affect the value of the Group's
proprietary trading portfolio.

Any loss incurred will be charged directly to the Group's Income
Statement. The Group’s exposure to underwriting commitments will also

be affected if the prices of the underlying securities come down.

The Group has adopted a prudent credit risk policy to decide the loan
granted to clients. In case the market value of a margin customer’s
portfolio moves down below the approved margin value, margin call
action would be taken by both business units and the Risk Management
Department. Force-sale action would be taken if the margin customer

fails to meet margin call requirement.

The Group has adopted an investment policy to cap its proprietary
trading, exposed underwriting commitments and position limits for
leveraged foreign exchange and bullion transactions as follows:

®  For proprietary trading
- total investment exposure should not exceed 25% of the
Group's NAV with a cap equivalent to 15% of the Group’s NAV for

non-fixed income financial products (including listed securities

and futures products).

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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e Forexposed underwriting commitments

- underwriting limit per issue should not exceed 25% of the
‘Adjusted NAV” of Haitong International Securities Company
Limited ("HTISC"), being the NAV of HTISC plus the total amount
of subordinated loans granted by the Group from time to time.

e Position limits for leveraged foreign exchange and bullion transactions

[ B BR 2E HRINE BELE Bt

Risk Exposure Limit Leveraged Foreign Exchange Bullion Total
BIRARFR2HEE 3,00083%7T 30008 %7 6,000& 3£ 7T
Intraday Open Position (Net) US$30M US$30M USS60M
FRRATRFE 30008 %7 30008 %T 6,000 £ 7T
Overnight Open Position (Net) USS30M USS$30M USS60M
BARZEERE 6083 TT 0E3ETT 1508 3% 7T
Monthly Trading Loss Limit US$600K USS$900K US$1.5M
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¥ Gross Open Position is 60 times of Liquid Capital

Such policies may be varied at the discretion of the Board.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various
IT systems with equipments housed in a tier 1 data centre provided by
a renowned outsourcing data centre provider. A vigilance team will act
and report to the senior management in accordance with laid-down
procedures in the event of disruption, instability and other situations
which may warrant to trigger contingency procedure to protect interests
of clients.

Taking into account of the changing regulatory environment, the Group
has maintained and constantly updated the operation manuals of its

major operations.

We have also put in place competent compliance, internal audit and
quality assurance teams with their respective aims at carrying out checks
on statutory compliance and Company’s rules and regulations; detecting
systemic risks and recommending policy changes; and implementing
ongoing checks and verification of satisfaction rate of Company’s
prescribed service pledge and standards.
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Insurable Risk

Other than the abovementioned stringent risk management policies and
monitoring systems, the Group has taken up a wide variety of insurance
policies to cover its insurable risks associated with its Hong Kong, Macau
and PRC businesses.

Internal Auditors

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a
major role in monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and
providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated by the senior management. The
head of the internal audit team directly reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to
evaluate risk level on control environment, the internal audit team plans
internal audit schedules annually in consultation with, but independent
of, the senior management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit
Committee for approval. On a yearly basis, the head of the internal audit
team will present a report and express an opinion to the Audit Committee
on the internal control environment of the Group. The annual audit
work plan covers major activities and processes of the Group's operating
business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of
concern identified by the Audit Committee and senior management.

External Auditors

During the year, the Group has engaged its External Auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, to provide the following services and their
respective fees charged are set out as follows:

2 U EE A
Fee charged
BZ12A310LFE

For the year ended 31 December

BR7% 585 20124 20114

Type of Services 2012 2011

FEx FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

SEEZE 3,200 3,840
Audit fee for the Group

IR 330 331

Taxation services

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the shareholders and investors through various channels including
the Company’s annual general meeting. The Chairman, other members
of the Board and external auditors attend the annual general meeting.
The Directors will answer questions raised by the shareholders on the
performance of the Group. The Company holds press and analysts
conferences at least twice a year following the release of interim and full
year results announcements at which the executive directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding

the performance of the Group.

Our corporate website which contains corporate information, interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by the Group as well
as the recent developments of the Group enables the shareholders to
have timely and updated information of the Group. Shareholders can refer
to the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy” posted on the Company’s
website for more details.

Besides, the Company arranges media luncheons, invites media to
attend corporate events, maintains regular communication with them
via interviews and article contribution covering diverse topics and uses
its corporate website to disseminate its press releases, financial and other
information relating to the Group and its business to the public in order
to foster effective communication.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders’ rights are set out in a number of sources, such as the
Bye-laws, the Companies Act 1981 (the “Act”) and the Listing Rules. With
reference to the above sources, the Company sets out below details of
shareholders'rights in the following aspects:—
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The way in which shareholders can convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and Section 74 of the Act,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company at 22/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Principal
Place of Business”) for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The requisition will then be verified with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars and Transfer Office in Hong Kong and upon its
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will forward the requisition to the Board and the Board
shall convene and hold such general meeting within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. Moreover, if within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such general meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders may send their enquiries
and concerns in writing to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary at the Principal Place of Business and the
Company Secretary shall then forward the same to the appropriate
executives of the Company or members in the Board for further
handling.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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3. The procedures for making proposals at shareholders’
meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or a special
general meeting, the shareholders shall submit a written notice of
those proposals with the detail contact information to the Company
Secretary at the Principal Place of Business. The request will be
verified with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

Moreover, the notice period to be given to all the shareholders
for consideration of the proposals submitted by the shareholders
concerned varies as follows pursuant to bye-law 59(1) of the
Bye-laws:

(@) for an annual general meeting and any special general meeting
at which the passing of a special resolution is to be considered,
it shall be called by not less than 21 clear days' notice (the notice
period must include 20 clear business days under the Listing
Rules'requirement); and

(b) for all other special general meetings, they may be called by not
less than 14 clear days' notice (the notice period must include
10 clear business days under the Listing Rules' requirement).

The Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws, no person other than a director
of the Company retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the directors of the Company for election, be eligible for election as a
director of the Company at any general meeting unless written notice
signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such written notice
is given of his intention to propose such person for election and also such
written notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
written notice is given, shall be at least 7 days and that the period for
lodgment of such written notice shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting of the Company, wishes to propose a person
other than a retiring director of the Company for election as a director
of the Company at the annual general meeting, he/she can deposit
a written notice to that effect at the Principal Place of Business of the
Company, 22/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary. In order for the
Company to inform its shareholders of that proposal, the written notice
must state the following:

1. the intention to propose that person for election as a director of the
Company; and
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2. the information of the person proposed for election as a director of
the Company, includes the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be
elected as a director of the Company.

The period for lodgment of such written notice shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the annual
general meeting and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
the annual general meeting. If the written notice is received less
than 14 clear days (10 clear business days under the Listing Rules’
requirement) prior to the annual general meeting, the Company will
need to consider the adjournment of the annual general meeting
in order to allow shareholders 14 clear days' notice (the notice
period must include 10 clear business days under the Listing Rules’
requirement) of the proposal.

Corporate Citizenship

The Group is committed to playing a full role as a responsible market
practitioner in the securities industry. It endorses its senior executives
in accepting public offices of various regulatory advisory boards and/or
associations of the industry. Through their participation, the Group aims
at fostering and promoting the healthy development of the securities
and futures industry of Hong Kong.

As one of Hong Kong’s leading financial institutions, the Group actively
takes part in various community services and makes contributions to
the community. The Group strives to promote a caring culture and help
staff enhance communications and cohesiveness. In order to foster a
caring environment, the “Haitong International Caring Ambassadors”
was formed in 2004, and has organized a variety of community service
activities, which staff have actively participated in. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, members of the Haitong International Caring
Ambassadors and our colleagues took part in caring visits, fund raising
charity programmes and other activities organized by major charities,
such as Community Chest of Hong Kong, Rotary International District
3450, Heep Hong Society, Christian Action Hong Kong, Oxfam Hong
Kong, ORBIS Hong Kong, Hong Kong PHAB Association and YMCA of
Hong Kong. We hope our staff will further develop their potential and
sense of social responsibility through participation in these community
activities.

In respect of environmental protection, the Group formed an
Environmental Committee focusing on developing environmental friendly
measures to conserve resources, minimize waste and carbon emission in
our business operation. The Group organized various used items recycling
activities for donation to charity organizations and strongly promotes
paperless e-communication services among its clients and associates so
as to make the world a greener place to live in.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Through taking a proactive approach in pursuing diversified business
development opportunities for the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group executed a comprehensive plan to maintain well-balanced
business development despite the continued global economic
uncertainty, fast-changing market landscape and strong competition.

Market and Business Development

The Group leveraged its established advantages in retail broking business
to proactively develop its corporate finance, asset management, fixed
income and wealth management businesses and moves toward the
strategic goal of evolving into a modern comprehensive investment bank
in the Greater China Region.

Corporate Finance

Haitong International Capital Limited specializes in the provision of
corporate finance and financial advisory services to listed companies
and private enterprises worldwide, as well as in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Under the impact of the slowing global economy and the
lingering European debt crisis, the Hong Kong market decelerated and
corporate finance activities had significantly reduced. In 2012, there were
only 52 and 12 stocks newly listed on the main board and the GEM of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange respectively. During the period, the Group
remarkably played a key role on 12 IPO projects. Among these projects,
the most prominent project was that the Group successfully completed
the Hong Kong second largest IPO project — Haitong Securities H share
IPO, partnering with other international investment banks, the Group
played important roles such as joint global coordinator, joint sponsor,
joint bookrunner, independent clearing house, and post-IPO stabilizer,
fully attesting to the Group’s management, execution and fund-raising
capabilities in large IPO projects. Additionally, the Group served as the
sole sponsor, global coordinator and joint bookrunner of the Casablanca
IPO; the joint bookrunner of PICC Group H share IPO, Fosun Pharma's
H-share IPO, Future Land Development IPO and Wonderful Sky Financial
IPO; the joint global coordinator and joint bookrunner of Minsheng
Bank H shares placement; the sole sponsor and bookrunner of China
Zhongsheng Resources IPO, and the sole placement agent of Mongolia
Energy Corporation Limited. Among all, the PICC Group H share IPO also
was a spectacular event widely anticipated by the market. It was the largest
IPO fundraising project in Asia (ex-Japan) in 2012.

Successful completion of the H-share IPO project of Haitong Securities
and the PICC Group not only brought considerable revenue to the
Group, but also uplifted the Group’s operation standard on large scale
IPO projects, enhanced the brand awareness of “Haitong International”
among international institutional investors, and opened up a broader
sales network for new projects in the future.
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In addition, the Group also seized the opportunities arising from the
bond market boom to develop its business after factoring in corporate
demands for bond financing. The Group has participated in 2 bond
issuing projects and 3 bond underwriting projects. Moreover, the group
acted as the financial advisor for 49 companies, including a case of
providing comprehensive financing and advisory services to a listed
company on JASDAQ, and assisted the client to acquire a main board
listed company in Hong Kong successfully and created the international

platform.

Benefited from the Group's efforts, the enhancement of the Group’s brand
and recognition from the market and clients. According to Bloomberg’s
ranking, as of December 2012, the Group ranked second in the market
in terms of the number of Hong Kong IPO projects undertaken, and
seventh in terms of the underwriting amount in Hong Kong IPO projects,
and served the role of bookrunner or sponsor or above in 10 IPO
projects, keeping the competitiveness on a par with other internationally
renowned investment banks.
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Asset Management

The Group has extensive asset management experience and offers a full
spectrum of investment products and services, such as public funds, MPF,
private funds, alternative investment funds, Capital Investment Entrant
Scheme (CIES), investment advisory service and discretionary accounts
service. The Group provides comprehensive asset management service
to both institutional and individual clients worldwide. Given the robust
GDP growth in China in the past few years, the demand for China’s
related assets remains huge. In order to capture such liquidity, a number
of authorized funds together with tailor-made private funds have been
established to cater for the needs of different investors. More importantly,
the Group provides dedicated discretionary portfolio management
services to high net worth and institutional clients, encompassing
client risk-return analysis, investment portfolio recommendation and
management, and regular investment reporting. The Group has acquired
approved MPF service provider qualification and offers a diversified
portfolio of MPF products, covering global funds, Asia Pacific funds and
Hong Kong funds.

The Group had launched the first Renminbi-denominated and settled
public fund in Hong Kong in August 2010, and pioneered the successful
roll-out of the first RQFIl product in early 2012. In September 2012, the
Group became the first Mainland-funded broking firm in Hong Kong
to be granted the QFIl qualification. Moreover, the Group was granted
approval to issue the first RQFLP fund in China. As such, the Group
became the world’s only Mainland-funded institution to own all of the
RQFII, QFIl and RQFLP qualifications during the period.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Fixed Income

The Fixed Income Department established in early 2012 focuses on
investing and trading of varies fixed income products. Backed with a
sound risk management system and close monitoring of the changes
of the macroeconomic cycles and the international capital markets, the
Group identifies investment opportunities through in-depth fundamental
analysis. On one hand, in order to substain stable income, the Group
applies prudent trading and investing strategies by participating in
primary and secondary markets within the Greater China region. On the
other hand, the Group proactively develops and provides comprehensive
fixed income products and services to the institutional and individual

clients.

Broking

The Group provides innovative and comprehensive financial products
and services to over 160,000 global institutional and individual investors.
Services include securities and derivatives, futures and options, funds,
bonds, forex and bullion, IPO and placing, online trading, margin
financing, wealth management, nominee and custodian services and

research etc.

The Group always embraces technological innovation aiming to offer
speed, convenience and flexibility to clients. The Group has taken a
proactive approach in further developing and upgrading its online
platform. During the period, the Group upgraded the securities trading
platform. Being a one-stop online trading platform, it comes with many
advanced features which help clients conduct online trading and account
management with ease. In April 2012, the Group also launched a brand
new US. stock online trading platform and U.S. stock financing services.
The modified online US. stock trading platform was designed to better
accommodate the trading practice of local and mainland clients, satisfy
the various investment and margin financing demands of clients and
drive up the Group’s online U.S. stock trading volume. With the increasing
popularity of mobile devices in recent years, smart phone and tablet
computer users are rising rapidly. In keeping pace with this new trend,
the Group launched ETNet smart phone securities trading applications
in July 2012 which enable clients to capture every market opportunity
by investing in Hong Kong stocks anytime and anywhere. The Group has
covered both i-devices and Android OS applications on all our broking
products of securities, futures, forex and bullion.
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The Group’s branch network in Hong Kong and Macau.
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Wealth Management

The wealth management arm of the Group provides comprehensive
wealth management services for clients to meet their individual financial
targets and needs. Among these services, Privilege Client Portfolio
Management Service is managed by experienced investment specialists,
who strive to enhance clients' investment returns and reduce investment
risks by timely adjusting their investment portfolios subject to market
changes and client needs.

Currently, wealth management services encompass a wide array of
products and services, including global funds, investment-linked
insurance plans, stocks, bonds, trusts, MPF schemes and insurance,
tailored to fully support multiple facets of the client needs. Additionally,
it specializes in one-stop professional immigration consulting services,
ranging from immigration advisory, assisting in processing applications,
to offering investment advice and related arrangement going forward.

Mainland Market

The PRC market is the key focus of the Group's business strategy. Through
active participation in seminars, forums and exhibitions in major cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Hangzhou, as well as
second-tier cities such as Chongging, Kunming, Shenyang, Tianjin, Dalian,
Fuzhou, the Group has begun the process of building brand recognition
and presence.
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The Group’s investment consultancy centre network in China.
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Leveraging on the progressive market reforms in China, such as
promoting QFIl, QDII, RQFIl and RQFLP, gradual roll-out of stock futures
index, margin financing and short selling, and cross border ETF, together
with the strong demand of mainland enterprises to be listed in Hong
Kong, the Group is well positioned to benefit from these enormous
opportunities.

Research Service

Haitong International Research Limited specializes in providing investors
with in-depth and timely reports on macroeconomic and equity analysis
and research covering the Greater China market. Research reports are
produced independently to help investors make informed investment
decisions.

The Group has strong commitment on bringing high quality research.
As a result, the Group has invested substantial resources to build an elite
research team. The Group recruited prestigious economists in the sector
during the period to strengthen its research capability in macroeconomics
and strategies, whilst expanding its coverage to 9 industry segments
(namely real estate, machinery, consumer, automotive, non-bank financial,
gaming and hospitality, media, food and conglomerates) and 132 listed
companies. The division also published various market information,
macroeconomic analysis reports, strategy analysis reports and industry
research reports regularly and frequently. The research reports of the
Group have gained wide recognition in the industry for providing insight,
depth, and timeliness, and have received increasing exposure in the
high-end and mainstream media. At the end of 2011 and 2012, the Group
was awarded the prize for “Best Equity House for Research Team” by
Hong Kong Commercial Daily and “Best Overseas Research Team”in <The
Tst International Financial Annual Champion Awards> by Hexun.com
respectively. These awards affirm the Group's superiority of the market
and stock analysis.

Human Capital Management

Staff Learning and Development

The Group always treasures human resources as its most valuable asset,
and believes sound human capital management, which will improve staff
productivity and loyalty, and will ultimately translate into business growth
and customer satisfaction. Therefore, the Group consistently provides staff
with ample training opportunities by various workshops, seminars and
classes in the fields of management skills, product knowledge, industry
trends, language proficiency and computer application.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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The Group consistently provides staff with ample training

opportunities.

BRERESEEERAR & Fi52012

To assist the Group’'s senior and middle management staff to borden their
international horizon, the Group had launched “Elite Program” in 2012.
The Program offers training subsidy to senior and middle management
staff with leadership potential, and capability of assisting long-term
strategic development plan of the Group. The Group encourages them
to participate in the PhD/Master’s program hosted by domestic and
overseas renowned universities and leadership development courses, in
order to enhance their advanced management concepts and expand
their external social network, so as to promote the internationalization of
the Group management.

The Group had completed the latest term of management trainee
program. After a year of off-the-job training and departmental internship,
the 6 graduates have been allocated to different departments to exert
their talents. The program result is remarkable.

In light of its development of the China market, the Group also provided
training sessions to the PRC staff in the areas of corporate information,
business ethics, performance management, presentation skills, etc.

Professional Standards

The group invited professionals to organize internal training sessions
covering different topics such as global market conditions, new products
and regulatory ordinance to fulfill the Continuous Professional Training
(CPT) requirements for SFC licensed persons; and Continuing Professional
Development (CPD) requirements for MPF Intermediaries and Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Registration System. In addition, given that staff
is the most valuable asset, the Group always encourages staff to achieve
the annual target of training hours per year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the course of 40 years since the Group was established, corporate
social responsibility has become embedded in Haitong International’s
culture. The Group has committed considerable resources towards
professional development, nurturing talents, promoting environmental
protection, helping needy people in the community etc.

Professional Development

Board members and senior management actively participate in various
working committees of local regulatory bodies and are frequently
invited by various public organizations, professional bodies and the
sector, trade associations, financial institutions and the media to give
speeches in seminars and forums across Hong Kong and China. A diverse
range of topics has been covered, including listing issues and corporate
financing, corporate governance, global investment strategies and wealth
management etc.

Investor Education

Protecting clients’ assets is the Group's top priority. The Group takes
a proactive "multi-market, multi-channel and multi-level” approach
in investor education. The Group has been teaming up with other
market practitioners to organize investment seminars, workshops and
discussion forums across the board, in order to increase the awareness
and investment knowledge of the general public, professionals of
various international and local institutions as well as our staff. The Group
will continuously deliver investor education to ensure that clients are
aware the potential risks of products and services before making their
investment decision, and to do its utmost to meet their investment needs
in the most professional manner.

EETBIRIREERNS  BRRZERETN G - HEMwmiE -

The Group proactively promotes investor education through investment seminars,

workshops and discussion forums.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Haitong International Caring Ambassadors organize and

participate in various community and charity activities.

BRERESEEERAR & Fi52012

Employee-Friendly Policies

The Group always cares about the psychological and physical well-being
of all staff and encourages them to achieve work-life balance. “Haitong
International Staff Club” regularly organized social and recreational
activities for staff and their families’ participation. These initiatives have
brought benefits to staff on stress reduction, more opportunity for

self-development, as well as more time for family gathering.

As an advocate of caring culture, the Group emphasizes the caring of
employees. To further fulfill its promise in this regard, the Group set up
a “Staff Care Fund” during the Period to assist staff or their immediate
family members suffering from adversities, such as fatal diseases or
serious accidents that lead to serious financial difficulties to overcome the
adversity.

Social and Community Services

The volunteer team “Haitong International Caring Ambassadors”
organized a variety of community services and fund-raising activities. The
fellow colleagues of the Group participated in proactively. The services
benefited many charitable organizations, including the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, Rotary International District 3450, Heep Hong Society,
Christian Action, Oxfam Hong Kong, ORBIS Hong Kong and Hong Kong
PHAB Association etc.
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Environmental Protection

The Group organized and supported a host of environmental protection
activities, including the “Community Chest Green Day” organized by
the Community Chest of Hong Kong, which encouraged the staff to
"Act Green & Live Green”; also, the Group and YMCA of Hong Kong
co-organized “The toy recycling and donation activity” to donate the
toys to the children with lack of resource and to promote environmental
protection as well as charitable cause.

Education

To provide training and exchange opportunities for Hong Kong and
Shanghai financial talents, the Group participated in the “Scheme for
Cross-border Study Tour for Post-Secondary Financial Talents” led by
the Shanghai Financial Service Office and the Financial Services and
the Treasury Bureau of the government of HKSAR. The Group arranged
4 university exchange students majoring in finance from Shanghai to
receive a 4 weeks internship training providing them opportunities to
understand the Hong Kong financial market operation.

Awards and Achievements

The Group has won numerous accolades for its outstanding achievements
in innovation and service excellence. The Group has been named the “Best
Equity House in Hong Kong” by numerous international, mainland and
local institutions for 13 consecutive years. The Group received the “Best
Equity House in Hong Kong” awards by metroBOX magazine; the “Top
Ten Online Trading Equity House in Hong Kong Stocks 2011” awards by
QQ.COM; the “Excellent Brand of Equity House Award” by Metro Finance;
the "Most Popular Hong Kong Stock Investment Institution” Award by
CNFOL.com; the “Best Chinese Investment Bank’, “Best Overseas Research
Team”and “Best Equity House in Hong Kong”awards by Hexun.com.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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The Group received the “Excellent Brand of Equity House Award”

by Metro Finance.

BRERESEEERAR & Fi52012

On the quality management aspect, as early as 1999, the Group was
the first securities firm in Hong Kong and China to acquire 1SO9002
Quality Management System Certification, which was later upgraded to
1SO9001:2008 Certification in 2009.

The Group is renowned for its outstanding achievements in information
technology application. The Group won “The Most Valuable Enterprise
for E-commerce 2010" award from 2 Mainland IT magazines “Business
Value” and “IT Value', in recognition of the Group’s efforts in developing
electronic commerce business and establishing corporate added value.

With regard to environmental protection, the Group was also awarded
the “Class of Excellence” WastewiSe Label of the "Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence” organized by the Environmental Campaign
Committee and the Environmental Protection Department. This label
is a further proof of the Group's commitment to waste reduction and

environment protection.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Directors

Executive Directors

LI Jianguo, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 13 January 2010 and a Deputy Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company on 10 March 2010. He is also a member of
the Strategic Development Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a
Doctorate Degree in Economics from Xi'an Jiaotong University. He has
21 years of experience in securities industry. Mr. Li was a general manager
of Henan Securities Co., Ltd. from 1992 to 1998. He joined Haitong
Securities Co,, Ltd. in 1998 and served as the deputy general manager
of Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. from 1998 to 1999. Mr. Li was the vice
president and the general manager of Fullgoal Fund Management Co,
Ltd. from 1999 to 2008. Mr. Li has been the assistant to the general
manager of Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. and the chairman of the board of
directors of Haitong International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
“Hai Tong (HK) Financial Holdings Limited”) since 2008 and the deputy
chairman of the board of directors of Haitong International Holdings
Limited since 9 August 2010.

LIN Yong, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 23 December 2009 and the Joint Managing Director of the
Company on 10 March 2010. He has been a Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the Managing Director of the Company as well
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group since 29 April 2011. He is also
the Chairman of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Strategic Development Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lin is
the chairman of the board of directors or a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and a responsible officer of Hai Tong Asset Management
(HK) Limited, Hai Tong Capital (HK) Limited, Haitong International
Asset Management Limited and Haitong International Capital Limited
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lin holds a Doctorate
Degree in Economics from Xi'an Jiaotong University. He has 17 years of
experience in investment bank industry. Mr. Lin joined Haitong Securities
Co,, Ltd. in 1996 and was a general manager of the Investment Banking
Department of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Lin
is one of the first batch of sponsor representatives of China Securities
Regulatory Committee. He has been the chief executive officer of Haitong
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Hai Tong (HK) Financial
Holdings Limited”) since 2007 and is responsible for the overall operation
of Haitong International Holdings Limited. Mr. Lin also concurrently serves
as a member of the advisory committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission. In 2006, Mr. Lin was named 2006 Top Ten Outstanding
Young Person in Financial Sector in Shanghai (20065 /& & fE+ A%
B B ). He acts as an adjunct professor in Management College
of Xiamen University since 12 May 2010. Mr. Lin was an independent
non-executive director of Shenzhen Laibao Hi-Tech Co,, Ltd., which is a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, up to his resignation in
April 2010. He was also an independent non-executive director of Mingfa
Group (International) Company Limited from 9 October 2009 to 20 May
2011. The shares of this company are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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POON Mo Yiu, aged 48, joined the Group in August 2008 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2009. He
is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group as well as a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Poon holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
is a fellow of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England &
Wales. Mr. Poon has extensive experience in financial management,
management of information systems, accounting projects as well as
various aspects of mergers and acquisitions. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Poon worked for Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited as the Group Chief
Operating Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer. He was also
previously the Vice President in Finance of JPMorgan Chase Bank and
the Group Financial Controller of Jardine Fleming Group in Asia before
its merger with JPMorgan Chase Bank. Mr. Poon was an executive
director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited from
28 September 2006 to 3 July 2007. The shares of this company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

HUI Yee, Wilson, aged 53, joined the Group in 1995 and was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 29 April 2011. He is the
Director of Sales and Marketing for the Group as well as a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Hui is
the Managing Director of Haitong International Futures Limited and
Haitong International Securities Company Limited. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and a responsible officer of
Haitong International Futures Limited and Haitong International Securities
Company Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Hui is
responsible for the development and management of the Group's retail
broking business. Mr. Hui holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics and
Management Studies from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Hui possessed 14 years of experience in the banking and
securities industries. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute as well as a director of
The Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers Limited.
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Non-executive Directors

JI Yuguang, aged 55, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company on 13 January 2010 and the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company on 29 April 2011. He is also the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Strategic Development Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Ji
holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Beijing Vocational College
of Finance and Commerce. He has 29 years of experience in finance and
commerce industry. Mr. Ji had worked for Beijing Municipal Planning
Economy Committee (currently known as “Beijing Municipal Committee
of Development and Reform”) for 6 years and Bank of Communications
Beijing Branch for 8 years. Mr. Ji joined Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. in
1995 and was the general manager of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Beijing
Langjiayuan Branch from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Ji has been the deputy
general manager of Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. since 1997 and a director
of the Overseas Business Committee of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.
since February 2011. In addition, Mr. Ji has been a director of Haitong
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Hai Tong (HK) Financial
Holdings Limited”) since 9 August 2010 and the chairman of the board of
directors of Haitong International Holdings Limited since 17 March 2011.

CHENG Chi Ming, Brian, aged 30, joined the Group in June 2009 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2009.
He was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
on 13 January 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Strategic Development Committee of the Company.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from Babson College
in Massachusetts, U.S.A. Mr. Cheng was a non-executive director
of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited from 19 January 2011 to
30 August 2011. He is currently an executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited and a non-executive director of Fook Woo Group Holdings
Limited and Newton Resources Ltd. The shares of all these companies are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Cheng is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of NWS Holdings Limited. He is mainly
responsible for overseeing the infrastructure business and the merger
and acquisition affairs of NWS Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. In
addition, Mr. Cheng is a director of Sino-French Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, Sino-French Energy Development Company Limited, The Macao
Water Supply Company Limited as well as a director of a number of
companies in Mainland China. Mr. Cheng had previously been working
as a research analyst in the Infrastructure and Conglomerates sector for
CLSA Asia-Pacific Markets.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Wang Meijuan, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 1 September 2012 and is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. She holds a Bachelor Degree and a Master
Degree from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Wang
is a senior accountant in the People’s Republic of China and possesses
the qualification of securities practitioner in the People’s Republic of
China. She has worked as a lecturer for the department of management
engineering of the Shanghai Institute of Building Materials and the senior
manager of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants Co. Ltd. Ms. Wang has
over 11 years of experience in the securities industry. From May 2001 to
June 2003, she worked respectively as the assistant to general manager
and the deputy general manager of the audit department of Haitong
Securities Company Limited. After joining Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. in
July 2003, Ms. Wang has worked as the deputy general manager of the
monitoring and audit department, the deputy general manager of the
risk control headquarters and the chief inspector and the deputy general
manager for risk control. From 28 September 2004 to 12 May 2011, she
had been an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Forte
Land Co. Ltd, the shares of which were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited from February 2004 to 13 May 2011. Currently,
Ms. Wang is respectively the director and the chief supervisor of Haitong
Kaiyuan Investment Co,, Ltd. and Haitong Futures Co, Ltd., the group
companies of Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd., and a member of the Brokerage
Business Committee of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. and the general
manager of the audit department of Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd.

Independent Non-executive Directors

TSUI Hing Chuen, William Jp, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2004 and is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsui is
the founder partner of Messrs. Lo, Wong & Tsui, Solicitors & Notaries since
1980. He has been a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1977,
a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England & Wales since 1980 as well as
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia since
1983. He has also been an advocate and solicitor of the Supreme Court of
Republic of Singapore since 1985 and a notary public appointed by the
Archbishop of Canterbury, England since 1988. Mr. Tsui was appointed
as a Justice of Peace by the Government of Hong Kong in 1997.
Mr. Tsui is currently an independent non-executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation, Mongolia Energy Corporation
Limited and Vision Values Holdings Limited (formerly known as “New
World Mobile Holdings Limited”). The shares of all these companies are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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LAU Wai Piu, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2006 and is a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He possesses over 20 years of extensive
experience in accounting and financial management. Mr. Lau is currently
an independent non-executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation, Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited and Vision Values
Holdings Limited (formerly known as “New World Mobile Holdings
Limited”). The shares of all these companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

LIN Ching Yee, Daniel, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2012 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Lin graduated
from the University of Oxford and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Engineering Science. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Lin is currently the managing partner of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, a member firm of Grant Thornton
International Ltd. During working in London of the United Kingdom and
Hong Kong, he has gained over 27 years of experience in auditing, initial
public offering, financial consulting and management and has been a
partner in various large international accounting firms in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lin is currently a member of the Professional Conduct Committee,
the Audit Profession Reform Working Group, the 40th Anniversary Task
Force, HKICPA Branding in China Advisory Group and the Convenor of the
Editorial Advisory Group of the HKICPA.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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WEI Kuo-chiang, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2012 and
is a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
was awarded a Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Finance from the
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the United States, a
Master of Business Administration Degree in Finance from the National
Chengchi University in Taiwan, and a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in
Industrial Management from the National Taiwan University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Wei is currently the Chair Professor of Finance
and Director of Master of Science (Financial Analysis)/(Investment
Management) Programs, Director of Hainan Center, and Associate Director
of Value Partners Center for Investing at the Department of Finance at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology ("HKUST"). He previously
acted as professor, associate professor or assistant professor of finance at
a number of prestigious colleges, including the University of Mississippi,
the University of Miami and the Indiana University at Bloomington/
Indianapolis in the United States as well as the HKUST, and also served as
Director of the Center for Asian Financial Markets at the HKUST for many
years. Mr. Wei has written a number of research papers on issues such as
the United States and Global Capital Markets and Pricing of Assets and
was also a column writer on Hong Kong stock market and warrant trading
for Hong Kong Economic Journal for many years. Moreover, he assisted to
develop wealth management and investment models for, among others,
Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and also organized and conducted a consultancy
project for the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation. Mr. Wei has been a council
member of Chinese Finance Annual Meeting and Global Chinese Real
Estate Congress since 2004 and 2008 respectively.

Senior Management

ZHANG Xinjun, aged 37, joined the Group in April 2010 and was
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in September 2010.
He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company as well
as a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds
a postgraduate Master Degree in Management from the Department
of Accounting of Nankai University. He is a Chinese Middle Grade
Accountant and has extensive experience in financial accounting, finance
management and merger and acquisition. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhang worked at the Finance and Accounting Department of Haitong
Securities Co, Ltd. and has been the Chief Financial Officer of Haitong
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Hai Tong (HK) Financial
Holdings Limited") since January 2008.
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SUN Jianfeng, aged 36, joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for the development and management of the Group’s corporate
finance division. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. In addition, Mr. Sun is a director of Hai Tong Capital (HK)
Limited and Haitong International Capital Limited as well as a responsible
officer of Hai Tong Capital (HK) Limited and Haitong International Capital
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Sun holds a
Master of Economics from Xi'an Jiaotong University and is a chartered
sponsor representative in the PRC equity market. He possesses extensive
experience in corporate finance industry. He participated and completed
a number of IPOs in Hong Kong and China.

SUN Tong, aged 36, is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company, and the Managing Director of Haitong International Securities
Company Limited as well as a responsible officer of Haitong International
Securities Company Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
He is responsible for assisting and deputizing the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group to take charge of the overall operation and development
of Haitong International Securities Company Limited. Mr. Sun graduated
with a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science from Nanjing Normal
University and finished a Postgraduate Program of Finance at Shanghai
Fudan University. He has 12 years of experience in securities industry.
Mr. Sun joined Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. in 2000. He was the senior
manager of the president office and the secretary to president of Haitong
Securities Co,, Ltd. from 2007 to April 2010. Mr. Sun has been the assistant
general manager of Haitong International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as “Hai Tong (HK) Financial Holdings Limited”) since 2010 and
responsible for frontline business.

WU Kwok Leung, aged 58, is the Head of Retail Business of the Group,
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company, the Managing
Director of Haitong International Securities Company Limited and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a responsible
officer of Haitong International Securities Company Limited under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau (currently
known as the “University of Macau”) and a Diploma of Management for
Executive Development from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
has more than 25 years of experience in the field of banking and finance.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Wu held senior position with various
financial institutions. He was formerly Vice-President of First Pacific Bank
Limited, Commercial Banking Group and Chief Operations Manager of
The Sanwa Bank Limited. He is currently a committee member of the
Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association and also a member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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LO Wai Ho, aged 50, is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of
the Group, a member of the Executive Committee of the Company and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
financial management, company secretarial, accounting and settlement
function of the Group. Mr. Lo holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Columbia Southern University in US.A. and a Professional
Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He has over 25 years’ experience in the securities and futures industry.
Prior to joining the Group in April 2004, Mr. Lo has held senior positions
in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

ZHANG Yibin, aged 41, joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for the Group's asset management business. He was appointed as the
Managing Director of Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited, Haitong
International Asset Management Limited and Haitong International
Investment Managers Limited in 2012. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company and a responsible officer of Hai
Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited, Haitong International Asset
Management Limited and Haitong International Investment Managers
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhang worked at China Merchants Fund in Shenzhen China
as Head of International Business in 2009 and 2010. Mr. Zhang holds
Ph.D. in Financial Economics from Duke University in the United States.
Before relocating back to China, he worked at various financial services
companies in New York, including Moody's KMV, UBS and Fitch Ratings.

LAU Chi Keung, aged 52, is the Head of Internal Audit and Special
Projects of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a Master of Applied Finance Degree
from the University of Western Sydney. He has over 25 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and financial management. Mr. Lau is a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute.



EEMARRZHZ2012F12ANBIEFENE
HE RN F EAE BN EEZTER

# 1)

==
=]

o

PRI

RARRMEEEBRRIREER - HWB AT
FTEXEBRPEFES  HERMESOKELRE
E REAFRREMUBEE  RBHELES
#l EERBHERE EeBANEREER
5 ERINEEE BHREBARRERS -
REESETE  REVBREIRFBHRS - A
LEEBEHEE c AEEREZE2012912H31H8
IFFEERANFEEBEETRERES -

FERKE

AREFEE20129F12 A3 H IEFERHF R AA
A EAREE N Z B NP BUOR RSN B S iRER 592
Z2E7H

RABIEFGHARZEMMN2013F4H298 E5
RARIRRZMARE - IREFH E2012612H
3N A I FE AR E S 68,650,703 7T © 1R
BIRBEEITRMEE 4915342, 7060851 H -
HEWNRFNAJBLEFEZ2RBEREK AT
B&7 578l (1A B £ %8 7] g2 AR & A1 R 20134F
4R29B K RIBEITTEMCETHURFEDE
TIROEE M TLAFE) - Bt - ERR20129F
9R18HIRT 2 P HARR B E RSBl - BE 20125
NRAMNBIEFEZREDIREEK RER1558
il (AT FEAE) -

¥R R B AR BB AR B BE SRR FE B AR SR A
R EHAER - FRMER - RERR B8 20134F
5821 BRIEIRAT °

EEEHREE
Report of the Board of Directors

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries comprise securities, futures and
options contracts broking and trading, the provision of margin and other
financing, the provision of corporate advisory, placing and underwriting
services, bullion contracts dealing and trading, leveraged foreign
exchange trading, the provision of nominee and custodian services,
the provision of fund management, the provision of financial planning
and advisory services and proprietary securities trading. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Results and dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group on that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 92 to 207.

The Board of the Company has resolved to recommend a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 in the total amount of
HK$68,650,703 which shall be paid to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 29 April 2013. Based on
the existing number of issued shares of 915,342,706, the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 shall amount to HK7.5 cents per
share (subject to adjustment as a result of any corporate actions of the
Company affecting the number of issued shares on or before 29 April
2013) and accordingly, together with the interim dividend of HK8 cents
per share paid on 18 September 2012, the total dividend payout for
the year ended 31 December 2012 will thus be HK15.5 cents per share
(subject to adjustment).

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s

shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final
dividend will be paid on or about 21 May 2013.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Closure of register of members for entitlement
to attend and vote at annual general meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
17 April 2013 to Friday, 19 April 2013, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, unregistered holders
of the shares of the Company should ensure that all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars and Transfer Office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 April 2013.

Closure of register of members for entitlement
to the proposed final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
25 April 2013 to Monday, 29 April 2013, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of the shares of the
Company should ensure that all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrars and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
24 April 2013.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
previous 10 financial periods/years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 208 of this
Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

Charitable contributions

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group made charitable
contributions totalling HK$5,000.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$106,293,000, of which
HK$68,650,703 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2012. In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$1,786,679,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Fixed assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2012, together with the reasons thereof, are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed
securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2012 other than as an agent for clients of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year ended 31 December 2012 under review, the revenue
attributable to the 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2012.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's 5 largest customers.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the
directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group's
suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors:
Li Jianguo

Lin Yong

Poon Mo Yiu

Hui Yee, Wilson

Lee Yiu Wing

Chan Chi On

(resigned on 1 September 2012)
(resigned on 1 January 2013)

Non-executive directors:
JiYuguang
Cheng Chi Ming, Brian

Wang Meijuan
Wu Bin
Chen Chungian

appointed on 1 September 2012)
resigned on 1 September 2012)

(

(

(resigned on 1 September 2012)
Hiroki Miyazato (resigned on 1 September 2012)
Independent non-executive directors:
Tsui Hing Chuen, William
Lau Wai Piu
Lin Ching Yee, Daniel (appointed on 31 December 2012)
Wei Kuo-chiang (appointed on 31 December 2012)

Man Mo Leung (resigned on 31 December 2012)
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Report of the Board of Directors

According to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Messrs. Lin Ching Yee, Daniel
and Wei Kuo-chiang who were both appointed on 31 December 2012
shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. In addition, pursuant to bye-laws 87(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws,
Messrs. Lin Yong, Hui Yee, Wilson, Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Lau Wai
Piu shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 63 to 70 of this Annual
Report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is for a duration that may exceed 3 years or which
requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract, give a
notice period of more than 1 year or pay compensation or make other

payments equivalent to more than 1 year’s emoluments.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2012.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:
b N The Company
RN
RERE 2HERT
fTEIR BRAHY
FrEEm BABA
FERAEE HERAEE Approximate
Number of shares held Number of percentage of the
BARE ZREER ARER underlying shares Company’s total
EEHE R EER Personal Family ~ Corporate held under equity By issued share
Name of directors Class of shares interests  interests interests derivatives Total capital
s BhRiE - - - 499,561 (Fit&E1) 499,561 0.5
JiYuguang Share options (Note 1)
3= BiRiE - - - 799,297 (FizE1) 799,297 009
Li Jianguo Share options (Note 1)
R fEhRE - - - 799,297 (FffzE1) 799,297 009
Lin Yong Share options (Note 1)
BREZ LR ek 879485 - - 3052393 (i7E3) 3931878 043
Chan Chi On Ordinary shares/ (fitEE2) (Note 3)
share options (Note 2)
BRE Bk - - - 1198946 (F13E1) 1,198,946 013
Poon Mo Yiu Share options (Note 1)
iHE Bk - - - 2034927 (HizE4) 2034927 022
Hui Yee, Wilson Share options (Note 4)
it BhRiE - - - 499,561 (IZE1) 499,561 005
Cheng Chi Ming, Brian  Share options (Note 1)
"E2 BiRE - - - 499,561 (Rt k1) 499,561 005
Tsui Hing Chuen, William - Share options (Note 1)
2% BhE - - - 499,561 (PfzE1) 499,561 005
Lau Wai Piu Share options (Note 1)
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Notes:

1. These shares would be allotted and issued to the relevant director upon the
exercise in full of the share options granted to the relevant director under
the 2002 share option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of
which remained exercisable as at 31 December 2012, were exercisable at the
subscription price of HK$4.854 per share during the period from 3 March 2011
to 2 March 2019.

2. These shares are held by Mr. Chan Chi On as beneficial owner.

3. These shares might be allotted and issued to Mr. Chan Chi On upon the
exercise in full of the share options granted to Mr. Chan under the 2002 share
option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 31 December 2012, were exercisable as to (i) 1,553,711 share
options at the subscription price of HK$5.879 per share during the period
from 1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016; and (i) 1,498,682 share options at the
subscription price of HK$4.854 per share during the period from 3 March
2011 to 2 March 2019. Mr. Chan Chi On resigned as executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2013. Pursuant to the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, a total of 3,052,393 share options held by Mr. Chan Chi On lapsed on
31 January 2013.

4. These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Hui Yee, Wilson upon the
exercise in full of the share options granted to Mr. Hui under the 2002 share
option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 31 December 2012, were exercisable as to (i) 1,035,806
share options at the subscription price of HK$5.879 per share during the
period from 1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016; and (i) 999,121 share options at the
subscription price of HK$4.854 per share during the period from 3 March 2011
to 2 March 2019.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors
or their associates had registered any other interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed "Directors'interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above and “Share
option schemes” below, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2012 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Share option schemes

On 23 August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”).
A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, as
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules, is set out as follows:

Purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme:

To attract, retain and motivate talented employees to strive towards long
term performance targets set by the Company and its subsidiaries and
at the same time to allow the participants to enjoy the results of the
Company attained through their effort and contribution.

Participants of the 2002 Share Option Scheme:
Any full time employees, executive and non-executive directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
2002 Share Option Scheme and percentage of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at the date of this

annual report:

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit") but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders at
general meetings to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, save that the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
by directors of the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company at general meetings where such limit
is refreshed. Options previously granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit as refreshed.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid in this paragraph, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 71,503,270 shares,
which represented approximately 7.81% of the issued share capital of the
Company at that day.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
2002 Share Option Scheme:

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of the Company’s shares in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company at a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue at the date on which such grant is proposed by the board of
directors or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date on which such grant is proposed by the
board of directors) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at a general meeting of
the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option and the minimum period for which an

option must be held before it can be exercised:

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the
board of directors, and such period shall commence not earlier than
6 months from the date of the grant of the options and expire not later
than 10 years after the date of grant of the options.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans for such purposes
must be paid:

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days from
the date of the offer upon payment of a consideration of HK$1 by the
grantee.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012



RS-

Report of the Board of Directors

WETEENEE

BRENTEEHESSEE  THLIR T
BEENRSEUE - ()RR RRMNNEL B AR B
R RBERMATOETE (AR ERD
REZZHBRMASERS ARBIMETHRE
R FIERTHE - R (i) AR BB EE

2002 F fE IR REGT IR 1 ¢

20024F B PR AE 5t &1 7A2012F8 A 228 f@iw o A
i+ F20024F BE AR 5T & JE i BT I A BB AR A
IRIR IR 2T BB IR T LATTIE -

2002F FE R HERT B T BB E R B E= 201212 A

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the board of
directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the offer date; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of

the Company’s shares.

The remaining life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme:
The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 22 August 2012. However, the
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to its
expiry are still exercisable pursuant to the terms of this scheme.

Details of the movement of share options under the 2002 Share Option

JTHIEFERAMERINT Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2012 were as follows:
FRRRE
Price of Company’s shares***
BREHE FEBRE REBRE
Number of share options REASE  AFERSM
RER  RER  RER RER Roong BRE Atimmediately Atimmediately
SREN R0 Rit it (il %% 128318 BRE BRE  THEE*  preceding  preceding
HEER 1818 Granted  Adjusted  Exercised  Lapsed At Rt A% TESBR Exercseprice  thegrant  the exercise
Name or category At 1 January during during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share date of date of
of participants 212 theyear  theyear  theyear theyear 2012 share options*  of share options  options**  share options  share options
sREr  SkEr  BRiEn
HKS pershare— HKS pershare HKS per share
g2
Directors
s 499561 - - - L) VIR WNEA3AE 4854 479 il
JiYuguang 3 September 2010 019E3A2H N/A
3March 2011 -
2 March 2019
FEE 799297 - - - - 79097 MOFIAA  WNE3A3AZ 4854 479 Oyli
Li Jianguo 3 September 2010 019E3F2H N/A
3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
R 799297 - - - - 797 DOFIAE WNE3AIRE 485 479 AR
Lin Yong 3 September 2010 019E3428 N/A
3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019

SRERESEEERAR P Fif2012



E=gWmEE

Report of the Board of Directors

FRTARE

Price of Company’s shares***
BRER RRERE RuBRE
Number of share options REASE  AFEREE
RER  RER RER RER RoonE BRE Atimmediately Atimmediately
S5EN R0 Rit it (il %% 128318 BhRE BRE  7HE*  preceding  preceding
HE R 1818 Granted  Adjusted  Exercised  Lapsed At Rt A% TESR Exerdseprice  thegrant  theexercise
Name or category - At 1January during during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share date of date of
of participants 212 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2012 share options*  of share options options™  share options  share options

sREr  SkEr  BREn
HKS pershare  HKS pershare HKS per share

£
Directors
TF 1553711 = = = - 15 NWENRAIE  008F6ATIRZ 5879 569 Byl
Chan Chi On () 1 December2007 016E5A31H N/A
(Note 1) 1 June 2008 -
31 May 2016
1498682 - - - - 149868 WIOE9AE  0NE3A3HEE 4854 479 TER
(fzF1) 3 September2010 01983828 N/A
(Note 1) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
ERZ 1198946 = = = - 1199 WOEIAE  0E3F3EE 4854 479 TR
Poon Mo Yiu 3 September 2010 019E3A2H N/A
3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
Ei 1,035,806 - = = - 1035806 W7EIRIE 008E6AIRR 5879 569 TR
Hui Yee, Wilson 1 December2007 2016574318 N/A
1 June 2008 -
31 May 2016
999,121 - = - - 1] WOEIAE  0NE3A3EE 4854 479 TER
3 September 2010 019E3A2H N/A
3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
L 499561 = = - - 49951 WOEAE  0NE3A3EZ 4854 479 TR
Cheng ChiMing, 3 September 2010 W19E3A28 N/A
Brian 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
YER 499561 = = = - 499561 WOEIAE  011E3F3AZ 4854 479 Byl
Man Mo Leung (F2) 3 September 2010 019F3A2H N/A
(Note 2) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
G-k 499561 = = = - 499561 WOEIAE  0NE3F3EE 4854 479 Bl
Tsui Hing Chuen, 3 September 2010 019E3428 N/A
William 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
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FRARE
Price of Company’s shares***
EREHE FEBRE REBRE
Number of share options REASE  AFEREE
RER  RER RER RER RoonE BRE Atimmediately Atimmediately
S5EN R0 Rit it (il %% 128318 BhRE BRE  7HE*  preceding  preceding
HE R 1818 Granted  Adjusted  Exercised  Lapsed At Rt A% TESR Exerdseprice  thegrant  theexercise
Name or category - At 1January during during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share date of date of
of participants 212 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2012 share options*  of share options options™  share options  share options
sREr  SkEr  BREn
HKS pershare  HKS pershare HKS per share
g2
Directors
8RB 499561 - - - - 4%l VIR WNE3A3AE 4854 479 yili
Lau Wai Piu 3 September 2010 019F3A2H N/A
3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
FiER 1553711 - - - (153) - WENRAIR  008F6AI1AZ 5879 569 Oli
Lee YiuWing L= 1 December2007 201685 A31H N/A
(Note 3) 1 June 2008-
31 May 2016
1598595 - - - (15%59%) - DOFIAE  WNE3A3RE 4854 479 0 lii
L= 3 September 2010 WIE3AA N/A
(Note 3) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
R 499561 - - - (a99561) - W059A38  NE3A3EE 4854 479 AR
W Bin (FiH) 3 September 2010 W19E3A28 N/A
(Note 4) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
RE# 499561 - - - (9956) - VIF9A3R WNF3AIEE 4854 479 ol
Chen Chungjan (FiEs) 3 September 2010 01983828 N/A
(Note 5) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
14534093 - - - (415148 10382665
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Price of Company’s shares***

BRER RRERE RuBRE
Number of share options REASE  AFEREE
RER  RER RER RER RoonE BRE Atimmediately Atimmediately
S5EN R0 Rit it (il %% 128318 BhRE BRE  7HE*  preceding  preceding
HE R 1818 Granted  Adjusted  Exercised  Lapsed At Rt A% TESR Exerdseprice  thegrant  theexercise
Name or category - At 1January during during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share date of date of
of participants 212 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2012 share options*  of share options options™  share options  share options
sREr  SkEr  BREn
HKS pershare  HKS pershare HKS per share
5 Ep ]
Continuous contract
employees
ki 12,426,140 - - - (2,648,565 9,777,575 0712818 200856R1HZ 5879 5.69 TiER
In aggregate (Fizk6) 1December 2007 2016%5A31H N/A
(Note 6 1 June 2008-
31 May 2016
Gt 16,255,525 - - - (4.276,240) 11,979,285 1069838 2011438302 4854 479 TER
In aggregate (ts0) 3 September 2010 201983826 /A
(Note 6) 3 March 2011 -
2 March 2019
28,681,665 - - - (6,924,805 21,756,360
43,215,758 - - - (11,076,233) 32,139,525

* ERENR B R G A BEE

=T IR

wRLlE - DAMARRENREBRSSEA -

= EARR B AR E A K B AT AL AR S B A SR SR TR

i3

C BEEITEER T -

EXRABEEREEBRER L RO ARFR

B DERBRERD AN — A5 AER
PRULTTEAS - RPN EREAEITE B A
AR BRME - THEE R AT EARS R R E
PP E BB T T(E RO DN 1O (E -

*

*%

*HK

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the
commencement of the exercise period. All share options referred to above
are subject to a 6-month vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed at immediately preceding the
grant date of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the share options.
The price of the Company’s shares disclosed at immediately preceding the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices over all the exercises of share options within the
disclosure category.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Notes:

1.

Mr. Chan Chi On resigned as executive director with effect from 1 January
2013. Pursuant to the 2002 Share Option Scheme, a total of 3,052,393 share
options held by Mr. Chan Chi On lapsed on 31 January 2013.

Mr. Man Mo Leung resigned as independent non-executive director with
effect from 31 December 2012. Pursuant to the 2002 Share Option Scheme,
a total of 499,561 share options held by Mr. Man Mo Leung lapsed on
30 January 2013.

These share options lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 as a
result of the resignation of Mr. Lee Yiu Wing during the year.

These share options lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 as a
result of the resignation of Mr. Wu Bin during the year.

These share options lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 as a
result of the resignation of Mr. Chen Chungian during the year.

These share options lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 as a
result of staff resignations during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of those

persons (other than the directors of the Company) in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company as required to be recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO, were as follows:
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BERA RN
fTEIR BRTRE
PR HEE BYWEH
RIDHE BALt
Number of Approximate
BERGEA underlying percentage of
RERMEE shares held the Company’s
IERRER Bt Number of shares held under equity By total issued
Name of substantial shareholders Note and nature of interests derivatives Total share capital
EE RIERS
Direct Deemed
BREHFROBRAR ([8EER]) (1) - 640,543,118 - 640,543,118 6998
Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. ("HSCL)
R ERERAR ([ERERER]) (1) 640,543,118 - - 640,543,118 69.98
Haitong International Holdings Limited (*HIHL")
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited ([ CYTF]) 0) = 64,213,732 = 64,213,732 7.02
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited ([ CYTF 1)) 0) - 64,213,732 = 64,213,732 7.02
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ([ CTFC]) 0) - 64,213,732 = 64,213,732 7.02
AAR (ER) RAR ([AAR (BR))) @ - 64213732 - 64,213,732 7.02
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited ("CTFH")
BARBREFARRA ([AARRE]) ) - 64,213,732 - 64,213,732 702
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE")
Mt RERERAR ([FHRERE]) @) - 64,213,732 - 64,213,732 702
New World Development Company Limited ("NWD")
MElEEBERAR ([Hal]) 2 = 64,213,732 = 64213732 702
NWS Holdings Limited ("NWS")
MEIZRBERERAF ) - 64,213,732 - 64,213,732 7.02
(MHRSESEMKL)
(TNWSSM (Cayman) )
NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
("NWSSM (Cayman)")
NWS Service Management Limited ) - 64,213,732 - 64,213,732 702
(REBRAESIMAL)
(TNWSSM (BvI)])
NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) ("NWSSM (BVI)")
NWS Financial Management Services Limited 64,213,732 - - 64,213,732 702

(TNWSFMJ)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Notes:

(1) HSCL held the entire issued share capital of HIHL. By virtue of the provisions
of the SFO, HSCL is deemed to be interested in the shares in which HIHL is
interested. The total number of shares included also 4,032,041 shares held
by HIHL which are not recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

(2)  CYTF and CYTF Il held respectively an interest of 48.98% and 46.65% in CTFC,
which in turn held an interest of approximately 74.07% in CTFH and CTFH in
turn held the entire issued share capital of CTFE. CTFE and its subsidiaries held
an interest of approximately 42.499% in NWD, which in turn and its subsidiaries
held approximately 60.95% of the issued share capital of NWS. NWS, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, NWSSM (Cayman), held the entire issued share
capital of NWSSM (BVI), which in turn held the entire issued share capital of
NWSFM. By virtue of the provisions of the SFO, each of CYTF, CYTF II, CTFC,
CTFH, CTFE, NWD, NWS, NWSSM (Cayman) and NWSSM (BVI) is deemed to be
interested in the shares in which NWSFM is interested.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in competing businesses

Mr. Li Jianguo (a Deputy Chairman of the Company) is the deputy
chairman of the board of HIHL, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HSCL and the assistant of the general manager of HSCL. Mr. Lin Yong
(@ Deputy Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company) is
the chief executive officer of HIHL. Mr. Ji Yuguang (the Chairman of the
Company) is the deputy general manager and a director of the Overseas
Business Committee of HSCL as well as the chairman of the board of
HIHL. Ms. Wang Meijuan (a Non-executive Director of the Company)
is respectively a director and the chief supervisor of Haitong Kaiyuan
Investment Co,, Ltd. and Haitong Futures Co,, Ltd., the group companies of
HSCL, and a member of the Brokerage Business Committee of HSCL and
the general manager of the audit department of HSCL. HSCL competes or
may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of the Company considers that, having considered the facts

that:

(0

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

Mr. Li Jianguo and Mr. Lin Yong (both are executive directors)
represent only half of the executive Board while Mr. Ji Yuguang
and Ms. Wang Meijuan (both are non-executive directors) do not
participate in the daily operations of the Group, and the remaining
half of the executive Board together with the 4 independent
non-executive directors are capable of taking the lead where
potential conflict of interests arise;

the Group is capable of, and does carry on its business independently
of, and on an arm’s length basis with the competing business of the
HSCL Group;

the Group and the HSCL Group have each augmented its business in
a way so as to optimize the synergistic effect between the Group and
the HSCL Group with a view to, where that is appropriate, minimizing
duplication in terms of allocation of time and resources, and
promoting efficiency, effectiveness and quality in the development
of their respective businesses;

the Company has established corporate governance procedures to
ensure business opportunities and performance are independently
assessed and reviewed from time to time;

Mr. Li Jianguo, Mr. Lin Yong, Mr. Ji Yuguang and Ms. Wang Meijuan
(collectively, the “Relevant Directors”) are fully aware of their fiduciary
duty to the Group, and will abstain from voting on any matter where

there is or may be a conflict of interest; and

the competing business in which the HSCL Group is engaged is
primarily focused in the PRC whereas the Group's business is primarily
Hong Kong-based,

the Group's interest is adequately safeguarded.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Since (i) all the major and important corporate actions of the Company
are and will be fully deliberated and determined by the Board of the
Company; and (i) any director(s) who is/are or deemed to be interested in
any proposed transaction(s) will have his/their interest fully disclosed and
will abstain from voting at the relevant resolution(s) in accordance with
the applicable requirements of the Bye-laws, the Board of the Company is
of the view that each of the Relevant Directors does not, by himself or in
an individual capacity, competes with the Company and/or the business
of the Group.

Based on the above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors of
the Company and their associates was considered to have interests in
the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Continuing connected transactions

The continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group are
included in the transactions set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions in note 35 to the financial statements and have
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have been entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in note 35 to the financial
statements in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within

the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Corporate governance
The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out

in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 49 of this Annual
Report.

Auditors
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 of the
Company have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

JI'Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HAITONG INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haitong
International Securities Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 207, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

BRERESEEERAR § 52012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R R R E

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

B F2012F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

20124 20114F
2012 2011
MI5E FET T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
WA Revenue 5 1,177,055 1,003,945
Ha g A Other income 5 2,040 11,801
1,179,095 1,015,746
EERHRAX Employee benefits costs:
Fre ke EAk Salaries and allowances, bonuses and
RIRNEETEIER pension scheme contributions 6 (342,435) (339,265)
BREFTAES Commission to accounts executives 6 (125,956) (141,587)
e Depreciation 13 (47,534) (43,558)
Hib& e msy Other operating expenses (300,753) (278,152)
(816,678) (802,562)
BF TR AN Finance costs 6 (24,761) (34,126)
BRE AR Profit before taxation 6 337,656 179,058
BIER Taxation expenses 9 (43,034) (25,973)
FREF Profit for the year 294,622 153,085

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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Consolidated Income Statement

B ZE2012F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

20124 20114F
2012 2011
BfsE FHET AT
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
AT AT e Attributable to:
ZIN/NG 2 ST N Equity holders of the Company 10 293,450 153,204
SRR I PERERS Non-controlling interests 1,172 (119)
294,622 153,085
BE Dividends 11
FRHARR S Interim dividend 73,227 54,920
R R 2R B Proposed final dividend 68,651 18,307
141,878 73,227
PIN/NG L @S TS N Earnings per share attributable to
(R EIRE&T] equity holders of the Company 12
— &R ~ Basic 32.06584 19.377841L
32.06 cents 19.37 cents
— 88 - Diluted 32.06781l 19.357841L
32.06 cents 19.35 cents

F1032F 207 BN EANGE BB E R EK The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this consolidated
BE o financial information.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B F2012F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

20124 201148
2012 2011
FER FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FREF Profit for the year 294,622 153,085
HEAMHNERE Disposal of available-for-sale investments - (8,406)
AHfHEREN AT EES) Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments (2,470) (2,792)
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year (2,470) (11,198)
FREEKREE Total comprehensive income
for the year 292,152 141,887
LA AT FEAS - Attributable to:
RARIREFFEA Equity holders of the Company 290,980 142,006
m FEPE I M fE Non-controlling interests 1,172 (119)
292,152 141,887

F103 2 FE207B T ARG E I EERBAEK The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this consolidated
i o financial information.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R20129F 124314
As at 31 December 2012

M12A31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
BaE F#ET FHIT
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
Ehak=y-3 Fixed assets 13 142,797 178,171
Bk Goodwill 14 9,854 9,854
HinER & E Other intangible assets 15 6,609 6,609
HEMEE Other assets 16 18,803 14,811
EEFIBE = Deferred tax assets 29 2,279 2,714
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 18 131,690 11,250
REZIHNKRE Held-to-maturity investments 19 809,914 142,695
H b pE AR IE Other receivables 20 123,330 51,807
1,245,276 417911
RBEE Current assets
BT EPHIRE Advances to customers in
&R margin financing 21 4,699,097 3,438,293
HEMER LA Other loans and advances 22 1,080,350 =
FEMIERRK Accounts receivable 23 1,420,564 946,980
BNFIE - He & Prepayments, deposits and
Hh pE U AR IR other receivables 20 151,587 119,913
TER IR Tax prepaid 29,137 28,041
BN ERAERZN Financial investments at
ISR E fair value through profit or loss 24 441,721 17,724
REFHENERS Cash held on behalf of customers 25 5,092,535 4,992,026
B& MIRTTETF Cash and bank balances 467,834 1,001,238
13,382,825 10,544,215
EEMARE Total assets 14,628,101 10,962,126
BRERAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
KATRAEFHFA Equity attributable to equity holders
PEfE R AE of the Company
O EBETIRA Issued capital 30 (91,534) (91,534)
& Reserves 32 (3,093,849) (2,944,747)
BER AR HRAL B Proposed final dividend 11 (68,651) (18,307)
(3,254,034) (3,054,588)
e F RS Non-controlling interests (5,811) (6,639)
RIEATE Total equity (3,259,845) (3,061,227)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R2012F12H431H
As at 31 December 2012

M12831H
As at 31 December
201245 20114F
2012 2011
BsE FET T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
=l Liabilities
FRBEES Non-current liabilities
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 (19,000) (24,726)
REEME Current liabilities
FESBRIR Accounts payable 26 (6,745,903) (6,044,889)
FERTRIR Tax payable (55,627) (34,414)
HbEBRFANESTFIE  Other payables and accruals 27 (185,488) (102,345)
ERkEMEER Loans and other borrowings 28 (4,362,238) (1,694,525)
(11,349,256) (7,876,173)
BEEAH Total liabilities (11,368,256) (7,900,899)
RERSELE Total equity and liabilities (14,628,101) (10,962,126)
REEEFE Net current assets 2,033,569 2,668,042
BREERRBEME Total assets less current liabilities 3,278,845 3,085,953
MOE BRE
LIN Yong POON Mo Yiu
BEF EE
Director Director

F103EF207 B ARG S P E R ARK The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this consolidated

217 o financial information.

BRERESEEERAR § 52012



EEAER
Balance Sheet

R20129F 124314
As at 31 December 2012

M12831H
As at 31 December
201245 20114
2012 2011
BaE FHET FHIT
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 13 18,243 17,796
R B A BRI E Investment in subsidiaries 17 105,377 105,377
123,620 123,173
REEE Current assets
FEUSHT B R BRI IR Amount due from subsidiaries 17 5,428,021 4,024,331
TEBRFIE - e & Prepayments, deposits and
Hoh pE U AR IR other receivables 20 17,740 8,527
SEENE2E Tax prepaid 2,486 _
WE NBRTEF Cash and bank balances 6,072 15,060
5,454,319 4047918
EEHAE Total assets 5,577,939 4,171,091
BEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AATREFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
SRR AE of the Company
B EITIRA Issued capital 30 (91,534) (91,534)
E Reserves 32 (1,847,481) (1,871,056)
R R HIAR B Proposed final dividend 11 (68,651) (18,307)
MR EE Total equity (2,007,666) (1,980,897)

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Balance Sheet

R2012F12H431H
As at 31 December 2012

M12831H
As at 31 December
201245 20114
2012 2011
BsE FET T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
REEE Current liabilities
RN NG E] Amounts due to subsidiaries 17 (1,775,577) (1,468,719)
R F I8 Tax payable - (11,136)
H A pERBR X 2 fESt73E  Other payables and accruals 27 (69,540) (13,814)
ERREMEE Loans and other borrowings 28 (1,725,156) (696,525)
EEHE Total liabilities (3,570,273) (2,190,194)
RERAERTE Total equity and liabilities (5,577,939) (4,171,091)
REEESE Net current assets 1,884,046 1,857,724
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,007,666 1,980,897
MOE BRE
LIN Yong POON Mo Yiu
EFE EFE
Director Director

F1032FE207BEMMFE ARG S BB E B AR The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this consolidated
i o financial information.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BB 20129F 12431 HIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2012

ADNARKEAARSE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B3
BEf Kt BRE  RARE REEf ReRE/ Fiif
ks EER ff' fE HABR  EARRE R EXRE  URRE  REEA EH BE  BEEE
Share Share Capital Investment Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium option  redemption  Contributed Capital  revaluation  Exchange  cash/scrip  Retained controlling
capital  account! reserve' reserve' surplus' reserve' reserve' reserve’  dividend profits' Total interests Total equity
TEn T T T Tin Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TEn T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(HfiE31) (Wi2) (W)
(note 31) (note32)  (note32)
RunE AR At 1 January 2012 91,534 1,781,654 24,283 5102 2 45,501 6,653 (30) 18307 1,081,563 3,054,588 6639 3,061,227
FRgd Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - S 293450 293450 1172 29462
AHERER Changesin fairvalue of
ATEES avallable- for-sale investments - - - - - - (2470) - - - (2470) - (2470)
2AkEES Total comprehensive income: - - - - - - (2470) - - 293,450 290,980 1M 292,152
HEHBAR Disposal of  subsiaiary - - - - - - - - - - - (2,000 2,000)
SREURETA 2011 final dvidend declared and
MFRERIRE settledin cash - - - - - - - - (18300) - (1830) - (1830)
SRTURETMAE  2012interim dividend declared
DFRTHRE and setledin cash - - - - - - - - - ma ) - B
BENBRIE Share options lapsed - 6,225 (6,225) - - - - - - - - - -
BR0EERERE  Proposed 2012 inal dividend
—Hiitn -note 11 - - - - - - - - eest (68651) - - -
H012%128318 At 31 December 2012 91,534 1,787,879 18,058 5102 N 45,501 4183 (30) 68651 1233135 3,254,034 5811 3,259,845

l hERERBEFAGEEERERNGEHE
3,093,849,00075 7T (20114F : 2,944,747,000/8 7T ) °

! These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$3,093,849,000 (2011: HKS$2,944,747,000) in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B 201212431 HIEF/Z
For the year ended 31 December 2012

ARFRAEA AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Eane

BEfT Fia BhE RaBm REEfR ka/ SR
Bx EER i #E HARR  AARRE BE EARE  URRE  REEN &t Ba  ToEeE

Share Share Capital Investment Proposed Non-
Issued premium option  redemption  Contributed Capital ~ revaluation  Exchange  cash/scrip Retained controlling
capital account Teserve Tesrve' surplus’ Teserve’ reserve' reserve' dividend profits' Total interests  Total equity

T  TEm  TEr TR TR TEr  TEr  TRr TR TEr  TEmr  TEr  TAn
HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKS0D  HKYOO0  HKSOOD MO0 HKSOD  HKO0D0  HKSOO0 SO0 HKSOD  HKS0MD  HKS00O

(Hizk31) (M0 (W)

(note 31) (note 32) (note 32)
HuonE AR At 1 January 2011 71503 947472 2431 5102 2 45501 17851 (30) 57203 1,001,586 2170580 6758 2177338
Ehil Proftforthe year - - - - - - - - - IR 1B (g 153085
ERENZE Other comprehensive income

i forthe year
HETHLE Disposal of available-for-sale

&3 investments - - - - - - (8406) - - - (3406) - (8406)
AHERER Changes in fairvalue of available-

ATEED forsale investments - - - - - - (2790) - - - (079) = 279)
2EkGEE Total comprehensive income: - - - - - - (11,198) - - 153,204 142,006 my) 141,887
HfRA - EFERL  Issueof share capitl

-0 -loan capitalisation - note 30 20000 826225 - - - - - - - - 86205 - 846225
ERUHBELRAG 2010 final dividend declared and

WOEERHRE settledin cash - - - - - - - - (57203 - ) - )
SRTURETIAE 2017 interim dividend declared

DEERERE and stted n cash - - - - - - - - - (49200 (5490) - (34920)
FESRIEMFMERIE  New share options granted to

~ skt employees - note 31 - - 6:3% - - - - - = = 63% = 6:3%
BTHRG - BRE  Issueof new shares- share option

b Rl ] scheme - note 31 31 1651 (178) - - - - - - = 1504 - 1,504
BAERE Share options apsed - 6306 (6306) - - - - B - - - B _
B0 EERERE  Proposed 2011 final ividend

- Kz -note 11 - - - - - - - - 18307 (18307) = - i
H0nE128318 At31 December 2011 91534 1781654 2428 5102 2 45501 6653 (30) 18307 1,081,563 3054588 6639 3061,227

F103EF207 BHM s AAEGRE B 75 E B AE K The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this consolidated

BB © financial information.

SRERESEEARAR § Fif 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B 201212731 HIFF/Z
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012% 20114
2012 2011
ihF3 THET THT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
RELENRETRE Cash flows from operating activities
B A& Al Profit before taxation 337,656 179,058
SEYE T 5% Adjustments for:
FIBHA Interest income 5 (410,907) (355,775)
KEEBEFNF S Interest income from investment
YA in debt securities 5 (62,722) (4,832)
BIFE A AN Finance costs 6 24,761 34,126
ERERR LA Dividend income from listed investments 5 (6,929) (2,620)
HEEEEENESE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6 144 38
e Depreciation 13 47,534 43,558
HEAEHER AR Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Wz ¥ investments, net 5 - (8,406)
PARR AN S {5t E) B A A B = Equity-settled share option expense 6 - 6,396
HERBA AR ES Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 446 _
BYIRFHARER (Increase)/decrease in advances to
(), @ customers in margin financing (1,260,804) 937,296
HpE N BF0E i Increase in other loans and advances (1,080,350) -
FEURERE TR (3240) / F A (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (458,372) 22,751
TEFE ~ e M EM (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
FERBETE (3Ehn) /HD deposits and other receivables (15,103) 17,286
BAFEF NEENIH (Increase)/decrease in financial investments
®& (M), B at fair value through profit or loss (423,997) 74527
REFBANERS (Increase)/decrease in cash held on
() / ma behalf of customers (100,509) 166,577
FERT BRI,/ (R d) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 701,014 (7,604)
Hi eI IR R KB 20U Increase/(decrease) in other payables
2/ CRid) and accruals 82,318 (35,183)
BEXREMEEEMN/ Increase/(decrease) in loans and other
(R (TBIERITES) borrowings (excluding bank overdraft) 2,667,713 (415,850)
EHFE Interest received 395,695 352,990
[RENEIEVII%N Finance costs paid (23,907) (33,851)
BB Tax paid (28,208) (44,781)
Bl ETIREMRE Dividends received from listed investments 6,929 2620
REEBHNRESRNTFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 392,402 928321

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EZE2012F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

20124 20114
2012 2011
fizE TR THET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
RETENEERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEEETEE Purchases of items of fixed assets 13 (12,517) (70,454)
HEEEEEMBHE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 207 107
Aﬁﬂ BEE () / ma (Increase)/decrease in other assets (3,992) 28,702
BIEBE)/HEmELE Proceeds (for purchase)/from disposal of
Txéfﬁ']?ﬁ?gf?ﬂ available-for-sale investments 18 (122,910) 17,976
REFHEERIHNEKE Investment in held-to-maturity investments 19 (656,682) (142,481)
KA ETERES Investment in unlisted debt securities 20 (71,523) (51,807)
KB BT E = Interest received from investment
eSS in debt securities 32,016 1,019
HEMBARKMEHE Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary 1,129 =
RETEHNES R E5E Net cash outflow from investing activities (834,272) (216,938)
METBNRERE Cash flows from financing activities
EMBROBEITRA Share issuing costs paid 30 - (3314)
TEERRERTS 28 Proceeds from share options exercised 31 - 1,504
HEIRE AR E Dividends paid to shareholders (91,534) (112,123)
RETENEES AL EE Net cash outflow from financing activities (91,534) (113,933)
Be MR eSHEBEMN Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
CRid) /s hn=ss cash equivalents (533,404) 597,450
FUMHREEReEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,001,238 403,788
FROBERREFEEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 467,834 1,001,238
ReRBESSEBEELEN Analysis of balances of cash and
Vagiis cash equivalents
e MIBTETF Cash and bank balances 467,834 1,001,238

B103E B 207 BN S ARG A B R AR H AR The notes on pages 103 to 207 form an integral part of this
=/ o consolidated financial information.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate information

Haitong International Securities Group Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business
of the Company is located at 22/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group was involved
in the following principal activities:

securities, futures and options contracts broking and trading
the provision of margin and other financing

the provision of corporate advisory, placing and underwriting
services

bullion contracts dealing and trading

leveraged foreign exchange trading

the provision of nominee and custodian services

the provision of fund management

the provision of financial planning and advisory services

proprietary securities trading

Change of principal place of business

On 24 September 2012, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company announced that the Company would change its principal
place of business in Hong Kong from 25th Floor, New World
Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong to 22/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong with effect from
25 September 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 EESBERBE #

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 REEE

2.1 Basis of preparation

BEERESEEBERARNGRENT
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ERMNBR LM - RN -
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MRE|  2FETREERES
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BRERESEEERAR § 52012

The consolidated financial statements of Haitong International
Securities Group Limited have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group'’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective
for the year and relevant to the Group'’s operation

Amendment to HKFRS 7, "Financial instruments:
Disclosures on transfer of financial assets” These
amendments are as part the International Accounting
Standards Board’s comprehensive review of off
balance sheet activities. The amendments promote
transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions
and improve users' understanding of the risk exposures
relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of
those risks on an entity’s financial position, particularly
those involving securitisation of financial asset.

The Group does not have any significant financial

assets transferred that are affected by the amendment.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective
for the year but not relevant to the Group’s operation

Amendment to HKFRS 1, “First time adoption” (on

hyperinflation and fixed dates)

Amendment to HKAS 12, “Income taxes” (on deferred
tax)
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 EESBERBE #

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
2.1 mBEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
() MREMBRASEILEEEZFZMNN (c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are
2| - BT RZE not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group

EE G ERE 15 (BFTAR)
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1Bk Z AR ST EIEE
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[Efazmias] 25 - &2
IR B BHRERNEY - EIW
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REB G H20129F1 A1B H# 4
BEIEET ©

BB WS ERIE o [ 75
T A] > R2015F181H 5k 2
BRI AR - 2R
MmTHEEERMEAEND
¥ ATERER BBUHH
4 2% Bl o8k 200911 A K
20105E 10 A8 4 © 5% ZE RIJELX
T BB LR F395% P A
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D o BB E ERFHR
EMBEEDEAMETELE
Al BAFEFERR RIRES
SHEAGTE87 - LETEER
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B o 1 H B 78 T AL 2 TSR A
FZIEMNGELHBESRERHE
ME - Y BaEmS @ &%
BI{RE T BB S ERIFE395%
HAREDHRTE - TEZEH) 5K
B aBEEEAAFESEE -
AERAFEERRMEED
AREEEH LR EMEEIK
wmMIERERAR  BIEES
B TR o AN KB i RET
HBRBYEREEREFNE
FELBRREEKAE (A
015F 1 A1 Ak z AR S
FTHAR) ST ELEITERA o

Amendment to HKAS 1, “Financial statements
presentation’, effective for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The amendment
clarifies the presentation of items as “other
comprehensive income” and requires entities to group
items presented in other comprehensive income on
the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The amendments do not address which
items are presented in other comprehensive income.
This amendment affects the presentation of the
financial statements but does not affect the results
and operation of the Group. The Group will apply this
amendment from 1 January 2012.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” effective for the
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The
standard addresses the classification, measurement
and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009
and October 2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39
that relate to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those measured
at amortised cost. The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains
most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change
due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon its effective date,
which is for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2015.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” effective
for the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2013: The new standard builds on existing
principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements
of the parent company. The standard provides
additional guidance to assist in the determination
of control where this is difficult to assess. As of this
stage, it is not expected HKFRS 10 will have significant
financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangement” effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2013: The standard is a more realistic reflection of
joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than its legal
form. There are two types of joint arrangement: joint
operations and joint ventures. Joint operations arise
where a joint operator has rights to the assets and
obligations relating to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Joint ventures arise where the joint operator
has rights to the net assets of the arrangement and
hence equity accounts for its interest. Proportional
consolidation of joint ventures is no longer allowed. As
a result of the pronouncement of HKFRS 11, HKAS 28
has been revised and renamed as “Associates and joint
ventures’, which is also effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The
revised standard includes the requirements that
both joint ventures, as well as associates to be equity
accounted. The Group will adopt HKFRS 11 and HKAS
28 (revised) from 1 January 2013. As of this stage, it is
not expected HKFRS 11 will have significant financial
impact to the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 EESBERBE #

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 mBEE (@) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(0 MARERRAEEMAEEREFRAN
R~ BETRERE (&)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (continued)
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HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of interests in other entities”
effective for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. The new standard includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet
vehicles. HKFRS 12 only affects the disclosure of the
financial statements but does not affect the results and
operations of the Group. The Group will adopt HKFRS
12 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2013. This new standard aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting but provide guidance
on how it should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. The Group will adopt this standard from
1 January 2013.

Amendment to HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12 on transition
guidance, effective for the accounting period on or
after 1 January 2013. These amendments provide
additional transition relief to HKFRSs 10, 11 and
12, limiting the requirement to provide adjusted
comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. For disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments
will remove the requirement to present comparative
information for periods before HKFRS 12 is first applied.
The Group will adopt the amendment from 1 January
2013.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities”, effective from 1 January 2013. The
amendment requires new disclosure requirements
which focus on quantitative information about
recognised financial instruments that are offset in the
balance sheet, as well as those recognised financial
instruments that are subject to master netting or
similar arrangements irrespective of whether they are
offset. The amendment does not result in any financial
impact but results in additional disclosure in the
financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 32 “Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities”, effective from 1 January 2014. These
amendments are to the application guidance in HKAS
32 “Financial instruments: Presentation’, and clarify
some of the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet.
The adoption of this amendment will affect the
presentation of certain financial assets and financial

liabilities on the balance sheet.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

(@) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statement of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to the 31 December 2012

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions that are recognised in assets are also
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests (continued)

(c)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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(continued)
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goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case; the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the year in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the year in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 Fixed assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the year in which it is

incurred.

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset

or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings lease terms and 2.5%

Leasehold improvements  20%

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment

Computer hardware 30%

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 Fixed assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Computer software and system development

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

(i) management intends to complete the software
product and use it;

(iii) there is an ability to use the software product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;
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Notes to Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 Fixed assets (continued)

(b) Computer software and system development

(continued)

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use the software
product are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the software product

during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent year.

Computer software development costs recognised as

assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, from

three to ten years.
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computer software and system development)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation year and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

The Group’s intangible assets, representing eligibility rights
to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and the Futures
Exchange, and throttle rate for trading order to be transmitted
to the Automated Matching System of the Stock Exchange, with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised

in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

2.6 Other assets

Other assets held on a long term basis are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessors are accounted for as operating
leases. Rentals payable under the operating leases are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and

buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and
assesses whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract when the analysis shows
that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets

after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.8Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases

or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require

delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the income statement. Dividend income from
these financial assets is recognised in the income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.
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2.8Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(iii) FEZFHHNRE

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments
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Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

those that the Group upon initial recognition
designated as at fair value through profit or loss;

those that the Group designates as available-for-sale;
and

those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statements when
the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as

through amortisation process.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012

D



BTSSR M o

Notes to Financial Statements

2

FEABERE @

28 RENEMMBEE (@)

(iv)

(v)

AHEENTBEE

B ENTBEETI DB A
th & Bk BE A (AT EL 4 P (B $8 B
BHBFITAEMBEEREN LT R
FLETHBEARZRESRE - &
FZHEREK  ARHEMBEER
NFEFE EH&Z/\@F?T%E'JEE
fh2mBam P ER  EERMRKRE
%&Hiiﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁi%&%mﬁjﬁmﬁ il

TELLE - BEEEET I RA RET
W sk BIR & AW R o BREXK

M ERBLE D B 2B HBUWA K
BB - WARE Tt [ WA FERR
PRE R BRE st R N RER S [
Al ZERENBEBBER K
RPBERRAHEEMBTEEN
HERBE] YEATHKERES
fhfEmEL -

ATE

E2Rm5ERIINREN DT
B N2ELAEHLERRLERRK
M EABEE © fHXE
RENTISAL TER - AT ERK
REERERE - ZFEHERERE
RHETHNRATFmERS 12
%ﬁ@ﬁ@(*ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁklﬁmfﬁ’_
MiZEE - ReREMRITUR
miZ2REREERNEMMEET
A e

BRERESEEERAR § 52012

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.8Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

(v)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities and
fund investments that are designated as available for sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised
in other comprehensive income until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as “Revenue”
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Losses arising from the impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income statement
as "Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets”
and are transferred from the available-for-sale investment

revaluation reserve.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the
same, a discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there

is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of

financial assets is impaired.

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (ie, the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

In relation to advances to customers and other loans and
advances, a provision for impairment is made when there is
objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original terms of an agreement. The carrying
amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when
they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
income statement, is transferred from equity to the income
statement. A provision for impairment is made for available-
for-sale equity investments and fund investments when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgement. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, such as the share price volatility.
Impairment losses on equity investments and fund
investments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through the income statement.
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210 Derecognition of financial assets
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through”arrangement; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

211 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including

interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accruals and loans and other borrowings are initially stated
at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the

income statement.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement

when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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BRERESEEERAR § 52012

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

213 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.
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The tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted on substantively enacted at the

balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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(continued)

215 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

from the profit and loss on sale of available-for-sale
investments and financial investments at fair value through
profit or loss, on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are executed;

commission on dealing in securities, futures, options and
bullion contracts and the profit and loss on trading in
securities, futures, options and bullion contracts, on the
transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

executed;

consultancy and financial advisory fees, placing,
underwriting and sub-underwriting commissions, and
commission income from financial planning, on an accrual
basis in accordance with the terms of the underlying

agreements;

income from fund management, custodian and handling

services, in the year in which such services are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

the financial instrument;

income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions, on
an accrual basis; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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BRERESEEERAR § 52012

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined with reference
to the fair value estimated by external valuer under a valuation
model commonly used in the market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (‘market conditions”), if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the year in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting year has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a year represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that year.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as being vested irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that

all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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216 Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

2.17 Other employee benefits

(i) Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

217 Other employee benefits (continued)
(i) Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group's employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when an employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
refunded contribution is recognized in the consolidated
income statement to offset the current year contribution
made.

2.18 Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Board are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheets, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Bye-laws grant the Board the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised as other comprehensive income to that particular
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to in the income

statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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BRERESEEERAR § 52012

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2012 was
HK$9,854,000 (201 1: HKS$9,854,000). No impairment is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2012 as the prospect of the cash-
generating units is favorable to the Company. More details are
given in note 14.

(ii) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the consolidated income statement,
the Group makes judgments as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group.
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(continued)

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

More details on the credit risk of the advances to customers in
margin financing and other loans and advances are included in
note 21 and note 22 respectively.

(iii)Estimation of realisability of deferred tax

assets

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences arising from
depreciation of fixed assets. As those deferred tax assets can
only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilised. Management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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3 EEMNSEEETRAE @)
(i) TR BIELER BEENGE (&)

R20128F12A318 © NEBERELEFR
TH & EE#92,300,00075 7T, (20114F : 2,700,000
L) o BRE BB EEL(IERTRA
AEBRFERAFEHRIELEREE
EE N 38 D03 AE 7% 18 32 1 492,300,000 7T
(20114 : 2,700,000787T) °

It AN 7201285128318 © AN &£ Bl F K
BB ARKMNRERRLEREEED
18,000,000/ 7T (20114F : 250000007 JT.)

EIEEBREZENB QR EERRERM
A - AT A R AR IE A s HY AT RE 1
RIR o

@. (iVPTEMBITAEQATE

YIEERMGEENITEMBITA
(BIEnsBMTAE T R) (A FEER MG
BIAFE - AREXIERBESRED
RIITHORGE A H 2 5 AAEH R
R BEZRENERBROEAIES
TETEVBITANKRERFE -

(v) 2EABEEIHNRE

AEERBZEE B S ERI 395 /9453
75 ¥ 8 [E E 3k 1) HE S 20 LA N B E B
HANETEMBEESBAFERE
Hlo ZDBEREKHE - E{ELH
B AEBFIHESARSERESR
FENERREN - MRAKEEE
BEZERERDE (BB
Bl B R HELEE5E) B
DEEEBRNEF B ATHEHLEER
B ot - B IR A FEm IS
RAGE - MRBEEFEEIHHE
BRERIFIE - AT EEE K AAEL
#5 32 H031,000,0007 7T (20114 : g >
11,000,000/ 7C) * HEEZEE iR ERE I
wmRAFEA 0k o
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(iii)Estimation of realisability of deferred tax

assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognised deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$2.3 million (2011: HKS$2.7 million).
Should future taxable profit become totally unavailable, the
Group would need to decrease the deferred tax assets and
increase its deferred tax expenses by approximately HK$2.3
million for the year (2011: HK$2.7 million).

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2012, the Group has
unrecognised deferred tax assets of approximately HK$18 million
(2011: HKS$25 million) arising from the subsidiaries of the Group
which management consider that these subsidiaries are less
probable to generate available future taxable profit to utilise the
deferred tax benefit.

(iv) Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are
not traded in active markets (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) are determined using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
assumptions about these methods and assumptions could
affect reported fair value of derivative financial instruments.

(v) Classification of held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for specific circumstances — for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required
to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale investments.
The investments would therefore be measured at fair value
instead of amortised cost. If the entire class of held-to-maturity
investments is tainted, the fair value would be increased by
HKS$31 million (2011: decreased by HK$11 million) as compared
to the amortised costs, which the difference will be credited/
debited to the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

4 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Executive
Committee as its chief operating decision maker.

All transactions between business segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs
being eliminated. Income and expenses directly associated with
each segment are included in determining business segment
performance.

The Group's majority of revenue is related to activities conducted in
Hong Kong. No single customer amounts to more than 10 percent
of the Group's revenue.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following segments:

(@) the broking segment engages in securities, futures, options and
bullion contracts broking and dealing;

(b) the margin and other treasury segment engages in the provision
of margin financing to margin customers, and personal loans
and commercial loans to individuals and corporate customers,
but excluding the provision of financing to corporate finance
clients which is covered under the corporate advisory, placing
and underwriting segment;

(c) the corporate advisory, placing and underwriting segment
engages in the provision of corporate advisory, placing and
underwriting services as well as the provision of financing to
corporate finance clients;

(d) the trading and investment segment engages in investment
holding, and proprietary trading of securities, futures, options,
bullion contracts, leveraged foreign exchange trading and
investment in debt securities;

(e) the financial planning and advisory services segment engages
in the provision of financial planning and advisory services; and

(f) the “others” segment comprises fund management and the
provision of custodian and handling services.
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4 FHER @) 4 Segment information (continued)
TREFF AN EEZEBE D FBEMA R F] - The following table presents revenue and profit for the Group's

business segments:

FERAM jix 0N HBRER
g il 11:3-3:3 REREH BERKE EEL At e &8
Corporate advisory,
Margin and placing and Tradingand ~ Financial planning
Broking other treasury underwriting investment  and advisory services Others Eliminations Consolidated

012 0nF 012F 0nE 00E wnE 012F 01FE 00F 0nF 02F wn§ 00FE 01E WE wnE
012 01 202 01 2012 00 2012 01 2012 01 2012 01 2012 01 2012 0
Tiér Thr TEm Thrn Tén Thn TRr Thr TEr TEr TERn TErn TEn TEr TEn TEn
HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000 HKSO000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKSO0D HKS'000 HKSO00 HK$'000  HKS000

ABRA Segment revente:

HETIMREE  Salesto extemal customers 32752 443130 174009 20534 466026 234710 113431 2151 47763 44007 48300 54993 - - 1,177,055 1003945
ZNURMOHEE  Intersegment sales 7 % 26392 44365 - - - - - - - - (26,419)  (44391) - -
#:t Tota 307553 443156 200401 249599 466,026 234710 113431 21851 47,763 44007 48300 54993 (26419) (44391) 1,177,055 1003945
A A Other income - - - - 2039 1650 - 8% - - 11306 - - 2040 11801
B Less;

EERMRS Employee benefit costs (193,530) (27443) (51,663) (58201) (138,362) (85140) (33677) (7926) (36,741) (34420) (14418) (2072) - - (468,391) (480852
AR Other expenses (70,805) (129233) (111,675) (112378) (141,204) (80987) (24281) (15575 (8,647) (9003 (42539) (30,140) 26419 44391 (372,732) (352929)
DS Seqment results 63218 39480 37,063 79020 188499 70233 55473 7185 2375 604 (8656) (14553 - - 337972 181969
RORRR Unallocated expenses (316)  (2911)
BRANRR Profit before taxation 337,656 179058
HERx Taxation expenses (43,03 (5973)
EREF Profit for the year 294622 153085

SRERESEEARAR § Fif 2012
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5 Revenue and other income

An analysis of revenue (which is also the Group’s turnover) and other

DT - income is as follows:
rEE
Group
2012 2011F
2012 2011
TERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
BHBEE NCRER Securities dealing and broking:
BHEENERERNAS Commission on securities dealing and broking 221,094 292,826
= HREREmEER Futures, options and commodities dealing and
%“iﬂif% broking:
HE HERAREENR Commission on futures, options and commodities
RS0 dealing and broking 99,858 140,478
FREEMRSHEERES :  Margin and other treasury activities:
FEREMESEHNFIEWA  Interest income on margin and other financing activities 120,991 160,446
HibEsEmF S 5A Interest income from other treasury activities 53,018 44,788
TERE R AFER Corporate finance and advisory:
Eﬁ?ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁuﬁ@ﬁ”&)\ Consultancy and financial advisory fee income 44,657 46,670
e AEks B Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission 184,471 37,499
ACERERPIRIEES Provision of financing to corporate finance clients 236,898 150,541
BESBANEEEY Bullion contracts dealing:
BEECEANMMES Commission on bullion contracts dealing 6,574 9,826
REREARRERT - Provision of nominee and custodian services:
REARREREE Custodian and handling service fees 19,943 22,985
BEeER Fund management;
EEEWA Management fee income 28,357 31,487
RREWA Performance fee income - 591
BEREMBA : Income from proprietary investment:
BRHE ABSRMMHEE  Profit/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through
wfl /(E58) 58 profit or loss, net 12,156 (24,533)
FTEM BT MR F Profit on derivative financial instruments 12,838 8324
HE B BmkicE Profit on futures, options, commodities and bullion
é%@f@'ﬁ%‘f%?ﬁéﬂ 3 contracts trading, net 6,042 27,088
BREHA Dividend income 6,929 2,620
Txﬁﬁi‘% BAHF S A Interest income from investment in debt securities 62,722 4,832
BIRNEEE : Leveraged foreign exchange trading:
BRNEEEYA - FE Income from leveraged foreign exchange trading, net 12,744 3,520
ISR B It RS Financial planning and advisory services:
TR IS R E K AR Commission on the provision of financial planning
e and advisory services 47,763 44,027
1,177,055 1,003,945
it A _ Otherincome
HERMEEERERYZ - F58  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments, net - 8,406
HEHBARNER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (446) _
Hity Others 2,486 3,395
2,040 11,801
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6 BRP A F 6 Profit before taxation
5 BB B AT R TR, (B A) TFI% The Group's profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
HBEH - (crediting):
TEE
Group
2012% 2011F
2012 2011
FHERT FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hih e eiE The other operating expenses include:
RETAET I NAREFE . Minimum lease payments under operating leases:
T RiEF Land and buildings 71,720 71,845
E B Computer equipment 16,112 16,112
%R & Auditors’ remuneration 3,200 3,840
SNEZZE - HEE Foreign exchange differences, net 1,320 (11,612
HERTEEENER Loss on disposal of fixed assets 144 38
HIENMEE (BIERGHE)  Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance) 34,888 41,245
WBARTE Quotemeter services 2,705 5412
MIBHE - BENE/EMAY  Marketing, advertising and promotion expense 14,947 22,159
FAEEE MRS Equipment rental and servicing 39,464 41313
MsHIEER Bad debts written off 12,542 5427
RERFIFY (RIEEEME Employee benefits costs (including directors' remuneration
kh%smEEE) and five highest paid employees):
Fe ke (MF7ks) Salaries and allowances (note 7 and 8) 242,718 252,880
TEAL Bonuses 92,732 72,399
REEERE Commission to accounts executives 125,956 141,587
ARG S (RO BE I R = Equity-settled share option expense
(B¥zE31) (note 31) - 6,396
RIKEFT SR Pension scheme contributions 7,267 7,812
R RMREEER Less: Forfeited contributions (282) 222)
468,391 480,852
IR EAIIA R T REEETS Interest expense for securities broking and margin
ZF RSN ﬁﬁ : financing operations:
—RITERRES - bank loans and overdrafts 24,596 23,504
- EMER - other loans (note 28 and 35(a)(i))
(P 728 % 35(a)(i)) 92 10,520
— EREFERR — accounts payable to clients 73 102
24,761 34,126

SRERESEEERAR 12012



7 EEME

AT RIREEMRRRBEBRBGRGIE 161
FRERBENFEEEMEFE -

M TSR MY

Notes to Financial Statements

7 Directors’ remuneration

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:
rEE
Group
20126 20114
2012 2011
THET THIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e
BITES Executive directors 300 500
FHTES Non-executive directors 866 1,156
BUIERITES Independent non-executive directors 701 700
1,867 2,356
Hib e : Other emoluments:
WTESE Executive directors:
e e Salaries and allowances 12,380 11,161
TEAL (BizEQ) Bonuses (note (a)) 16,713 10,060
REEMAERF (ff5Eb)  Employee share option benefits (note (b)) - 1319
BREE 2RI Pension scheme contributions 79 72
FHTES Non-executive directors:
1R BRERHERER (MiFED) Employee share option benefits (note (b)) - 384
W IERITES - Independent non-executive directors:
EEBRERT (HEb) Employee share option benefits (note (b)) - )88
29,172 23,284
31,039 25,640

(a)

TEAL BIRIE KRB M B WAL - AR F
ETHITES A WEIEAL - ZEAIEA
SEBREENNXEEOLERE -

BAEFE  ETEETERHRASEERE
B AR 7S AR IR AN A B BB AR A T B IR BE
BXHE - BERRRERT Bl IBE AR A B3R
RMTEE31 © 72012 K20114F » BEER
HETREARAE - L EBIREN A TERE
BHARGEWSRER  ZAFET
REHBHEEMAFEMERERNE
BEPRTEEMeHTE 2R -

(@) Bonuses include performance related bonuses, in which certain
executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit
after taxation of the Group.

(b) In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details on the share option
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. No new share options were granted during the
year 2012 and 2011. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the directors' remuneration disclosures.
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7 EEME @)
(a) BYFEHITES

BZE2012F12831HLEEE

7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

For the year ended 31 December 2012

&8 Ee
e ek A BREER sHEIHERR M&%E
Employee
share Pension
Salaries and option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
FTERT TET TERT FERT FTET FTERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
YER (Mfz@) Man Mo Leung (Note (a)) 249 - - - - 249
Az (FifiEb))  Lin Ching Yee, Daniel
(Note (b)) 1 - - - _ 1
FE% (ffzEb))  WeikKuo-chiang (Note (b)) 1 - - _ _ 1
BREE Tsui Hing Chuen, William 250 - - - - 250
25, Lau Wai Piu 200 - - - - 200
701 - - - - 701
(@) R20125F12A31 BEHE - (@) Resigned on 31 December 2012.
(b) 20121231 BEERIE (b) Appointed on 31 December 2012.
BE201MF12A3NALFE For the year ended 31 December 2011
==} BiRE
Hwe Fekfz AL FEREERA FEMER Mesm
Employee
share Pension
Salaries and option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions remuneration
TR THAT THT THT FHIT THT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
YER Man Mo Leung 250 = = 96 = 346
HER Tsui Hing Chuen, William 250 = = 9% = 346
=1 Lau Wai Piu 200 - - 9% = 296
700 - - 288 - 983

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

For the year ended 31 December 2012

&8 EBirE
e HekfAz AL BREREA  GFEMR Mess
Employee
share Pension
Salaries and option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
THER T THET THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITESE : Executive directors:
i Li Jianguo 300 - - - 14 314
OB Lin Yong* - 3,360 4,458 - 14 7,832
ZHRE (FifEE(b))  LeeYiuWing (Note (b)) - 2,000 2,500 - 9 4,509
BRE%Z (B3E@)  Chan ChiOn (Note (a)) - 2,460 2,615 - 14 5,089
BIRE Poon Mo Yiu - 2,400 3,700 - 14 6,114
A Hui Yee, Wilson - 2,160 3,440 - 14 5614
300 12,380 16,713 - 79 29,472
FEHITES : Non-executive directors:
= Ji Yuguang 200 - - - - 200
St (BHEbD)  WuBin (Note (b)) 133 - - - - 133
= ERREE (BiEE(b)) Hiroki Miyazato (Note (b)) 133 - - - - 133
BR&EH (FffsE())  Chen Chungian (Note (b)) 133 - - - - 133
B Cheng Chi Ming, Brian 200 - - - - 200
F=48 (fizE())  Wang Meijuan (Note (0)) 67 - - - - 67
866 - - - - 866
1,166 12,380 16,713 - 79 30,338

*  EHE012F12ANBIEEE 0B
IMEEAREETRES, -

(@) 7201351 A1 HEHE -

(b) FA20129F9 A1 BHEHE

() M2012F9A1BERT -

*  Lin Yong was also the Chief Executive of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2012.

(@) Resigned on 1 January 2013.

(b) Resigned on 1 September 2012.

(c) Appointed on 1 September 2012.
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7 EEME @ 7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(b) BIITEERFHITESES (&) (b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)
BZE2011F12831HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2011
==} RIRE
e FekfEe T4l EEIREERRA SHEMESR [
Employee Pension
Salaries and share scheme Total
Fees  allowances Bonuses option benefits contributions remuneration
THAT TAT FHT TAT FHT THAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITEE Executive directors:
T2 Li Jianguo 300 = - 153 12 465
o> Lin Yong* 200 1,120 2,560 153 12 4,045
=4A6 (MfsE@)  Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter (Note (a)) = 1213 = = 4 1217
RS Lee Yiu Wing = 2,760 2,350 306 12 5428
BRE% Chan Chi On = 2,460 2010 287 12 4,769
BRE Poon Mo Yiu = 2,400 1,800 229 12 4441
BEEACE{D) Hui Yee, Wilson (Note (b)) - 1,208 1,340 191 8 2,747
500 11,161 10,060 1319 72 23,112
HEHITEE Non-executive directors;
2RI (Ff5E())  Li Mingshan (Note (c)) 198 = = = = 198
EFK Ji Yuguang 200 = = % = 29
ES) Wu Bin 200 = = 96 = 296
= BEEE (F45E(d)) Hiroki Miyazato (Note (d)) 158 = = = = 158
BRAEE Chen Chungjan 200 = = 9% = 29
] Cheng Chi Ming, Brian 200 = = 9% = 29
1,156 = = 384 = 1,540
1,656 11,161 10,060 1,703 72 24,652
* 201144 H298 E2011F12H318 *  Lin Yong was the Chief Executive of the Group from 29 April
MBRRNEEBERITHAES - A 2011 to 31 December 2011 and Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter was
20111 ATAE20115F48298 © &= the Chief Executive of the Group from 1 January 2011 to 29
AR EEAITHRARE - April 20171.
(@) F2011F4H298 R - (@) Retired on 29 April 2011.
(b) MA2011F4R20B LT o (b) Appointed on 29 April 2011.
() FA2011F4H29H BT - (¢) Resigned on 29 April 2011.
(d) M2011F3R17BEEZE - (d) Appointed on 17 March 2011.

BRERESEEERAR § 52012
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8 hEFHFEemeENEERSHRE 8 Five highest paid employees and senior

HEMWE management remuneration
(@) IEHFEEANESR (a) Five highest paid employees
FANREFcEaMNESRESSR (2011 The five highest paid employees during the year included five
F58)EE EEMENFBRLEX (2011: five) directors, details of each director’s remuneration
MisE7E% - ERBE 2R FARE are set out in note 7 above, in which a director resigned
(20114F : FRNE(E) KESE - #FE2012 (2011: appointed) during the year. The total remuneration of
F12H31H X201 12H31B IEFE#% such director for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
HEZNFENSBBEEIIOT ¢ December 2011 was as follows:
AEHE
Group
B ZE20126F B Z=20114F
12A310LEE 2ANBLEFE
(FffzE(@)) (Ht5E(b))

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011

(Note (a)) (Note (b))
FHET AT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Frekfe Salaries and allowances 5,250 3,020
RIRESFTEIHR Pension scheme contributions 13 12
12 BEERSRERE A Employee share option benefits - 191
5,263 3,223

MeE T BEANNGRSFHIEESEE The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

AT - remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
EEAH
Number of employees

201245 20114
2012 2011
3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,00075 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - -
4,000,0017% 7T £4,500,000/8 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - =
4,500,001 % 7T 2 5,000,00078 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - =
5,000,001 7T 2 5,500,00075 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 -
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8 hEFHFEemeENEERSHRE 8 Five highest paid employees and senior

HEMWE @ management remuneration (continued)
(@) EEHFEESNER &) (a) Five highest paid employees (continued)
@ #HZE2012F12A31BLEFE: Fexm @  The remuneration of highest paid employees for the year ended

HE B 45 FREE » HR2012F981 8 &
TEZ=H  HEERTALQREESR
20124F11 H308 - RIEREE RESH
FEFRERNAMEELHE -

(b) FZE2011FN2ANABLEFE F2iS (b)
BB BIEET & - 201154200 %
ZAEBEANRES - FIEARERES
M SFBERAM L HE -

31 December 2012 included the remuneration of, Lee Yiu
Wing, a director of the Company who resigned as director on 1
September 2012 but remained as an employee of the Company
until 30 November 2012. Details of his remuneration both as an
employee and as a director are included in this note.

The remuneration of highest paid employees for the year ended
31 December 2011 refer to remuneration of Hui Yee, Wilson, who
was appointed as a director of the Company on 29 April 2011.
Details of his remuneration as an employee and as a director are
included in this note.

et EXFRENS S RETRERAER Note: Details of the remuneration disclosed above do not include amounts
EEEEMNENIENEE - paid or payable by way of commissions generated by employees of
the Group.
b) BREEEMNS (b) Senior management remuneration
AEESREBEHTMMN FIUTE The emoluments of the Group’s senior management fell within
c the following bands:
N
Number of individuals
20124 20114F
2012 2011
1,500,001/ 7T 2 2,000,000/8 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 5
2,000,001 7T £2,500,00078 7T HKS$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1
3,000,00178 7T 2 3,500,000 7T HKS$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 1
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T HKS$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 2 -
7 7
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9 HIEMX 9 Taxation expenses
BBMFH I FE ANEDBEE ) hETER Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
i 8 A2 B 2 16.5% (20114F : 16.5%) 7112 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
B o R E M H[E A FERR B m A B 18 Th IR IR during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
R B & TS AR R IR ITE - calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
ZRERED - REHHRITHETE - the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

rEE

Group
20124 201148
2012 2011
FEx T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

REPRIIE — A Current taxation — Hong Kong

FATIE Charge for the year 45,500 21,379
BRAFERBETR /(BEEE) Under/(over)provision in prior years 325 (851)
ZNERFRIE — /BN Current taxation — overseas 2,500 1342
FRIEFETE (FI5E29) Deferred taxation (note 29) (5,291) 4103
FNFIEFA S 858 Total taxation charge for the year 43,034 25,973

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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9 BIEMX @)

ANER B RO BR B AT
EHERERERWT

MR IR R BB B R E

9 Taxation expenses (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Hong Kong

as follows:

20126 20114

2012 2011

FET FAT

HKS$’000 HK$'000

BR 75 A A Profit before taxation 337,656 179,058

R R16.5% (20114F : 16.5%) Tax calculated at 16.5%

sTERFIE (2011:16.5%) 55,713 29,545

AN IER A Income not subject to tax (20,628) (24,047)

DRMNF A2 H Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8,904 14,282

BEFEEETR /(GBREEEE) Under/(over)-provision in prior years 325 (851)

I R B TE B 15 Tax losses not recognised 580 2,642
) A AT I ERR R Utilisation of previously unrecognised

E518 tax losses (10,161) (896)

BN EZ R Effect of different overseas tax rates 1,763 168

Hit Others 6,538 5,130

FRRIAR S 4258 Total taxation charge for the year 43,034 25,973

HE2012F12A31BIEFE - AEBEHTH
BB EA12.7% (20114F  145%) ° FEET
BIYERETHEBARBSABEFELEN
MEEE B ERRIEEECHEEE -

10 R AR RAEFH ARG RF

The average effective tax rate of the Group was 12.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 14.5%). The decrease was driven by
certain subsidiaries which utilised tax loss brought forward from prior
years with no corresponding deferred tax assets being recognized.

10 Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

HZE2012F128318BIEFE - ARG B
BEFPERENARBBRATEARIGLRE
Yt A1) B8 5 5% 7#1118,303,0007 7T (20114F
119,930,000 7T ) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a profit of
HK$118,303,000 (2011: HK$119,930,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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1"MRE 11 Dividends
20124 20114F
2012 2011
FHET FBT
HK$’000 HKS'000
FIRFHR S Interim dividend declared
— i E RS AL — HK8 cents (2011: HK6 cents)
(20114 : 6781l per ordinary share 73,227 54,920
BRAREAR B Proposed final dividend
— FRRE %7 55 — HK7.5 cents (2011: HK2 cents)
(20114 : 2784L) per ordinary share 68,651 18,307
141,878 73,227

R2011E8H4H » ARAIEESRFESTIR
HZ=2011%F6A308 LL6ffl B EAR S B
67811l o AR HA A% B.54,920,00058 7T 2 1220114
9 A30H KT ©

R2012838138 » ARAZEEe@ZHRA
HE2011F12A318 IEFERKRBEREF
278l o R HARK B.18,307,00058 7T 2 7A20124F
529 RS o

R2012F8H168 * ARBEESRZETIK
H E2012%6 A30H LL6fd A Hy & HARE B =%
8781l o AR HARR B.73,227,00058 7T B 7A20124F
9B 18 B RS °

R2013F3sH BTN AR EETT &
E EFEBRNEZE2012F12A318LEF
& B R HAR% B & ££68,650,70378 7T ° IR IE IR
BEETRDER A £915342,706/% 5T & -
HZEZ2012F 128318 EFE 2 KRB EB
BER7SBI (EBBEESERERARRER
201354 H298 3% 2 B TR 21T 8 DA
B BEETROBE M TUARE: MR
20134 H298 & 5| A R 7 I 38 44 i /9 A% 2R
15 E U ER R EAAR B, ) ©

HZE2012F128318 I FE R BEUR R HAE S
BRFARARRRAEERRBFE RS EH#
% HAEE -

On 4 August 2011, the Board of the Company resolved to declare
an interim dividend of HK6 cents per share for the 6 months ended
30 June 2011. Interim dividend of HK$54,920,000 was paid on
30 September 2011.

On 13 March 2012, the Board of the Company recommended a final
dividend of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2011, Final dividend of HK$18,307,000 was paid on 29 May 2012.

On 16 August 2012, the Board of the Company resolved to declare
an interim dividend of HK8 cents per share for the 6 months ended
30 June 2012. Interim dividend of HKS$73,227,000 was paid on
18 September 2012.

At a meeting of the Board of the Company held on 5 March 2013,
the directors recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012 in the total amount of HK$68,650,703.
Based on the existing number of issued shares of 915,342,706, the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 shall amount
to HK7.5 cents per share (subject to adjustment as a result of any
corporate actions of the Company affecting the number of issued
shares on or before 29 April 2013, the date which all shareholders
whose names appear on the register of the members of the
Company shall entitle to the final dividend).

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012

is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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12 ;ISJ’A?JHQZIS%EAE{E%HQE
|

BREABNSEDREFALARR T BK
AEFA ARG - ARFABEETEBK
BRI E -

SREERN SR IRIEFARNR B RAR
BABEGHNE o 5T ERARANE B
IREFIE - Bt EEREARRFPTRAN
FADRTEBRRBER - LRZEBK
IHEFHHE N2 R T EE L BRERS
BETERERST AR - METRERT -

(a) BREAXRER

12 Earnings per share attributable to equity

holders of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(a) Basic earnings per share

20124 20114F
2012 2011
RRBIRAFEE ARG A Profit attributable to equity holders
(F%7T) of the Company (HK$'000) 293,450 153,204
2 31T B AR A N 15 ) Weighted average number of
(Fi=) ordinary shares in issue
(in thousands) 915,343 790,847
BRERZF Basic earnings per share
(BB ) (HK cents per share) 32.06 19.37
(b) BREERF (b) Diluted earnings per share
20124 20114F
2012 2011
RARIRAFEE AL A Profit attributable to equity holders
(F%7T) of the Company (HK$'000) 293,450 153,204
BT TR IR e 2R Weighted average number of
(FA&) ordinary shares in issue
(in thousands) 915,343 790,847
FEEIREE L R AR Adjustments for share options
(Fh) (in thousands) - 911
915,343 791,758
BREERT Diluted earnings per share
(=FBBL) (HK cents per share) 32.06 19.35
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BEEEE 13 Fixed assets
rEE Group
B %E BB
HELHRET HENEEE e EELE  REARER @t
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software
land and Leasehold fixtures and Computer  and system
buildings  improvements equipment hardware  development Total

TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R012E1 /1R At 1 January 2012
AR Cost 3,002 69,639 53,409 88,933 265,297 480,370
2HME Accumulated depreciation (1,138) (58,654) (46,441) (75,898) (120,068) (302,199)
ERFE Net carrying amount 1,954 10,985 6,968 13,035 145,229 178,171
R012E1 718 At 1 January 2012, net of
NB2EnE accumulated depreciation 1,954 10,985 6,968 13,035 145,229 178,171
RE Additions - 3,485 4,763 919 3,350 12,517
it Disposals - - (281) (76) - (357)
e Depreciation (77) (4,043) (2,851) (6,118) (34,445) (47,534)
12012F 128318 At 31 December 2012, net of
NR2ENE accumulated depreciation 1,877 10,427 8,599 7,760 114,134 142,797
2012128318 ¢ At 31 December 2012
A Cost 3,092 72,703 54,350 89,052 268,646 487,843
2RE Accumulated depreciation (1,215) (62,276) (45,751) (81,292) (154,512) (345,046)
REFE Net carrying amount 1877 10,427 8,599 7,760 114,134 142,797
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.A_| ~. —_— )
1B3EEEE @) 13 Fixed assets (continued)
AEE (&) Group (continued)
i £E e
METHREET HENEERE Rkt EE  REOEE et
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software
land and Leasehold fixtures and Computer and system
buildings  improvements equipment hardware  development Total
TAL THL THL T T T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R011E1 418 At 1 January 2011
AR Cost 3002 62694 52298 81,892 216039 416015
2HME Accumulated depreciation (1,061) (55,171) 44122 (73564) (90677) (264,595)
REFE Net carrying amount 2031 7523 8176 8328 125362 151420
R01E1A1R At 1 January 2011, net of
K 2iHE accumulated depreciation 2031 7523 8,176 8,328 125362 151420
AE Additions - 6,959 2254 11983 49758 70454
L& Disposals - 1) (144) = - (145)
i Depreciation {77 (349) (3318) (7,276) (29391) (43558)
R011E128318 At 31 December 2011, net of
NR2ENE accumulated depreciation 1,954 10985 6968 13,035 145,229 178171
011E12R318 ¢ At 31 December 2011;
KA Cost 3002 69,639 53409 83933 265297 480370
2IENE Accumulated depreciation (1,138) (58654) (46,441) (75.89) (120068) (302,199)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,954 10985 6,968 13,035 145229 178171
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BEEEE @ 13 Fixed assets (continued)
P/ Company
fR - kB EREH
HETHRET HENEER EL ] EHEE  REGER it
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software
land and Leasehold fixturesand Computer and system
buildings improvements equipment hardware  development Total

TR TR TER TER TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ROEIAIR : At 1 January 2012;
KA Cost 1,178 44,570 32,025 pYp) 62 78,107
ZRNE Accumulated depreciation (346) (33,760) (25,872) (27) (62) (60,311)
FEFE Net carrying amount 832 10,810 6,153 1 - 17,796
R01E1A1H At 1 January 2012, net of
M 25EHE accumulated depreciation 832 10,810 6,153 1 - 17,79
e Additions - 3,212 3,770 - - 6,982
HE Disposals - - (136) - - (136)
e Depreciation (29) (3,997) 2,372) ] - (6,399)
R012E12A318 At 31 December 2012, net of
Nh2ERE accurnulated depreciation 803 10,025 7,415 - - 18,243
012128318 At 31 December 2012:
AR Cost 1,178 47,782 35,377 272 62 84,671
2RNE Accumulated depreciation (375) (37,757) (27,962) (272) (62) (66,428)
REFE Net carrying amount 803 10,025 7,415 - - 18,243
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BEEEE @ 13 Fixed assets (continued)
AT (&) Company (continued)
il RE e
HETHRET HENERE Rk EHEE  REGER @&
Computer
Leasehold Furniture, software
land and Leasehold fixtures and Computer and system
buildings  improvements equipment hardware  development Total
TAL TAL TAL ThL TAL ThL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R0nE1 AR : At 1 January 2011:
A Cost 1178 37625 31014 238 62 70117
2HENE Accumulated depreciation (316) (30377) (24010) (232) (62) (54997)
ERFE Net carrying amount 862 7,248 7,004 6 - 15,120
R01E1A1R At 1 January 2011, net of
TR ERNE accumulated depreciation 862 7248 7,004 6 - 15,120
NE Additions - 6,959 1,984 26 - 8969
HE Disposals - (1) (44) - - (45)
e Depreciation (30) (339) 2791) 31) - (6:248)
R011E12A318 At 31 December 2011, net of
nkR2%EnE accurnulated depreciation 832 10810 6,153 1 5 17,7%
R011E12A8318 - At 31 December 2011:
R Cost 1,178 4570 32,025 b, 62 78107
2RITE Accumulated depreciation (346) (33,760) (25872) 71) (62 (60311)
REFE Net carrying amount 832 10810 6,153 1 - 17,79
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1BEEEE @ 13 Fixed assets (continued)
EXFAEASENEE T HREFURE The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above are situated
B R NHEEFEHREE in Hong Kong and are held under the following lease terms:
rEE
Group
12831H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RAREFE : At net carrying amount:
FHAEE Medium term leases 1,877 1,954
14 58 14 Goodwill
REE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 201148
2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
= Goodwill 9,854 9,854

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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14 BHE #)
BEREAR
BETRENR  BEREKA KB R

EORETIBAZHRSANRCELSE
fi

MBREINFEARBRSELEN - &

BEMESBERGREEL B

14 Goodwiill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

Financial planning and advisory services cash-generating unit;
and
Asset and fund management services cash generating unit

STREESReELASMNEENERAEEDT The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
T~ generating units is as follows:
B REIR BEER
BHRYE EeEERE et
Financial
planning and Asset and fund
advisory  management
services services Total
THET THET TET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEMEREE Carrying amount of goodwill 854 9,000 9,854

() MBRBNFABRBREELEN

B 75 5K Bl I 5 R AR 765 ) R Ui (2] < BB T LA
FREBEREE FRERETEEFRN
HERERAFTHEMNReRERAE
TE ° I8 %= TR FT FE A A 3T IR 3K A5%
(20114F : 5%) + MR RETIERB10%
(20114F : 15%) MU R « I JHiRIK A
ERAREEEBYMSERNEHME

on

BRERESEEERAR § 52012

(i) Financial planning and advisory services cash-generating

unit

The recoverable amount of the financial planning and advisory
services has been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 5% (2011: 5%) and cash flows are using a
growth rate of 10% (2011: 15%) which is determined based
on past performance and management’s expectations for the

market development.



14 BHE #)

ﬁ%iﬁﬁhxu:ﬁ: (gg)
(i) BERESEERBRESEEEN

EERESERRGRSELBAHNT
WEleEIAERAEEREE  FRS
BEBEAMERE A FHENESR
EEAEE - Rem=BAFERNT
WK A5% (20114F : 5%) * MRESRE
3% £ B B 6% (20114F : 10%) (FL 1%
BEESEEBME) k6% (20114 : 10%)
(REMESETEMS) MERE - 1))
BREBARRAREEEHMSERNE
HmERE o

T E2012912A31H K201 12A31H 8 7%
REIRABARBAREERESBERBEH
CELBUNERABER BEERAETEE
fRE& o AT Sl E 1 [T B R E R A
RensBAMKENSEEZME

BEAREN -REETRERRERNAR
EEEBENEESEERREFEAFREIG
BB ER - WERTEHREEA KA
HimgERMELARERAE -

1 5 — 7 (2 P BT 30 3 A R BUE AT
R AR B E R % o
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14 Goodwiill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
(ii) Asset and fund management services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the asset and fund management
services cash-generating unit has been determined based on
value in use calculation using cash flow projections covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 5% (2011:
5%) and cash flows are using a growth rate of 6% (2011: 10%)
(for investment fund management) and 6% (2011: 10%) (for
other fund management) which are determined based on past
performance and management’s expectation for the market
development.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the financial planning and advisory services and asset and fund
management services cash-generating units as at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow

projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwvill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the years immediately before the budget years, adjusted
for expected efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before taxation and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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SHEEEE 15 Other intangible assets
rEE
Group
12H31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR (BREI4A(E) Cost (gross carrying amount) 10,131 10,131
R Accumulated amortisation (3,522) (3,522)
BREVFE Net carrying amount 6,609 6,609
AREERITEREE - R2005FRKAEE Upon the adoption of HKAS 38 “Intangible assets” in 2005, the
S ERFER [BEEE] K - A&EER Group's eligibility rights to trade on or through The Stock Exchange
BEBBMERSMBRARIEEERER S of Hong Kong Limited and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
BRARETEENERENREFER of net carrying amount of HK$4,609,000 (2011: HK$4,609,000) are
4,609,000/ 7T (20114F : 4,609,000/ 7T) * # considered to have indefinite lives, which are not amortised, as the
REBERE - BUSBTIREHE - TRAE trading rights have no expiry date. The accumulated amortisation
et ERIE3s ((BIVEE] Al - £1& is brought forward from prior years before the adoption of HKAS 38
BETER B BEEERE - (‘intangible assets”).
H $22,000,0007 7T T3 28 &= B ¥ 57 7t X &9 % The remaining HK$2,000,000 represents the Group's investment in
B AMERXRGIEREB A EEHEER throttle rate for trading order to be transmitted to the Automated
7o ZEMEEWEDEA - Matching System of the Stock Exchange. This intangible asset has no
expiry date.
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16 HittEE 16 Other assets
rEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
LRAE - At cost:
REEZPTEIR S Deposits with the Stock Exchange:
EEES Compensation fund 650 650
BiRES Fidelity fund 350 350
BELMHAEEREREZTES Dealers' deposit with the Securities
R EIERE and Futures Commission 350 350
ENFER RS Stamp duty deposit 500 500
PREE LR R GRE Contributions to The Central Clearing
ERHN and Settlement System
Guarantee Fund 780 550
NTERBPREEARAA Admission fee paid to Hong Kong
A& Securities Clearing Company Limited 300 300
BBEAER Z TSR Reserve fund with The SEHK Options
BRARNEES Clearing House Limited 5,369 9,123
REBHEEEBR AR Deposit with HKFE Clearing
RESHNZES Corporation Limited in contribution
to the reserve fund 9,016 1,500
BRERIREE G EE Cost of membership for a seat at The
B R Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society 486 486
NTRINEBLHERZMER Compensation fund paid to The
NEIREERS Shenzhen Stock Exchange Co,, Ltd. 300 300
T EEBHFRRERER Settlement Risk Fund paid to The
AR E R LR E S Shanghai Securities Central
Clearing and Registration Corporation 387 387
HAh Others 315 315
18,803 14,811
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17AMBATINIREREW B 17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts

= == ° ° .
F 5 B A~ 7] BV FRIB due from/to subsidiaries
R BRI MIEE K EW FEHE A R The investments in subsidiaries and the amounts due from/to
RFIET ¢ subsidiaries are as follows:
PN
Company
12H31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FHET T
HK$’000 HKS'000
EETMRRD RE - R AE Unlisted shares/investments, at cost 105,377 105,377
JE W [ 2 &) B SR IE Due from subsidiaries 5,428,021 4,024,331
FERTHTB R B HRIE Due to subsidiaries (1,775,577) (1,468,719)
3,757,821 2,660,989
EAf B N R AR BT IR - BB KA The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are
EREE - B BRI B A B8 KR repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of these amounts due
BREEREEQAFEES - from/to subsidiaries approximate their fair values.
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17 RHMBATNREREW &
B DT MFIE (#)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

HZE2012F128318 1k RRRINEEN B

The particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at

NRIFBERT : 31 December 2012 are as follows:
A ERTRAZE XRDREMEZREBLL
ACEL aMREERE HE/ BEREFEHE BE B3 FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
RESEERARN BE 10078 7T - 100 REZR
Grand Mountain Holdings Limited * Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
BREEEE (B8) BRAR BE 20,000,000/ 7T - 100 RUESERRG
Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Provision of fund
management services
BERE (BE) BRAR BB 10,000,00077C - 100 Rft R AR
Hai Tong Capital (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 Provision of corporate
advisory services
BREREEERERAA BE 13000000787 - 100 REZBRNEERE
Haitong International Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 Investment holding and
asset management
Haitong International Asset Management HE#HS 10,0008 - 100 AR A B R
(Cayman) Limited Cayman Islands YEN10,000 Provision of investment
management services
SRR EEEEREAGRAR BE 6,000000757T - 100 BEEE
Haitong International Asset Management Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 Proprietary trading
Nominees Limited
BREREXBRAR BE 7,000,000 7T - 100 EEBANEERRS
Haitong International Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 Bullion contracts

dealing and trading

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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17 AMBATINREREW &

B DT MFIE (#)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

A ERTREAZE XRDREMEZREBLL
ACEL aMREERE HE/ BERESEHE BE B3 FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
Haitong International (BVI) Limited P et 11,576/87T 100 - REER
British Virgin HK$11,576 Investment holding
Islands
BREREABRAR &R 20,000000787T - 100 Rft R AR
Haitong International Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Provision of corporate
advisory services
Haitong International Capital Management Limited ~ HBR LS Em - 100 BB
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding
Islands
BRERBERARAR) BB 5,0000007%7T - 60 Rft S R ARY
Haitong International Consultants Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Provision of financial
advisory services
BRERREREERERAR 0 2,000000%7T - 100 REER
Haitong International Equity Investment Hong Kong 1S$2,000,000 Investment holding
Management Limited *

ERERAI B ER AR BE 300,000,002/t - 100 HREER HEXBLESEER
Haitong International Finance Company Limited Hong Kong (BREEELR Investment holding,
100,700,0017%57T) money lending
HK$300,000,002 and securities trading

(Non-voting

deferred?

HK$100,700,001)
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

A ERTREAZE XRDREMEZREBLL
ACEL MR EELE HE/ BUERLH BE B3 FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BREREIE R R ORF9) BRAR B JRHE500,0007T - 59 RESERS
Haitong International Financial Macau MOP500,000 Provision of support services
Management Consultancy

(Macau) Limited*
ERERAEERAR BE 100,000,0007T - 100 MELRRELEBLEER
Haitong International Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 Futures and options
broking and trading
BRERERERERAR) BE 10000077T - 60 RUBRE RS
Haitong International Immigration Hong Kong HK$100,000 Provision of immigration
Consultants Limited* consultancy services
Haitong International Information Systems Inc. EREIHE 17T = 100 AR
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding

Islands
BRERERZRERAA BE 11,000,000/ 7T - 100 REEARBRANR
Haitong International Information Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 Provision of information
Systems Limited technology solutions
Haitong International Information Technology Inc. ~ EBRZE S 17T - 100 REER
British Virgin Usst Investment holding
Islands

BREARRKE (£g1) BRAFN 0 19000000 7T - 100 RBI
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong US$19,000,000 Investment holding

(Fund 1) Limited *
BRERREEEERAA? BE 1,000,000 7 - 100 REER
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong US$1,000,000 Investment holding

Group Limited *

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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17 AMBATINREREW &

B DT MFIE (#)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

A ERTREAZE XRDREMEZREBLL
ACEL aMREERE HE/ BERESEHE BE B3 FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company

Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
Haitong International Investment Management Inc. ~ EBRZES 17T - 100 REER
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding

Islands
BRERRECERRAT BE 47,000,00077C - 100 RUEEREERRY
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong HK$47,000,000 Provision of asset and fund
Managers Limited management services
BRRARRERBERAR BE 42,5000007%7C - 100 BAREREE
Haitong International Investment Hong Kong HK$42,500,000 Securities investment
Services Limited and dealing
BRERERREERAR BE 2B - 100 RUEERY
Haitong International Management Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of management
Services Company Limited services
Haitong International Net Inc. REERAEE 17T - 100 AR
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding

Islands
BRERKEARRAR BE 50,000,000 7T - 100 EHEE
Haitong International Nominees Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 Securities trading

Company Limited

Haitong International On-line Inc. EBRIHE 17T - 100 REER
British Virgin Usst Investment holding

Islands
BRERETH LREER A BE 6,000,007 70 - 100 RUTFERRSG
Haitong International On-line Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 Provision of electronic

Services Limited

financial services

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

A ERTREAZE XRDREMEZREBLL
ACEL MR EELE HE/ BUERLH BE B3 FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
AR BRAR BE 1,000,000/ 7T - 100 REHATIRY
Haitong International Research Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Provision of research services
BRERESFERAA BE 1,500,000,000785 7 - 100 BERLEREREAR
Haitong International Securities Hong Kong HK$1,500,000,000 BIRINEEE
Company Limited Securities broking and
dealing and leveraged foreign
exchange trading
BREREFREABRAF i W - 100 REREARRE RS
Haitong International Securities Hong Kong HKS2 Provision of nominee and
Nominees Limited custodian services
SRR E R ARA R BE 1,240,00077C - 60  REMBRIRBARSER
Haitong International Wealth Hong Kong HK$1,240,000 TREREE A AE PR
Management Limited * Provision of financial planning
services and financial and
insurance products broking
Haitong PE Investment Management Ltd. HEHS 10%7T - 100 REER
Cayman Islands Uss10 Investment management
BEREARMRERAA BE 2B - 100 BB
T Technology Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
iT Technology Holdings Inc. RERAHS 17T - 100 REER
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding
Islands
Ocean Pilot Investments Limited EREIHE 17T - 100 REFER
British Virgin Uss1 Investment holding
Islands

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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17 AMBATINREREW &

B DT MFIE (#)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from/to subsidiaries (continued)

ML, ERTRAZE AAREGEZREBDL
AR ER MR EELE HE/ BUERLH =k IEE FEXH
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ issued share attributable to
registration capital/amount of the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BERARRA 9 2T - 100 REER
Prosper Ideal Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
EREARER (RI) BRAR) EINEP 10,000,000/ 7T - 100 REE RS RS
(=) HK$10,000,000 Provision of software
People’s Republic development services
of China ("PRC")
AEREHAER (BM) BRAA) h 2,000,000 - 100 R E R AR RS
PRC HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment
consultancy services
ARREHAER (L§) BRAA) H 7000003 7T - 100 RUREFDERRY
PRC US$700,000 Provision of investment
consultancy services
BREARRERA R BRAF h 2,000,007 7 - 100 R AR AR RS
PRC HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment
consultancy services
BRARRERN (L8) BRAA) h 2,000,000 - 100 R E R AR R
PRC HK$2,000,000 Provision of investment

consultancy services

1 REDEIEEEMSIIEEECENERS -

1 Entities registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC

law.

EEERECERYAME=ZERE - BFE
BEAEIRS ERENER - HER
WREARFEE FEIEMERLTZE
100,000,000,000,0007 7T 2 {E{7] B R FIA ©

RERFEMKL

WIEMZE ERUKBE TR EHMEZNNE
AT > WIEME LR KBS EKTEZ
WK BARMEEFELAEBEETFE
#491% (20114F : 1%) ©

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012

2 The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, attend or
vote at general meetings and receive any surplus in a return of capital,
winding-up or otherwise in respect of the first HK$100,000,000,000,000
thereof.

*  Incorporated during the current year.
# Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The aggregate

net assets of subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
approximates 1% (2011: 1%) of the Group's net assets.
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18 A HERE 18 Available-for-sale investments
*Em
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEMEDKRE  RATE: Unlisted fund investments, at fair value:
— &S ~ In Hong Kong 121,690 =
JEETMRARE - LAFE : Unlisted equity investments, at fair value:
— hE A () - In Mainland China (Note) 10,000 11,250
131,690 11,250
T Note:
ZEBRERBXREMCBEIEROERAR ([F The balance represents the promoter foreign shares of Changmao
1) (—EREE TRl AR LA AR )3 E Biochemical Engineering Company Limited (“Changmao’), a company listed
AINERR - HBFE TERZRBIOART @ AR on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock Exchange. Subject to
ENSEEPREEFEEEREES @ B E certain restrictions on transfer and upon obtaining the requisite approvals
NERBR N EIER - SR AINERATEIRK from, among other bodies, the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
ETHAR - SEIRE M TS AR R R B B T HARAR the Stock Exchange, the promoter foreign shares may be convertible into
[ o EAFETI A EmHARE T353R E A2 - listed H shares and shall thereafter carry the same rights and obligations of

those listed H shares. Its fair value is based on the quoted market prices of the
listed H shares.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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18 At HERE @) 18 Available-for-sale investments (continued)
Al HERE S E BT ¢ The movement in available-for-sale investments is summarised as
follows:

#HZE20125F HE20114F

12A31HILEE 12A318LLFE

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

FET FT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F1 At the beginning of the year 11,250 32,018
wnE S (HE) Addition/(disposal) 122,910 (17,976)

RSN E S REED Fair value changes transferred to the

NFE(EE investment revaluation reserve (2,470) (2,792)
FHR At the end of the year 131,690 11,250

19 EFEEEINHWRE

19 Held-to-maturity investments

rEE
Group
12H31H
31 December

20124 20114
2012 2011
TExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JELTEBES Unlisted debt securities 809,914 142,695

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012
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19 Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

The movement in held-to-maturity investments is summarised as

follows:

HZE2012F EEPIIES
12A31HILFE 2A3TBEILSFE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011

FET Tt

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F1 At the beginning of the year 142,695 -
NE Additions 656,682 142,481
B Amortization 10,537 214
FR At the end of the year 809,914 142,695

R2012F12HA318 HEEZIHWILE
B A F {E 4 A841,355,0007 JC (20114 :

131,508,000/ 7T, ) ©

AEEAMFENELEE SN NFEFEN T
2.95%E13.5% % + W HR20144F £2016%F

B2 -

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the held-to-maturity
investments was approximately HKS$841,355,000 (2011:

HK$131,508,000).

2016.

The debt securities held by the Group are having contractual interest
rate from 2.95% to 13.5% p.a and with maturity date from 2014 to

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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20 AR - HERHMEWEE 20 Prepayments, deposit and other receivables

by |
REE VNN
Group Company
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
20124 20114F 20124 20114F
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FAETT FHET AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
TEFRIE - e REAM Prepayments, deposits and
FEWARIE other debtors 151,587 119,913 17,740 8,527
I ETESES Unlisted debt securities 123,330 51,807 - =
274,917 171,720 17,740 8,527
WIEMENER(D Less non-current portion:
— JE L EBES - unlisted debt securities (123,330) (51,807) - -
mENER D Current portion 151,587 119,913 17,740 8,527
AREEFTRA NI EMES B SR NTEF The unlisted debt securities held by the Group bears contractual
E11%5HE - WK 201459 A B H] o interest of 11% p.a and will mature in September 2014.
20125124318 » IEEMEBEFHAF As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of unlisted debt securities was
{E 49 123,330,000/ 7T (20114F : 51,807,000 approximately HK$123,330,000 (2011: HK$51,807,000).
BIL) °
21 A TFTEFNAFRER 21 Advances to customers in margin financing
AEH
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 201148
2012 2011
FET THET
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BT HREREEHER Loans to margin clients 4,706,208 3,445,404
B ORERE Less: Impairment allowance (7,111) (7.111)
4,699,097 3,438,293

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012
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21 Advances to customers in margin financing

(continued)

@) ZEENBATENGETEEFHNITRES (@ The movements in impairment allowance of advances to
RO EREZ ST customers in margin financing, all assessed individually, are as
follows:
#HZ20128 HZE2011F
1231 HLEEE 2ANBIEEE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
=) At the beginning of the year 7111 7,111
M2 ERENS TR Write-off of fully impaired advances to
&k customers in margin financing - -
FR At the end of the year 7,111 7,111

BTHFREPHBERE  HiREAS
BEANEREFNTEHENETE

REbD#a T E‘E&%?‘E’JE%&EE*EF%E#&
HRESEERAFTE - AEER
BRRAIBRMBE - WEBEER }fﬁ?fﬁuu
L RG T ARER © MBEERL R
AleRneBuRm  MEFPEEHE
AR

72012912 A31H © 4,699,000,0007% 7T
(20114F : 3,438,000,000/57C) M4 T2 F
BT B & A B P M A & B (E
REMEHNESFREER KTE
™ {E /25,385,000,000% 7T (20114 :
15,937,000,000787F) °

The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are determined
by the discounted market value of the collateral securities
accepted by the Group.

The majority of the loans to margin clients are secured by the
underlying pledged securities and are interest bearing. The
Group maintains a list of approved stocks for margin lending at
a specified loan to collateral ratio. Any excess in the lending ratio
will trigger a margin call which the customers have to make
good the shortfall.

As at 31 December 2012, advances to customers in margin
financing of HK$4,699 million (2011: HK$3,438 million) was
secured by securities pledged by the customers to the Group as
collateral with undiscounted market value of HK$25,385 million
(2011: HKS 15,937 million).

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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21 68 FEFNHFRER @)

(b)

LTEPHNAFRERNEERRES I
T

21 Advances to customers in margin financing

(continued)

(b) The credit risk profiles of the advances to customers in margin
financing are as follows:

12A31H

31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
4= 8 B slORE Neither past due nor impaired 4,485,011 3,012,285
B8 BRI (A Past due but not impaired 214,086 426,008
BERE Impaired 711 7111
4,706,208 3,445,404

SEREAHEERENG TR
FR A8 S FE M 8 R BT B IR & FUIB HF
EMEPHRIE - ZEREAREFRAARN
SEEFEAERMA EMESFRHE
R - RITEM(E 42,554,000,0007% 7T
(20114 : 3,952,000,0007 7T ) °

B REBEE B R E /B KE
12 R 1B B 157,111,000 7T (20114 ¢
7,111,000 7T) °

TR PR B AR E SR BRE D AT 4N
N

Advances to customers in margin financing classified under
past due but not impaired represent those receivables from
customers who have outstanding unfilled margin call position.
The amount was secured by listed securities pledged by the
customers to the Group as collateral with undiscounted market
value of HKS$2,554 million (2011: HKS$3,952 million).

For impaired loans, an impairment allowance of HK$7,111,000
(2011: HKS7,111,000) has been provided.

The ageing analysis of the overdue advances to customers in

margin financing are as follows:

12A31H

31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& A A Overdue within 1 month 102,618 177,633
2&31E A Between 2 to 3 months 76,026 155,120
BiE3MEA Over 3 months 35,442 93,255
214,086 426,008

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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22 Other loans and advances

rEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
MENE EE Current asset
HEaERNMEK Other loans and advances 1,080,350 =
NEER - B E 3R 30 4 5 3 2 @ There is neither impaired nor overdue other loans and advances as of

H -

FIEZEHMERRBRHFERR, =
BREAXE  AINAHEEEAZIFET
% BRAORBEEERE - REMAMNE
2 ARETEEEEERALERAN
FATGIRR - MO HEER R BRI EE
2 - W ERERBRBERE - F2HW
ABAHAKENEERR

ZEERHRBEREEN R INEF R4%
Z7%8k 1% F & E F Fowzt & (20114128

318 : £E) o

HiERRBRAREERR FEALE -

the balance sheet dates.

All these other loans and advances are secured and/or backed by
guarantee with contractual maturity from 3 months to 1 year. Credit
limits are set for borrowers. Apart from collateral monitoring, the
Group seeks to maintain tight control over its loans and advances
in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or
guarantors' financial positions. See note 38 for the credit risk of the
Group.

These loans bear interest at Hong Kong prime rate plus 4% to 7% or
at a fixed rate of 9% per annum (31 December 201 1: Nil).

The carrying value of the other loans and advances is an
approximation of the fair value.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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=, .
23 FEUER X 23 Accounts receivable
rEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEWC T %1145 75 HOBR K Accounts receivable from:
—BF — Clients 179,370 52,741
— &5 - REEREEFT — Brokers, dealers and clearing house 1,209,227 874,987
— R ARG — Subscription of new shares in IPO - 53
— Hfth ~ Others 31,967 19,199
1,420,564 946,980
m REFEER - WEERERNRBIKERK - B There is no impaired accounts receivable as of the balance sheet
IRRR BRI DT T - dates. The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable is as follows:
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
FExT FAT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BNHEA=3(E B A ER Current or overdue within 3 months 1,400,096 940,164
4% 6(E A Between 4 and 6 months 9,830 2,659
7212{8 B Between 7 and 12 months 6,432 1,381
HBiE1F Over 1 year 4,206 2,776
1,420,564 946,980
E)f'i’*]?“ RGREE © K'élﬁﬁiféf”ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂz Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain
IR ERRE B 1 - LSS BRI E tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable in order to
E&ﬂi o BiffE e F HIEL SR EATIIE - B [E minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly monitored
ERERAEENREBASFNREPFEEN L by management. The management ensures that the listed equity
TR 5 B A S 45 X R B R FIE - securities belonged to clients in which the Group holds as custodian

are sufficient to cover the amount due to the Group.

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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24 BAFEHFABRENTHRE

24 Financial investments at fair value through
profit or loss

REE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
F#ET T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHEEE : Held for trading:
EmRAKE - mAFE Listed equity investments, at fair value:
= B’\Vé\}% —in Hong Kong 158 6,389
FELTEBEE  ZAFE Unlisted debt investments, at fair value:
— RNEB —in Hong Kong 294,374 =
FELEMIRERES  HAFE Unlisted investment funds, at fair value:
— AN (B FEA B A ) —in overseas (including Mainland China) 126,027 2,511
PTEYBTA Derivative financial instruments
— =5 - swap 21,162 8,324
441,721 17,724

R20128F128318 @ STAEMETANEREAR
% /30,000,0003 7T (20114 © 30,000,0003

The notional principal amounts of the derivative financial instruments
as at 31 December 2012 were US$30,000,000 (2011: US$30,000,000).

EERBRERAFABERER

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the

NS ATE

BREFFHANRE

AEERRARERRBLETRS - U7
MEFRIEEXBBEPAEEMNKIEA - K
SEBUERPRBADERGAEERER

ARBEEBRTHREPHANRE - WA
REBRREFRENEABLAXBHRAELE
ENFEMER QRN THERTPORER
K (HiaE2e) - KEFPRENASRESFRK
HERIIRTEFLRE (FPIR) R
PR B R ARE

fair value of these financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

25 Cash held on behalf of customers

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with authorized
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash
held on behalf of customers under the current assets section of
the consolidated balance sheet and recognised the corresponding
accounts payable (note 26) to respective clients on the grounds that
it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients' monies. The
cash held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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26 FE{TERRX 26 Accounts payable
rEH
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JERT T 75 HIBREK - Accounts payable to:

—BF — Clients 6,213,380 6,029,890
— R REEREER — Brokers, dealers and clearing house 61,997 14,199
— Hft - Others 470,526 800
6,745,903 6,044,889

REB D A BRR AR AN BRI EER - R
TRMNTEPHNERFIRIN  ZFRFIE
FPREBXGEREDETEEEIMAET,
WEBRNFRZE - AEBHREFRZEN
TRARREEREERF

AEEEFNEERARERANEER - 1
EHER - WEAREMRIER

R2012F12A31H  BREN TEFPRRIE
0.001% (20114 : 0.001%) &t B.4h - FR A fE
BRI TET R °

e T B PR ERRINEIEF R R AT #IEE
AR P B FE S 5RIB A #15,092,535,0007%8 T
(20114 : 4,992,026,00087C) : A RGTFHRE
BHEEEMAERAR - BRFTEELEE AT
REMBER S EERFAENRIES
769,722,000/ 75 (20114F : 575,183,000/ 7T ) ©

SRERESEEERAR 12012

The majority of the accounts payable balances is repayable on
demand except where certain accounts payable to clients represent
margin deposits received from clients for their trading activities
under normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payments
immediately within the credit period. There is no overdue accounts
payable balance as of the balance sheet dates.

Except for the accounts payable to clients which bear interest at
0.001% as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 0.001%), all the accounts
payable are non-interest bearing.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables placed
in trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$5,092,535,000
(2011: HK$4,992,026,000), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing
Corporation Limited, Stock Exchange Options Clearing House
and other futures dealers totaling HK$769,722,000 (2011:
HK$575,183,000).
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27 Other payables and accruals

rEH ¥ /N
Group Company
124318 12A31H
31 December 31 December

20124 20114F 20125 20114
2012 2011 2012 2011
FER AT FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HAbEBRF R EET3IE  Other payables and accruals 185,488 102,345 69,540 13,814

H it AR ANE B RARFRE

o

A

Other payables are non-interest bearing and are repayable within

one year.
28 ER R HMEE 28 Loans and other borrowings
REE RAHE
Group Company
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20125 20114F 20124 20114F
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHET FET TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
mEaE Current Liabilities
BEREE : Secured borrowing:
RITEZ (M5E@E) ~ (b)) Bank loans (note (a), (b)) 2,105,000 648,000 - =
EEREE Unsecured borrowing:
RITE (MI=E®b)) Bank loans (note (b)) 2,257,238 961,325 1,725,156 611,325
HEiER Other loans
(P EED) ~ BFE3S) (note (b), note 35) - 85,200 - 85,200
4,362,238 1,694,525 1,725,156 696,525

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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28ERNREMEE @

(@) R 17 B 32,105,000,0007% 7T (20114F :
648,000,000/ 70) WA RN EBE AL T &
FPRARBRMFBEEERRO LT
iz (2% %~ [F &) 5491,000,0007 7T
(20114F : 2,104,000,0008 7T ) A o

b) RITEFREMERBEMFAESR -

NEBEFARITEELREBRITRERS
INEEFIZR0.5%ZE2% (20114F « BHRITRIZE
PR MERMZE055%ZE1.75%) 515 °

29 FEEBIBEEE E&E

2 BAE LR B BIBMITHEN A S AT IR A
EEANHHRBER GRS  MELMEHRIR
[F—BATRHRE - RIRTISRERIREELAE
EiREH - AT ABEEEREE - TSR E
FAREEREBERAIIRE

28 Loans and other borrowings (continued)

(@) Bank loans of HKS$2,105 million (2011: HKS$648 million) are
secured by the listed shares of HKS5,491 million (2011: HK$2,104
million) (with the customers’ consent) held by the Group as
security for advances to customers in margin financing.

(b) Bank loans and other loans are repayable within 1 year.

All the Group's bank borrowings bear interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.5% to 2% per annum (2011:
HIBOR plus 0.55 % to 1.75% per annum).

29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

REE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 201148
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HKS$'000
1R R 121 A & B Y Deferred tax assets to be settled
FIERIAE EE after more than 12 months 2,279 2,714
HHTERR 81218 A 1B E R AT Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEHIBEE after more than 12 months (19,000) (24,726)
(16,721) (22,012)

FR20128F %2011 128318 » NA B WET
MEXELEHBEENEE -

SRERESEEERAR 12012

The Company does not have any significant deferred tax assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Group

during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets - Group

IR ERAE HIEEE et
Accelerated
depreciation
allowances Tax losses Total
FA&T FAET FA&T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
201151 1R At 1 January 2011 885 2,584 3,469
FARGRE TR A Deferred tax (charged)/credited to
(HBR ),/ FLERAY the consolidated income
RIERIIE (PFFFE9) statement during the year
(note 9) (270) 366 96
20118128318 & At 31 December 2011
201241 A1H and 1 January 2012 615 2,950 3,565
FARGREWERRA Deferred tax charged to the
HIBR BYERERL TR consolidated income statement
(Ft7£9) during the year (note 9) ) (563) (564)
72012412 831H At 31 December 2012 614 2,387 3,001

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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29 REREBEEE B @

B IAEE — A EH

29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities - Group

IRITERE

Accelerated

depreciation

allowances

T

HKS$'000

R20114E1 A1H At 1 January 2011 21378
FRRERE Wk AR A IRET I8 Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income

(FffzE9) statement during the year (note 9) 4,199

20114128318 At 31 December 2011 25,577
FRRERE W RN RAELER IR Deferred tax credited to the consolidated income

(Ft7E9) statement during the year (note 9) (5,855)

2012128318 At 31 December 2012 19,722

RERELEHBTEE

EERITEE E R EMRARE A= B RR
REFRMEFNEEMMATEBNRIERSR
VERER o ZN 52 B 30 oK 5k A 45 83 LA 3K 85 R 2R
JIE 3R B U A B9 5 48 49109,000,0007%8 7T (2011
£ : 150,000,000 7T ) HE 7R IR AL A TH & B A
18,000,0005% 7T (20114 : 25,000,0007% JT) °
ZEBIEE B EERBE -

BRERESEEERAR § 52012

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$18 million (2011: HKS25
million) in respect of losses amounting to approximately HK$109
million (2011: HK$150 million) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry date.
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30 R 30 Share capital
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
F#ET THT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
SETERRA Authorised:
2,000,000,0000% (20114 : 2,000,000,000 (2011: 2,000,000,000)
2,000,000,0000% ) &I EE ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
0.1078 T A & iR 200,000 200,000
BT R Issued and fully paid:
915,342,706% (20114F : 915,342,706 (2011: 915,342,706)
915,342,706/% ) BAXEIE ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
0.10/8 ToHY & iR 91,534 91,534
BETIRANE T : The movements in issued share capital were as follows:
ERITRHEE BRITRAR
Number of Share capital
shares in issue inissue
AT
HKS'000
201141818 As at 1 January 2011 715,032,706 71,503
FE TR AR A T 357 T RO AR New shares issued due to exercise of
(FI3E@)) share options (note (a)) 310,000 31
AE AR EERMEITH New shares issued due to capitalization of
XD (FdaEb)) intercompany loans (note (b)) 200,000,000 20,000
20118128318 ~ 2012F1 1B Asat 31 December 2011, 1 January 2012
2012512 A31H and 31 December 2012 915,342,706 91,534

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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30 BRA (&)

(@) REIZE2012F12A31BLEEE @ WERE
REAEIETTE - MELZ=2011F 128318 1k
F[E + 310,00010 5 AR # B 12 = IR4.854
BITHRBEETE  BHALRKE
1,504,74078 70 3£ 77310,0000% B PE EI(H0.1
TR TS RAR o

(b) M20119F6H23H @ A& B 875 B FH R
ERARAR (ARRNEEZERAR)
RN —THEREREBE - BEZER
BER b FREEZERERAF
BB AL ER2011F6 8238 &R K
% B WA &) B 850,000,000/ 7T & AN
bR 75 = A= BR4.258 TT M B RE A
A F)200,000,0008% 3% 5 - A FIEE
EAREER2011F8AsH BITH AR F]
BRI A ERE - MARBKRGER
20114F8 H16H 31T » PTEE A AI AR 1D 3
TTRR A4 /53,775,0007 TC °

1RBIRAEST &

2002888238 @ AR BRI AR —
HER T2 ([2002F BB ET21]) © %
SHEIB 20128 H22H @i ©

20024 BB 31 81 0 = B (A EIRIR L
SRR BRI ¢

R A ERAN2002F PR A iR B - B WS

BB R SRR S B T UER AR A 7] & E
BRAAGIEMNRERRBE  RARE{[EE
HRADPZHEERA AR EBNENE I RE
BAFTAS 2R A9 R o 1R #2002 F BE AR #ERT &I -
o Tl i i VN = e 2 B =N
ERRNEMEZEE T - $IITE S MIEWMIT
EEo
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30 Share capital (continued)

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2012, no share options
were exercised. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
310,000 share options were exercised at subscription price
of HKS$4.854 per share, resulting in the issue of 310,000 new
ordinary shares of HKS$0.1 each for a total consideration of
HK$1,504,740.

(b) On 23 June 2011, the Group entered into a loan capitalisation
agreement with Haitong International Holdings Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Company. Pursuant to the
loan capitalisation agreement, Haitong International Holdings
Limited subscribed 200,000,000 shares of the Company at
HKS$4.25 per share by way of capitalisation of HK$850,000,000
intercompany loans owed by the Group as at 23 June 2011. The
capitalisation of intercompany loans was approved in a special
general meeting of the Company held on 8 August 2011 and
the shares were issued on 16 August 2011. Share issuing costs of
approximately HK$3,775,000 was incurred.

31 Share option scheme

On 23 August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”), which was expired on 22 August 2012.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme,
as disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules, is set out as follows:

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted for the purpose of
attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees to strive
towards long term performance targets set by the Company and
its subsidiaries and at the same time allowing the participants to
enjoy the results of the Company attained through their effort and
contribution. Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, options were
granted to any full time employees, executive and non-executive

directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates.
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R IR 2002 F FE AR MR T &) R AN A B o] E A
MR EIE TR LM BERES EREITE
Eitmal FETHNESKROEE - &HTE
BB B B A4R2002F B AR #E AT I B HAE
BATIRD 4B BRI 10% ([FHEIIREREE]) « #
RNAR A RARREA S S KRR 8 F Fat S
KR - (BAR R E S RIE2002F M8 A
FTEI R AD R E bR AR ST &I T S
REEENERRNEE - TEEBAQR
IR IR A S HEE T ERERE 2 A
NAFEEITRARI0% - RetEHEEE
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TENERE) TSHELN - BEEAR
LA EFrat R 5E - AR 2002 F BB R R At 8 K2 K
DR E b B AR ST 8 B B B B R ITE
BB AR I B R EITE - Bt Ml FRITH
ERROEBE @ TESEAARBTEEET
&7 #27930% (k EMAR AN RE B
L) o HRIE20024F B AR M AT &I R AN A FIME
] E A B8 AR AT 2R T 5 [E R 2 B E BB AR
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FEMEBETRETFETHRMOSTSEE
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit") but the Company may seek approval of its
shareholders at general meetings to refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit, save that the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted by directors of the Company under the
2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings where such limit is refreshed.
Options previously granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit as
refreshed. Notwithstanding the aforesaid in this paragraph, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval by the

shareholders of the Company at a general meeting.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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31 IR AEST &l (@)

31 Share option scheme (continued)

AAARES  EETHRABREER/REK
HAE(MBAK L ERE  BFLEB I
BATESHE o 1IN - MARARIEEREK
BN IERITE SR ETAHB AL EME
RefE - R 2ME A B A - BBBARES
EL IR FRERERZRZ AAAREEITRG
BERI0.1% * HBE (RARRRNONES
ERE THEREEZZ 2 BNKRMETE) B
i#85,000,0008 7T * HESHBEEARAFRE
ERRRSHE

BRENERATRELEREZORAH
HEEF30R ARMZEL - KB AX
MREVET - BERENTERRAESE
E o ERBBRENEABMRRK - %FH
PR R NI BB b B B AR ET 10 7T ©
BRENREBEHAR L BEMEFEETES
IREAM AL - FTARZ2002FBAE 8K
HABR S AoE A RBAR -

BRENTEEHESRETE  TRIRNT
BHENESBE  (ARRRODNELA
R P g B MEKRFROKTE : ()&
AR R B E 4 A BIRISE A2 5 B ROB
e A RERMATRNFHRTE R
DR EVEE °

7
i

r 2 &

B X

BRSNS A ABRERRSHRRRAS =

B’E -
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue at the date on which such grant is proposed by
the directors or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date on which such grant is proposed
by the directors) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders' approval in advance at a general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of the offer upon payment of a consideration of HK$1
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and such period shall commence
not earlier than 6 months from the date of grant of the options and
expire not later than 10 years after the date of grant of the options.
The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period. All share options
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme are subject to a 6-month
vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 22 August 2012. However,
the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
prior to its expiry are still exercisable pursuant to the terms of this
scheme.

Movements of share options outstanding under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year were as follows:

201291 A18
FRITE
FRRUK

7201212 A31H

At 1 January 2012

Exercised during the year
Forfeited during the year

At 31 December 2012

BZE12A3BLEEE
For the year ended 31 December
20126 20114F
2012 2011

hn#EF g piliL B
ITEE  BRERE IEE BEEHAE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
BRAET T4 BB T
HKS$ per share ‘000  HKS per share ‘000
5.25 43,216 5.26 54,807
- - 4.85 (310)
5.24 (11,076) 534 (11,281)

5.25 32,140 5.25 43,216

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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31 R ESTE @) 31 Share option scheme (continued)
REZ ARTEERENTEE RTEHAR The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
LU outstanding as of the balance sheet dates are as follows:

2012%12H831H
31 December 2012

BREHE TEE 1TEEHABR
Number of options Exercise price ' Exercise period
T4 BRET
‘000 HKS per share
12,367 5.879 2008F6 A1HZE2016F5H31H
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
19,773 4.854 201153 H3H £2019F3H2H

3 March 2011 to 2 March 2019

32,140
20114F12A31H
31 December 2011
BREHE TTEEE' TTEHAR
Number of options Exercise price ' Exercise period
T BRET
‘000 HKS per share
16,570 5.879 200856 H1HZE201655 A31H
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
26,646 4.854 20113 A3 2201953 A2H
3 March 2011 to 2 March 2019
43,216
1 BEREMITEE A BAALAR - LARR A B SRAT IR ' The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case
BITHARTEANEMEUE S mIEL of rights, scrip dividend or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
K o Company’s share capital.

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012
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RERIER HFEERRAE - AEEFBE
R 3 T BB AR RE T 72201 1 E e R BB AR 4
K FA 32 46,396,000 JT, °

RAFE - BEEEIERERITEE ° 72017
£ 310,0007 I IR EE AT (R BB A A A) %
77310,0000% & 8 Az - K #738 AR 231,000/
T 0 LA R B AP R (B 48 AN1,473,74078 7T (R0
BREITHY) » sHIBE NGRS B mR T
30 °

REER - AREIRE2002F AR T 8 1A
RIEFTIE /Y BB AR #E 2£ 532,139,525(7 (2011
& 1 4321575817) - WIEARRERZAE %
TTRRAD H93.51% (20114F : 4.72%) ° B8R T EE
Hﬁ%%%&%{ﬁﬁ , E$/&Eﬂ BRITE ARG 2

% 78 58 51 2% 1732,139,5250% (20114F :
43,215,758Hx) RARIERR - MARRHAR
7N 1% 38 A03,213,953% 7T (20114F : 4,321,576
7 TT) - B % (B 4% 15 10165,467,57178 TT
(20114F : 222,431,316 70) RN R B 17
X) e

RZERETERERLED - ZAFRIE
2002F R EETEI M RTTEMERERLS
32,139,5251% (20114F : 43,215,75817) * #9145
RRAFRZE B BEITIRMAI3.5% (20114
472%) °
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

No new share options were granted during the year. In 2011, the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$6,396,000 in relation
to certain share options granted in prior periods.

No share option was exercised during the current year. In 2011,
310,000 share options were exercised, resulting in issuance of 310,000
ordinary shares of the Company with new share capital of HK$31,000
and share premium of HKS$1,473,740 (before issue expenses), as
further detailed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 32,139,525 (2011:
43,215,758) share options outstanding under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 3.51% (2011: 4.72%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 32,139,525 (2011: 43,215,758)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$3,213,953 (2011: HK$4,321,576) and share premium of
HK$165,467,571 (2011: HK$222,431,316) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 32,139,525 (2011: 43,215,758) share options
outstanding under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represents
approximately 3.5% (2011: 4.72%) of the Company’s shares in issue at
that date.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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32 Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

for the current year and prior year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and its movements are as

follows:
bIN/NE| Company
RitaER  ERERE RAREEE MR RERH a5t
Share Share Capital
premium option  redemption  Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
ThL L ThL ThL ThL ThL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
RoonE1 818 At 1 January 2011 947472 4371 5102 2697 1817 991459
BORA Issue of share capital 825,025 = = = - 825,025
ERET - fio Profitfor the year - note 10 - - - = 119930 119930
BT EENHMERE New share options granted to
— 30 employees - note 30 = 6,39 = = = 6,3%
BTG - BRE Issue of new shares - Share
HE Options Scheme 1,651 (178) = = = 1473
ERGARAREE #2015 2017 interim dividend declared and
mERE - M settled in shares and cash - note 11 - - - - (54,920) (54,920)
BR0NERERE — M Proposed final 2011 dividend - note 11 - - - - (18307) (18307)
B R ERE Share options lapsed 6,306 (6,306) = = = =
R’011E12A318 At 31 December 2011 1780454 24283 5102 2697 58520 1871,056
Ro01241 818 At 1 Janary 2012 1780454 2483 5102 2697 58520 1871056
FAER - B0 Profitfor the year - note 10 - - - - 118,303 118,303
ERUMRA KL M0 2012interim dividend declared and
01ERHRS - M setled n shares and cash - note 11 - - - - (73227) (73227)
BR0DERERE — M1 Proposed final 2012 dividend - note 11 - - - - (68651) (68,651)
B A BERE Share options lapsed 6,225 (6,225) - - - -
B012128318 At 31 December 2012 1786679 18058 5102 2697 495 1847481

SREREAEEARAT P Fif 2012
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32 Reserves (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company also arose
in 1996 as a result of the group reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company and represented the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the
date of acquisition. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions to its members out
of the contributed surplus provided certain conditions are met.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company comprises
the fair value of share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.16 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are expired or forfeited.

33 Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office properties and computer
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from six months to six
years, and those for computer equipment for terms of three to four
years.

At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

rEH /N
Group Company
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
20124 20114F 20124 20114F
2012 2011 2012 2011
THET T FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
1A Within one year 62,123 83,432 15,920 315
F2EFESF In the second to fifth years,
(BIEEREME) inclusive 45,786 33,642 23,675 =
107,909 117,074 39,595 315

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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34 Other commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33

above, the Group had the following commitments at the balance

sheet date:

rEE
Group
12A31H
31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
FER FAT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EETA) - [BREME Contracted, but not provided for:

BINRIE Computer equipment 4,675 480

ISEEALIRS

(a)

BRERAMBHREREMEDF RO S
REHE BN ARERFRE EEE
ATETATEARS :

(i) M2011F  AEEEBEEARRNE
EERAREBBEEIZERAERRA A
12 4 £ K 3 B 5X85,200,0007%8 JT
HEBAB08%ET55% ° ZERERN
REEEE - F SR 2783328 7T
(20114F : 7,167,3817 L) ERF R
Xt o

SRERESEEERAR 12012

35 Related party transactions

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the year:

() In 2011, the Group obtained an unsecured loan of
HK$85,200,000 from Haitong International Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company which
borne an interest rate of 0.8% to 1.55% per annum. The loan
was repaid during year. Interest expense of HK$78,332 was
paid during the year (2011: HKS$7,167,381).



ISEEALTRE @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEAQBEARR R FEZERA
AVEBMBEHF RO B R A EE AR
Hat - EHERERASEE
TRARFFBEFRNHER AR R
HH B A BRERE - RIBRELR
BERREHORBEELLRS -
KRG REEBEMBERBER
5 BFEIANBERS  DERM
BRS - BRIFILFROBRARR
HIE N B B A B8 R D B AR
EUREMRBBRIERS - RER
BEMEOGRS  ZERBERER
EERNWERAZ S R A887678 7T
(20114F : 187,333/ JT) K&%592,1837%
7T (20114F : 4744858 7T) °

RAFEA  AEEFREARRNE
BEERARSRBEBEIZERAER QA
REZEZTRFEERE MUK
HY & 32 #1,079,0007 JT (20114 :
738,000/ 7C) - ZBRZE A AK
HEAREAENEEFENUNFENE
0.5%%1 & o

RAFER » AR BHEGREZERA A
HRE SN B R A & EHRR
BEABMERIMERAAERL
e AEBERXNERNAREEF
BIBEREEEA « BE2KD
N B E 2 TE A A KB TE R
BAZ— - REBEMBHEHEGEK
H o FARRXERNARAEEHER
7 £ 85 8 € 4105,031,97578 70 (H
E2011FNRANAEFE: BB
TL) ° AR5 BRIBIEAR R 7 HEE
B REF R0 B R A A 5] 3 A BR 7% 48
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35 Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii)

(iff)

(iv)

Pursuant to a master services agreement entered between
the Company and with Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. the
ultimate holding company of the Company, both parties
have agreed to provide services to the companies of the
Group or Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
Services pursuant to the master services agreement include
broking transactions, research transactions, investment
management and advisory services transactions,
seed injection or financing transactions, corporate
finance transactions, underwriting or sub-underwriting
commitments attributable to Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.
and subsidiaries, and information technology support
services. The income and expenses from these services
amount to HK$88,767 (2011: HK$187,333) and HK$592,183
(2011: HKS474,485) respectively for the year in accordance
with the terms of the master services agreement.

During the year, the Group received a management
fee of HKS$1,079,000 (2011: HKS$738,000) on provision of
discretionary account management services to Haitong
International Holdings Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company. The fee is charged at 0.5% per
annum on the net asset value of the underlying investment

portfolio at the end of each month.

During the year, Haitong Securities Co, Ltd, the ultimate
holding company of the Company, listed its H shares in the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Group acted as one of the joint bookrunners, joint
global coordinators, joint lead managers and joint sponsors
in this initial public offering. The underwriting commission
recognised during the year in relation to this initial public
offering amounted to HK$105,031,975 (for the year ended
31 December 2011: HKSNil) in accordance with the terms
of relevant underwriting agreements. This transaction falls
within the scope of “corporate finance transaction” under
the master services agreement entered between the

Company and Haitong Securities Co,, Ltd. (note (i) above).

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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(a)

v)

20114 « AEEEANRQ RN EE
ERAREBREBERARAQ R
BE—HEREN L BE
ZERER (G BRERIE
AR ER A A EBAEANE B R2011F
6ABEERNEBNANRRIHEER
850,000,000/ 7T & A kL #) 77 = KA
FR425B T ERREB AR R
200,000,0008% & 13 ° A &) fAl B X &9
EARCERERBE2011F8AsH R
TR AR B B R B R S AL
mA R E R201148H168 2
T TEERNRMDBEITRAN A
3,775,00078 7T °

EXMENEVARENBEALRS

IR R T 4R RIE 14AE BT E 3 HO B 38

ARFEERBEFRMDERRRGIA
RS a2 2012512831 B fEim o
R2012F11 H128 - ARRIEEBEES
D BRA RIS — 10 F R B
R201381 818 # £ W K 15 7120154

NRANAER - BREFERERXSNF

B ERRE T IMERT © RIEHBRH t0h 58 7
ENRBEERELRS RETERK
ARBRANREEBERS °

() AEBEEEEASHFHDH

35 Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

(v) During 2011, the Group entered into a loan capitalisation
agreement with Haitong International Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company. Pursuant
to the loan capitalisation agreement, Haitong International
Holdings Limited subscribed 200,000,000 shares of the
Company at HKS4.25 per share by way of capitalisation of
HK$850,000,000 intercompany loans owed by the Group as
at 23 June 2011. The capitalisation of intercompany loans
was subsequently approved in a special general meeting
of the Company held on 8 August 2011 and the shares
were issued on 16 August 2011. Share issuing costs of
approximately HK$3,775,000 was incurred.

The related party transactions disclosed in note (i) to (v) above
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The master services agreement between the Company and
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. was expired on 31 December 2012.
On 12 November 2012, the Company and Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd. entered into a new master services agreement
which took effect from 1 January 2013 and will expire on 31
December 2015. The annual caps on continuing connected
transactions were revised. Services covered under the new
services agreement include broking transactions, investment
management and advisory services transactions and corporate
finance transactions.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

HZE20125 HZE201145
128318 LLEFE 128318 IE5E

For the year ended
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2011

FET T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

EHE B E A Short term employee benefits 49,001 37,616

RIREAT Post-employment benefits 163 153

LARSHE 2 ST RO 508 Share-based payments - 2,846
SNFEBEE A BN NEE Total compensation paid to key

management personnel 49,164 40,615

EREZENHIF BN G M BRERME

7 °

SRERESEEERAR 12012

Further details of directors’emoluments are included in note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.



M TSR MY

Notes to Financial Statements

36 EERABHNEHAAS 36 Maturity profile of assets and liabilities
rEEETEERBERNEERETTHE An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of
HAMBRTFEESMWIBHBEASAT ¢ the Group analysed by the remaining year at the balance sheet date

to the contractual maturity date is as follows:

AANL 1R

REREE 3EAIUT E3E:3 B5F SENE #st
Over Over
Repayable 3months 3 months - 1year to Over
on demand or less 1year 5 years 5 years Total

TR TR TR TRER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

M2012%12H31R 31 December 2012

BE Assets
BYEFHHE Advances to customers in
B margin financing 4,699,097 - - - - 4,699,097
HEtERRBH Other loans and advances - 370,000 710,350 - - 1,080,350
REFPHEN Cash held on behalf of
Be customers 1,516,269 3,576,266 - - - 5,092,535
HERRTER Cash and bank balances 285,473 182,361 - - - 467,834
B Debt securities
FAEEEH Held to maturity - - - 809,914 - 809,914
BAFE Fair value through profit
AARR orloss - - - 286,526 7,848 294,374
Hity R Other receivables - - - - 123,330 123,330
6,500,839 4,128,627 710,350 1,096,440 131,178 12,567,434
= Liabilities
EREEERT (T8 Account payables to clients
FERN T4 - XHEK  excluding payables to
HEERTHIERT) brokers, dealers and
clearing house 5,915,671 297,709 - - - 6,213,380
EXRAMEE Loans and other borrowings - 4,362,238 - - - 4,362,238
5,915,671 4,659,947 - - - 10,575,618

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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36 EERBENEHBAES 36 Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

(continued)
REREE 3EAAT 1FEREEF #Et
Over
Repayable 3 months 1 year to
on demand or less 5 years Total
AT FH&T FH&T FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20115128318 31 December 2011
BE Assets
BT EPRNTE Advances to customers in
EEN margin financing 3,438,293 = = 3,438,293
HAaER R BT Other loans and advances = = = -
REFRHENRE Cash held on behalf of
customers 1,954,196 3,037,830 - 4,992,026
BE RIRITEF Cash and bank balances 545,780 455,458 = 1,001,238
BEIEE 75 Debt securities
A 25 H Held to maturity - - 142,695 142,695
bi-o/N ] Fair value through profit
T AEE=E or loss = = - -
HAth EUARIR Other receivables - - 51,807 51,807
5,938,269 3,493,288 194,502 9,626,059
afE Liabilities
ENEFERH (TeFE Account payables to clients
ERTELE  REHER excluding payables to
EEFTHRRFR) brokers, dealers and clearing
house 5,777,652 252,238 - 6,029,890
ERREMEE Loans and other borrowings - 1,694,525 = 1,694,525
5,777,652 1,946,763 - 7,724,415
37 RERETWHMBE TR 37 Financial instruments by category
FMTERGREEERBRNIFEERMGE All financial assets and financial liabilities (including held-to-maturity
B (EEFERINNKRE  EMER & investments, other loans, financial investments at fair value through
NEEFABZENIBIRE - LK TR profit or loss, advances to customers in margin financing, other loans
BER HMERREAR - BWER & and advances, accounts receivable/payable, deposits, cash, loans and
HBEF - 24  BHE  EXRHEMEE - H other borrowings, other assets and payables) in the consolidated
& = N RN BRFR) IR B BR A R A DAEE $H K balance sheet are carried at amortised cost using effective interest
AEE- HIAHEERE] R[EAFE method except for “available-for-sale investments” and “financial
AR BIRE | WA FEFHERID investments at fair value through profit or loss” which are both

carried at fair value.
BRERESEEERAR § 52012
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Notes to Financial Statements

38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise held-to-maturity
investments, other loans, financial investments at fair value through
profit or loss, advances to customers in margin financing, other loans
and advances, accounts receivable, accounts payable, cash and bank
balances and loans and other borrowings. Advances to customers
in margin financing, other loans and advances, accounts receivable
and accounts payable mainly arise from the Group's operations
while cash and bank balances and loans and other borrowings are to
maintain liquidity or to raise financing for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities.

The bank deposits, advances to customers in margin financing,
other loans and advances, loans and other borrowings as well as
other interest-bearing accounts receivable and payable carried at
amortised costs with floating interest rates are subject to the cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Group's held-to-maturity investments are not subject to the
interest rate risk as all investments are carried at amortised cost with
fixed interest rate.

The Group’s investments in debt securities classified as financial
investments at fair value through profit or loss all carried at fixed
interest rate, are not subject to cash flow interest rate risk but subject

to fair value interest rate risk.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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38 BT E b EIEAY B AV RBUR
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arising from the interest-
bearing assets can be offset against the Group's interest-bearing
liabilities. Management actively monitors the Group's net interest rate
exposure through setting limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing and duration gap and aims at maintaining an interest
rate spread, such that the Group is always in a net interest-bearing
asset position and derives net interest income.

The Group's interest rate risk lies in fluctuations of HIBOR or Hong
Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate, as its interest-bearing assets and
liabilities are mainly Hong Kong dollar denominated.

All the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are subject
to an interest re-pricing risk of 3 months or below. There is no
concentration of interest risk exposure.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure is summarised as follows:

Cash flow interest rate risk (Financial instruments with floating

=) interest rate only)

20124 20114F

2012 2011

TFET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

U AR TR Accounts receivable 636,418 426,191
HBTIEPHFEER Advances to customers in margin financing 4,699,097 3,435,192
HaBER KR ER Other loans and advances 600,350 -
REFHENES Cash held on behalf of customers 1,894,867 1,857,469
WE NIRITET Cash and bank balances 188,781 404,021
JEERFR Accounts payable (4,928,064) (5,010,904)
ERREMEER Loans and other borrowings (4,362,238) (1,694,525)
FER Net position (1,270,789) (582,556)

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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38 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Fair value interest rate risk (Financial instruments carried at fair
value with fixed interest rate only)

20124 20114F
2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BATEFGT ABRNPFRE Financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss 294,374 -

20129128318 © (& BHIBFIRE M~
A 25 A E 2 (20114F ¢ 25{EE 25 M E
FTERE®EFZTE - FRBRBADEF SR
b/ #105,945,000/8 7T (20114F : A /48
hn1,456,000/7T) °

SN o B

RE B HME R = 2k B HERIMNE R IA
RASEABTAINEEHENR S °

REBBABOBREINERTNE S TP R
SNRETTREE LS EAKETNEEAEX
SRR

AEBRARBNEREERABENET
ETLRARKEFE - BTLRERTHERRE
RERHEIRE

R2012F12H318 © AR E B THE
& FFF T BR5% (201148 : 5%) » 0 H i
FTEEZR (BIESX) #/1TE  FRKRH
ATSE I R F A H b2 IS # 2 Bl
B 435,550,000 7T (20114F = #8405 4
26,783,000 7T) K 3% 0@ 1>6,084,0007%
7 (20114F = 3800 W AZAT) ©

At 31 December 2012, if market interest rates at that date had been
25 basis points (2011: 25 basis points) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been HK$5,945,000 lower/higher (2011: HK$1,456,000 lower/higher).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency risk arises principally from its leveraged
foreign exchange business as well as the Group's transactions
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD").

The Group hedges economically majority of its client trades in its
leveraged foreign exchange business back-to-back with external
counterparties, such that the Group is not exposed to significant

foreign currency risk.

The majority of the Group’s and the Company’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in HKD, United States dollars ("USD") and Renminbi
(“RMB"). Exchange rates of HKD and USD have remained relatively
stable during the year.

As at 31 December 2012, if RMB strengthened/weakened against
HKD by 5% (2011: 5%) with all other variables including tax rate
being constant, profit before taxation for the year and other
comprehensive income for the year would have been HK$35,550,000
(2011: HK$26,783,000) higher/lower and HK$6,084,000 (2011: HKSNil)
higher/lower.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

(4&)
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policies (continued)

Credit risk

The held-to-maturity investments, other loans, derivative financial
instruments, advances to customers in margin financing, other
loans and advances, accounts and other receivables, cash and bank
balances and other assets represent the Group's major exposure to
the credit risk arising from the default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Credit Committee of the Group has appointed a group of
authorised persons who are charged with the responsibility of
approving credit limit of each customer, including the advances to
customers in margin financing and other loans and advances. The
Credit Committee is also responsible to the credit risk arising from
the Group's investment in debt securities, classified either as held to
maturity investment, other receivables or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

For margin lending, the committee is responsible for approval of
share acceptable for margin lending, setting stock margin ratio for
each approved share. The approved share list is updated bimonthly,
and will be revised as and when deemed necessary by the
committee. The committee will prescribe from time to time lending
limits on individual share or on any individual customer and his/her
associates.

The Risk Management Department of the Group is responsible for
overall monitoring of the credit risk of its customers and will make
margin call to those customers whose trades exceed their respective
limits. Any such excess is required to be made good within two
days for securities and the next day for futures of the deficiency
report. The deficiency report will be monitored daily by the Group's
finance director and responsible officers. Failure to meet margin
calls may result in the liquidation of the customers’ positions. For
each individual other loans and advances, the Risk Management
Department will closely monitor financial position of the debtors and
ensure that sufficient collateral were received and to maintain an

acceptable loan to collateral value ratio.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For the other loans and advances, prior to the lending of loan, the
Credit Committee will review the financial strength, purpose of the
borrowing, repayment ability of the borrower to ensure that the
borrower has sound financial repayment ability. The Group assesses
the credit profiles of each individual debtors by analyzing many
factors that influence the default probability, including (but not
limited to) the counterparty’s financial profile, business prospects
and management, macroeconomic development, industrial and
sovereign risk, and historical performance. The Credit Committee
also meets quarterly and reviews from time to time the financial

conditions of the borrower or the guarantors.

For the Group'’s investment in debt securities, the Credit Committee
assesses the financial performance of the issuers to ensure that the
issuers can satisfy the repayment of the principal and interest as
they fall due. The Group has set portfolio size limits and single issuer
limits to limit the Group's exposure to the credit risk. The Group also
monitors the credit rating and market news of the issuers for any
indication of potential credit deterioration.

For the other credit exposures such as the derivative financial
instruments, accounts and other receivables, cash and bank balances
and other assets, the Group ensure that the exposures are limited to
reputable counterparties, such as the financial institution, brokers,
dealers or clearing houses, which are governed by regulators
including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") and other overseas
regulators. The risk of default in repayment is considered to be

minimal.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012



BTSSR M o

Notes to Financial Statements

38 KA EEMNE W RBE 38 Financial risk management objectives and
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policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The management is confident in its ability to continue to control and
sustain minimal exposure of credit risk:

For accounts receivables, approximately HK$455,019,914 (2011:
HK$113,098,610) was receivables from clients arising from
dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against-
payment settlement term of 2 days. There is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to the receivables, as the Group has a
large number of clients who are internationally dispersed. Most
of the accounts and other receivables from clients with overdue
more than 30 days are fully secured by listed securities with
market value significantly higher than the carrying amount.

Advances to customers (margin loans) are backed by collateral.
The Group only accepts collateral in the form of cash and liquid
stocks. Advances to customer of neither past due nor impaired
are fully secured by liquid stocks. (Note 21).

Other loans and advances are either secured or backed by

guarantees.

Held-to-maturity investments and other loans were issued by
corporations and reputable large commercial banks with issuer
credit rating of Caal or above issued by Moody's or CCC+ or
above issued by Standard & Poor’s.

Derivative financial instruments were entered with a reputable
large commercial banks with credit rating of A2 issued by
Moody’s.
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Notes to Financial Statements

38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Majority of cash and balances with banks were deposited in
reputable large commercial banks with credit rating of Ba3 or
above issued by Moody’s or BB- or above issued by Standards &
Poor’s.

Other assets are mainly deposits placed with the regulators
which are considered to have minimum credit risk.

The ageing analysis of the advances to customers in margin
financing and accounts receivable are included in note 21 and note
23 respectively.

Individual impairment assessment has been performed as of the
balance sheet date. The management of the Group considered that

no impairment is necessary.

Other than the above, the Company’s credit risk exposure mainly
represents the amounts due from subsidiaries. These inter-company
balances are considered to have minimum credit risk.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group's activities are subject to various statutory
liquidity requirements as prescribed by the SFC in accordance
with the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).
The Group has put in place a monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its business commitments
and to comply with the relevant Financial Resources Rules under the
SFO.

As part of the measures to safeguard liquidity, the Group has
maintained substantial long term and other stand-by banking
facilities, diversifying the funding sources and spacing out the

maturity dates.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012

O



BTSSR M o

Notes to Financial Statements

38 BT E b EIEAY B AV RBUR

38 Financial risk management objectives and

(#) policies (continued)
REBESRR &) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEBRARARR BRI BB ERERE The maturity profile of the Group's and Company’s financial liabilities

BEER
FIRARITRN A ENBHAA{OT

as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

KEE Group
2012%12H31H
31 December 2012
EER DA3EA st
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
TET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BERNEMEE Loans and other borrowings - 4,364,851 4,364,851
FETERER Accounts payable 6,448,194 297,709 6,745,903
STAE M ERNBER & Financial liabilities included in other
st ZCEN IS aE payables and accruals 185,488 - 185,488
6,633,682 4,662,560 11,296,242
2011412 A31H
31 December 2011
JEEk D3R A #a5t
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
AT FAIT AT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
ERkEMEE Loans and other borrowings = 1,712,277 1,712,277
FERTBR TR Accounts payable 5,792,651 252,238 6,044,889
ST AE AR BRI Financial liabilities included in other
FEETIEM BT S B & payables and accruals 102,345 = 102,345
5,894,996 1,964,515 7,859,511

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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38 KA EEMNE W RBE 38 Financial risk management objectives and
(#) policies (continued)
REBESRR &) Liquidity risk (continued)
PN Company

20125%12H31H
31 December 2012

EER L A3EA et

Less than
On demand 3 months Total
FExT THET FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERREMEE Loans and other borrowings - 1,725,156 1,725,156

ST AE M FE AR Financial liabilities included in other

FERT IR S B E payables and accruals 69,540 - 69,540
AN ENEIEE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,775,577 - 1,775,577
1,845,117 1,725,156 3,570,273

20114E12H31H

31 December 2011

e SR DH3EA 5t

Less than
On demand 3 months Total
FA&T FAT FA&T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
ERkEMEE Loans and other borrowings - 714,043 714,043

T AE A B BRI & Financial liabilities included in other

eI EE payables and accruals 13,814 = 13,814
JEAST BT B8 X B RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,468,719 - 1,468,719
1,482,533 714,043 2,196,576

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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38 Financial risk management objectives and
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policies (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments, fund
investments and derivatives decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the values of individual investment. The
Group is exposed to price risk arising from equity investments, fund
investments and derivative financial instruments classified as financial
investment at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments. The Group’s equity investments and fund investments
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are valued at
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. Investment funds are
measured using the fair value with changes in fair value affected by
the shared net asset value of the invested funds. Changes in the fair
value of the derivative financial instruments are related to the return
of the underlying investment portfolio linked to the derivatives.

Equity investments and fund investments

The table below summarises the impact of changes in the Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index on the Group's profit before taxation for the
year and on the investment revaluation reserve. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the equity index had changed by 10% with
all other variables held constant and all the equity instruments and
fund investments move according to the historical correlation with

the index.
20125 2012

HERBL HIRAFIREE

ADER 8 RENTE

Impact on the

investment

Impact on profit revaluation

EFREEEH Hong Kong Hang Seng Index before taxation  reserve in equity
THET THERT

HK$'000 HK$’000

1 5010% Increase by 10% 4,102 4,701
A 10% Decrease by 10% (4,102) (4,701)

SRERESEEERAR 12012
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Price risk (continued)

Equity investments and fund investments (continued)
2011

HERH HIRAREE

Alm A H 2 hitENTE

Impact on the

investment

Impact on profit revaluation

EBEEIEE Hong Kong Hang Seng Index before taxation reserve in equity

FAET FA&T

HKS'000 HK$'000

HEHN10% Increase by 10% 435 702

A 10% Decrease by 10% (435) (702)
TTEMBTE Derivative financial instruments

TEFBTANAFERBABIREEEGH
R E - BSHBREAE AT EEM
W% STAETENAFERTE AR
i ) #5388 0k 4> 493,000,000 JT (2011
£ 1 2,000,000/87T) °

B IAENAFE
RIEATES A BRI R EREATE

FIRREV R EIREIN - B EMMEEE
RAEMNREEREQFERE

BRAHEFABRNPHERERAIHEER
BNRFERBONWMT

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments depends
on the return of an underlying investment portfolio. Should
the fair value of the underlying investment portfolio increase/
decrease by 1%, the fair value of the derivative and profit
before taxation will increase/decrease by around HKS$3 million
(2011: HKS2 million).

Fair value of financial instruments

Apart from the financial investments at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale investments, which are carried at fair
value, the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and liabilities
approximated their fair value.

The fair value hierarchy for the financial investments at fair value

through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments is analysed

as follows:
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

()
MBETANDFE &)
DR EEAR

BRI REERNBESR R AL ERM
FEANSBESABRATABEE - MAE
BEDEDBNEER - AIBRNBIERMRK
BB KRN TIZESR - THBERNBER
BRAR RN SRR © xR AN SRE
M AR FEEER:

F1R - HEEEESKBENERT S AR
B (RERAE) - XRRBERR S (0EF
BHERFT) EMHRAFESREHIA - A
MR BEBEMITAETR @ Hlan#s (40
MHTEST  REEEERS00) ©

FoR - BB VB EREOREN - HEib
BEXBERERE (AIER) sBEE (A
EBRITE) HERNBE - ZABIBREKRZ
BUGSMTETREH - RHEFRRBETH
RBMEER - BRRTRARF B HARRK
RGUFEERRENEBESHBHRREE
R BRI o

F3R - AESAFRELFRETEED
TS (FTBREHBE) - AR 5E
ABEATTRENN ORHERE RES T
H o

BATERRERE LG TREN TSR
e - AZEEAEBER - ML A%E
BB = B ARE ) R A BE T8
i -
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policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s
market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This level includes listed equity securities and debt
instruments on exchanges (for example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
and exchanges traded derivatives like futures (for example, Nasdag,
S&P 500).

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). This level includes
the majority of the OTC derivative contracts, traded loans and issued
structured debts. The sources of input parameters like HIBOR vyield
curve or counterparty credit risk are Bloomberg and Reuters.

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level includes
equity investments and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market prices
in its valuations where possible.
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Notes to Financial Statements

38 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

An analysis of the Group's financial assets measured at fair value as at
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are as follows:

rEH Group
F14K 28R E3 et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FETT T T T
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
72012612H31H 31 December 2012
AIEEERE Available-for-sale investments - 131,690 - 131,690
BAFER AEEL Financial investments at fair value
B E through profit or loss 158 441,563 - 441,721
720115128318 31 December 2011
AN ERE Available-for-sale investments = 11,250 = 11,250
BAFER ABEA Financial investments at fair value
R E through profit or loss 6,889 10,835 = 17,724

RER  AEEYEEFEIFHFHFTA -

B EE R

EREEBBIET  AREA RS
BREZRPRIVRMDIEERYE - RAEH
BEHMSREEBEALETHRER - A -
AEERFFPRBRRSERR - THRESE
o F N B S B E R E R M

The Group did not have any level 3 financial instruments during the
year.

Stock borrowing and lending arrangement

Under the normal course of business, the Group may enter into stock
borrowing and lending arrangements with other financial institutions
and its customers. Equity securities may be borrowed from the other
financial institutions and lent to its customers. At the same time, the
Group receives cash collateral from the customers and also places
cash collateral in other financial institutions as collateral.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited : Annual Report 2012
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R20128F12831H @ B &K B $46,276,120
77T (20114 ¢ 23,205,42058 7 ) JHfE B 4
HemUBIYETERR, - HelF R
59,065,445/ 70 (20114 27,990,574 7T )
T E RP » B H49,123,165% 7T (2011
1252842048 0) HEeMEBREAE - B
U EY 1938 € 353 G I B R A IR £ 18 3R
BORREEBGERERL [EBHER] &
[ FE U R 3k I E A FE U AR TE | ©

AEERZBMPEER 5T A E \,\’E%‘Eﬂﬁ*
= E&ITE;TEHEKEW—L R

EBRMEELHET - $%lﬁ’9£§afﬂ%&
EREFPHREONER TMEEMEANE

EXEHE

BAREAEENEAN AEEEAEENE
2 A REREREEREHFELE REFE
BEOVEARLL R UXRHERBEAEREEM
BEtRTTARRB(E -

AEEENREERRE(EREREARE
WHEA AR - RERNABREARR T%
AEEHEHBIRN FRIRAOBREKE B
BEANTRRKEITHRD EA$W : jﬂﬁi
LER - BORSEFEH EME

REBEFAEZINBERHEMERRER
#l - EETHEFLFRAEEFHERLLE «
X EHEEME  REABRERS - BRI
EEERESERNWBRRRIN - ZEH
BRARINXEESRE E’Jéﬁﬁ?i AR R
NRERERHES » B2012F128318 &
20114F12H318 + H 5 5l A&100,000% 7T &
15,000,000/ 7T ©

RER AEEXBESRENHBARC
NAEREERRE
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Stock borrowing and lending arrangement

(continued)

As of 31 December 2012, equity securities of HK$46,276,120
(2011: HK$23,205,420) were borrowed from the external
financial institutions and lent to its customers. Cash collateral
of HKS59,065,445 (2011: HK$27,990,574) was received from the
customers with HK$49,123,165 (2011: HKS$25,284,204) held by the
financial institutions. The cash collateral received and cash collateral
placed are currently recognized as “accounts payable” and “accounts
and other receivables” respectively in the balance sheet.

The Group maintains no net position in such stock borrowing and
lending transaction and does not subject to any significant price risk.
However, under the stock borrowing and lending arrangement, the
Group is principally liable to repay the borrowed securities in case of
any default by the customers.

Capital management

The capital represents the Group’s equity. The primary objective of
the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the year.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in securities
and futures dealings and broking, corporate finance and advisory,
nominee and custodian services, leveraged foreign exchange trading,
and fund management, which are regulated entities under the SFC
and subject to the respective minimum liquid capital requirements
from HK$0.1 million to HKS$15 million as at 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group, which are regulated
by SFC, complied with all the minimum capital requirement.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total borrowings divided by the total shareholders’ equity. Total
borrowings include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Total shareholders' equity represents of the equity attributable to the
equity holders. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates

were as follows:

REH Group
2012%12H31H 2011412 A31H
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
FER AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
wmEE Total borrowings 4,362,238 1,694,525
FEE S ey Total shareholders’ equity 3,254,034 3,054,588
BARBELE Gearing ratio 134% 55 %

BEABBELE EFTIRRANEEEE Wt x
BE R M ERITEUSRBIME B AR K15
B o

IO EHEERATRBRAEZERAT

REBEBEMA A0S RBERIERER AR
K AR KB M A BB ESR
DARRAD /AR RNERIER AR R
REIER AT

40 BF I5 ¥R R KV HEAX

R BRREPN20BFIASEEEZTSH
i 3

The increase in gearing ratio was attributable to the growth in the
fixed income business of the Group which additional borrowing from
banks are obtained to finance the business.

39 Immediate holding company and ultimate

holding company

Haitong International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, and Haitong Securities Co., Ltd., a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, are the immediate
holding company and ultimate holding company of the Company
respectively.

40 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on
5 March 2013.
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N09E 208F 2003F
7A1A% 1RI1RZ 4HIRE
20125 WE WI0F 20095 N07F 2065 20055 W04F 2003F W03 002
128318 12R318 12A318 64308 12A318 12318 12A31A8 128318 128318 3A318 3A318
170000 1/1/2008- 1/4/2003-
322012 3VI201 32000 3062009 312007 312006 3122005 312004 3122008 3132003 3132002
TEn T T Fh Thr T Thr Thr T T T
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
EL | RESULTS
9N REVENUE 1,177,055 1003945 1459935 1,084,604 1465213 76913 390781 35,776 24558 B 270669
B8/ (K8 OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS) 337,656 179058 396827 202058 582,362 197,689 68663 71919 45881 (40092 (121614)
FEEBENARAREHEE  Share of profits/losses) of an associate
HiH / (E8) and jointy-controlled entites - - 1718 6324 198 5 3 1456 [0} 37) @)
BHEER /(58) PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX 337,656 179058 398545 20838 582,560 197941 68998 79375 45877 (40464 (121662
7 (F%)/ % Tasation (charge)/credit (43,034) (25973) (53386) (20054) 92329 @9 (6,040 9095) 4297) 1033 15,860
£/ BRR /(EB)  PROFITALOSS) FORTHE
VEAR/PERIOD 294622 153085 345,159 188328 49031 174970 62058 70280 41580 (39431) (105802)
WFALEEER - ATTRIBUTABLETO:
FRFREEEA Equity holders of the Company 293450 15304 345795 188974 484847 172325 62958 70280 41580 (39431) (105802)
FHEHIER Non-controlling Inerests 117 (119) (636) (646) 5384 2645 - - - - =
294622 153085 345,159 188328 49031 174970 62958 70280 41580 (3931) (105802)
BE  SEREEHE ASSETS, LIABILIIES AND NON-
[ 558 CONTROLLING INTERESTS:
wEg TOTAL ASSETS 14628101 10962126 11412151 8904160 7771610 4405092 3152524 2793151 2883828 2046237 2032843
wag TOTAL LIABILITIES (11368256) (7900899  (9234813) (6973300  (506460)  (B221400) (2148493 (1806194  (061376)  (1380096) (102849
FEGER NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (5,811) (6639) (6758) (5394) (8660) (4476) - - - - =
KxES SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS 3,254,034 3054588 2170580 1925464 1856490 1179216 1004031 986,957 82245 766,141 829994
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